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Performance & Strategy

2023 Group Highlights

Financial
strength

£333.4m

Total Group profit before tax (PBT)
2022: £298.8m

£950.9m

Connells group total income
2022: £1,030.3m

1.53%

Group net interest margin
2022:1.35%

26.3%

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio
2022: 25.8%

2023
Awards
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Homes

12.1%

Group mortgage book growth rate
2022: 9.6%

19,120

First-time buyers provided

with home financing
2022:13,803

£30.9bn

Total value of lending generated
by Connells group for UK

mortgage providers
2022: £36.9bn

[ ) [ )
Home Financing
Your Mortgage
Best First Time Buyer Mortgage Lender
Which?
Recommended Mortgage Provider

What Mortgage Awards
Best National Building Society

Money

15.4%

Society savings balance growth rate
2022: 13.6%

0.65%

Above the market average paid to

our savers
2022: 0.52%

6,000

Customers provided with

financial advice in the year
2022: 7,835

Money
Moneyfacts Awards 2023
Winner - Best Building Society Savings Provider

‘ Moneyfacts Consumer Awards 2023

Highly commended (2nd place)
- High Street Savings Provider of the Year

Fairer Finance 2023
Awarded our savings accounts ‘Gold’ in their

latest customer experience ratings

Members

8.1%

Membership increased to 1,229,888

Society members
2022: by 5.0% to 1,137,560

£148m

Given to members through above
market average savings rates

9,539

Free EPC Plus surveys conducted to
date providing over £710k of benefit
to members

Skipton International
Moneyfacts Awards 2023
Winner - Offshore Account Provider of the Year
Mortgage Introducer
Mortgage Employer of the Year

‘ Platinum Trusted Service
Provider Award by Feefo
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Performance & Strategy

Chair’s
Statement

2023 saw Skipton Building Society enter its 1715t year during a time of challenging economic
circumstances, geopolitical turbulence and humanitarian crises including those seen in Ukraine
and Gaza. In the UK, the cost of living crisis continues. Although inflation in 2023 fell from more
than 10% to 4% by the year end, interest rates remain high by recent historical standards. In

the face of these continuing financial challenges, the impacts on our members, customers and
colleagues remain at the forefront.

We have navigated numerous challenges throughout our history, making prudent decisions and safeguarding the Skipton
Group's long-term stability. This commitment to sound, future-orientated decision-making remained steadfast in 2023;
and the Group’s strong performance is testament to our dedicated colleagues who have excelled in serving our members
and customers. It reflects our unwavering dedication to our mutual values and the trust our members have placed in us,
reinforcing our enduring legacy.

SKIPTON SKIPTON
BUILDING SOCIETY n Connells - INTERNATIONAL n Sbf

Since 1853 Skipton Business Finance l a d e

+ Connells group, our estate agency business, remained
profitable during a difficult UK housing market in 2023,
maintaining its market share during the year; whilst the
land and new homes division remains the leading agent
in new homes sales.

Our Group
The diversity of our Group provides a unique strength.

+ Skipton Building Society has continued to innovate as we
deliver on our purpose to help more people have a home,
help people save for life ahead and support long-term + Skipton International, our Guernsey-based savings and
financial wellbeing. mortgage bank, increased pre-tax profits in the year. The

bank’s mortgage book grew by 10%, driven by robust

growth in its UK buy-to-let proposition for overseas
residents. There was also similar growth seen in their

savings book, up 11%.

In 2023 we enabled 46,991 customers to remortgage or
buy a new home, including supporting 19,120 first-time
buyers. We provided financial advice to 6,000 customers
and helped 14,221 young people to save through

a Lifetime ISA for buying their first house or future + Skipton Business Finance, our invoice financing
retirement. We also continued to invest in competitive business, saw record profits driven by robust

rates for both our mortgage and savings members, which performance across all sales channels, with money
| believe reflects the different approach that we can take advanced increasing amidst inflationary pressures,
as a mutual to share our success with our members. which increased demand for working capital across

We are making significant investments in our systems UK businesses.

and IT infrastructure. In 2023 the Society launched atwo-  + Jade, our software business based in New Zealand, also
year transformation programme to develop and launch a
digitally led, seamless experience for savings customers
to give them choice around how they want to open and
manage their accounts.

money laundering Software as a Service (SaaS) product
grew 37% year-on-year, resulting in 40% compound
annual growth over four years.
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achieved revenue and PBT growth in the year. Jade’s anti-

Our strategy

Throughout the year, the Society’s board of directors

(the Board) met with the Group Executive Committee,
culminating in December when we agreed our next five-year
strategy to maximise the unique opportunities of the
Skipton Group. Our priorities remain to help more people
have a home, make money work harder and make
membership matter. Further details are set out in the
Strategic Report.

I am proud of the strength of our Board and executive team and
am excited about the opportunities that we have as a Group
over the coming years to deliver real value for our members.

Our colleagues

The success of our Group can be attributed to the quality,
dedication and enthusiasm of our colleagues in all of our
businesses. | continue to be impressed and humbled by the
ways in which our colleagues go the extra mile to serve our
members and customers. We remain committed to foster
an engaged, valued and well-trained workforce.

During 2023 we have established a structure to embed
inclusion at each point of the colleague journey for all
colleagues working for the Society. We are working to
collect more diversity data to improve our understanding
of our colleagues, to develop evidence-based methods to
make further improvements around diversity and inclusion,
and to reflect increasing regulatory obligations.

The gender pay gap within the Society is currently at 21.7%,
down from 24.6% in 2022, and our Women in Finance Charter
submission in 2023 showed female senior leaders in the
Society currently at 46.1% - ahead of our 45% target set at the
end of 2022. We will continue to support women who wish to
progress within the Society and across the Group.

Sustainability

Over the year we saw the launch of new sustainability initiatives
built around Group-wide collaboration. After we measured the
impact of the Society’s and Skipton International’s financed
emissions, which are indirectly generated from our lending
activities in our mortgage portfolios, we have started to take
action to grow a clearer understanding of the challenges faced
in decarbonising homes.

| was proud to see the launch of a retrofit research project
in partnership with Leeds Beckett and Leeds universities,
drawing on expertise from the Group's surveying and
valuation businesses, as well as our home energy report
assessors. The project sets out to understand the cost and
experience of retrofit activity so that we can support our
members who want to upgrade their homes to reduce their
environmental impact and save money on their energy bills.

We are in the process of reviewing our overall Group
approach to sustainability. All of us are impacted by climate
change and the Group is continuing to assess what impact
our own businesses may have on the climate, and how we
can minimise it. We look forward to sharing more details in
our 2023 Skipton Group Sustainability Report.

As a Group, built around the Society's ethos of mutuality, we
have also continued our commitment of giving back to our
communities. In 2022 we committed to donate 1% of our
annual Group profit before tax to charitable causes every

year that align closely with our values and purpose. We
are building enhanced governance and administration into
this process so that members can vote on future strategic
charity partnerships over the coming years, unlocking
money to help those charities and communities in need.

Board changes
In 2023 we continued to strengthen the Society's Board.

In April | was delighted to welcome Steven Davis to the
Board as a non-executive director. Steven has over 35 years
experience in retail and financial services and has held
senior executive roles in HR, retail operations and change
management, including with Sainsbury’s and Sainsbury’s
Bank. He brings a wealth of experience in strategy, change
leadership and building strong customer and colleague
propositions. Steven has also been appointed as the
Board’'s Consumer Duty champion and in September
became Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee,
replacing Heather Jackson, who assumed the Chair
position on the newly-created Board Change Committee.

Richard Coates retired from the Board at April's AGM
after many years of dedicated and selfless service.

lain Cummings took over Richard’s role as Chair of the
Board Audit Committee and is applying his considerable
experience to the role.

’

In May we also welcomed Sarah Whitney to the Board

as a non-executive director and in September Sarah was
also appointed as chair of the board of Connells group.
Sarah decided to step down from both boards at the end
of February 2024 and we wish her all the very best for the
future.

Bobby Ndawula announced he will be leaving the Society

in Spring 2024 after 20 years at Skipton. He has provided
remarkable financial management of our growing business and
leaves with our very best wishes and gratitude for his service.

| am delighted that Paul Chambers has joined in early
2024 as Group CFO from Standard Chartered Group.
Paul was previously CFO of Europe and America and
Financial Controller of the group. Paul has deep financial
expertise and a strong track record with excellent
knowledge of both the mortgage and advice markets.
We very much look forward to Paul’s participation in this
new phase of our Group.

Outlook

My focus for 2024 and beyond will be to ensure that the
Group remains strong and able to weather the inevitable
economic, geopolitical and environmental challenges

that we will face. We will be there for our members and
customers in meeting their changing needs and supporting
them to secure their financial futures. Membership will
continue to matter.

q“_\\&-\. \Y) '—\-Sb e

Gwyn Burr
Chair

27 February 2024

Annual Report & Accounts 2023 9



Performance & Strategy

'l

e —

Group Chief
Executive’s
Report

It has been a transformative year for Skipton Building Society. Following the refresh of

our strategy we have established a Group structure (as opposed to a building society plus
subsidiaries) which is aligned to our members’ needs; namely, financing their homes (Home
Financing), making their money work harder (Money) and helping them buy and sell homes
(Estate Agency, Connells’ group). We have also seen a greater involvement in our strategy and
execution from our Jade Software business in New Zealand and ongoing strong performance
from our International (Skipton International) and Commercial Finance (Skipton Business

Finance) businesses.

Nevertheless, our purpose is the same as it has been since our Building Society was founded in 1853; and our new Group
structure provides us with a diversified range of capabilities and enhanced financial strength. We have three compelling
strategic priorities, centred on leveraging Skipton Group’s unique business mix, in order to help more people have a home,

help people save for life ahead and support long-term financial wellbeing.

In 2023 we have been braver and bolder for our customers
and members, with our well regarded Track Record
mortgage for rental prisoners (which is already helping
hundreds of people), and our income booster product (Joint
Borrower, Sole Proprietor) where friends and family can
pool their finances to get a mortgage and a home. We have
also protected borrowing members by having the lowest
Standard Variable Rate / Mortgage Variable Rate amongst
our peers, having passed on less than a third of the Bank
of England base rate changes - these steps are designed to

recognise the challenging economic times for our members.

For savings members, we have passed on over 75%

of 2023's base rate changes, significantly more than
competitors. We have launched highly-competitive savings
offers, including our member exclusive up to 7.5% regular
saver. We have also offered free advice for members, and
free pension health checks, to enable our members to make
more of their money now, and in the future.

This has been achieved while maintaining our award-
winning customer service, consistently ranking toward
the top of cross industry customer service league tables;
all thanks to the skills, care and empathy with which our
customer facing colleagues engage our members.
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Through our focus on helping people into homes and
helping money work harder, we have significantly grown
market share in deposits and mortgages; whilst maintaining
our healthy share of the Estate Agency market and further
growing our invoice finance and international mortgage
businesses. Our lending now goes to more first-time buyers
than ever (c.33%) and our savers are rewarded too, with

our lowest rate on an instant access account beating the
market average by some considerable distance. All this
while further building out our enviable capital and funding
positions and upgrading our risk management skills and
framework.

This has not come by chance. This is down to the hard
work, resilience and focus of colleagues, who | want to
thank for the incredible work they do all day, every day;
together with our unique position in the market afforded by
our mutual ownership model, where we only answer to our
members and customers and not to shareholders. It is also
thanks to our coverage and leadership position in the UK
housing market.

Group performance highlights

Skipton Group, in our 171t year, has again performed
strongly in 2023. Group profit before tax (PBT) is up 12%

to £333.4m; with underlying Group PBT (as defined in the
Strategic Report) of £308.6m. Group net interest margin
increased to 1.53% (from 1.35%) reflecting the rising
interest rate environment which created opportunities for
the Society and Skipton International to generate higher net
income which we are re-investing to deliver further benefits
for our members.

Our Group financial performance is underpinned by our
strong asset quality, capitalisation, liquidity and funding
profiles and these firm, sustainable foundations have most
notably enabled us to deliver.

+ Group mortgage balances growth of 12% to £28.6bn
with mortgage advances of £6.7bn, up 6% year-on-
year, helping over 19,000 first time buyers. Additionally,
£30.9bn of lending has been generated by Connells group
for UK mortgage providers in 2023. Group UK residential
mortgages in arrears by three months or more represent
only 0.23% of mortgage accounts at the end of December
2023, well below the industry average.

+ Savings balances in our Money business have grown
by 15% to £26.0bn, and we have paid 0.65% above the
market average to our savers; whilst financial advice
customers were up, with funds under management
totalling £4.3bn.

We are only answerable to our members and not to
shareholders. Membership growth in the year was 8.1%
to over 1.2 million, bringing the benefit of membership to
an ever increasing number of people.

+ Liquidity levels have remained well above regulatory
limits throughout the year, with a liquidity coverage
ratio (LCR) of 173% at December 2023; and we have
maintained our strong capital position with Common
Equity Tier 1 (CET1) and leverage ratios of 26.3% and
6.7% respectively.

Individual business performance

Skipton Building Society’s PBT increased by £122.8m to
£283.7m. Performance is split between our Home Financing
business, which is designed to provide finance in order

to access the housing market and ‘Help More People

Have a Home'; and our Money business which helps our
members’ ‘Money Work Harder’ and combines our savings
and financial advice offerings with our online, branch and
contact centre capabilities.

Consumer confidence in the housing market weakened in
the year amidst higher borrowing costs. As a result, our
estate agency business entered 2023 with a materially
lower sales pipeline. The tougher economic environment
impacted upon Connells group results, with revenue in the
year down 8% to £951.0m. Consequently, Connells group
realised a reduced PBT of £13.8m in 2023. Earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), a
common measure of estate agency performance, as defined
in the Strategic Report, was £63.7m.

Our Channel Islands business, Skipton International (SIL),
has a UK mortgage proposition specifically for UK buy-to-
let investors resident overseas, whilst they also offer some
of the best offshore interest rates and are committed to
providing personal service - a winning combination which
helps SIL continue to make a strong contribution to the
Group, with pre-tax profits of £47.3m in the year.

Further details of our performance in 2023 can be found in the
Strategic Report.
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Group Chief Executive's Report (continued)

Delivering on our Kkey strategic priorities in 2023

Help More People Have a Home

Growing our mortgage members has been achieved by maintaining high standards of customer service,
valuable relationships with our broker network, and delivering competitively priced products for our
customers. We want to drive collaborative change across the Group to tackle the key issues impacting
our members and the UK housing sector, to enable more first-time buyers get on to the property ladder
than ever before. In May 2023 we launched a new option for aspiring first-time buyers - our Track Record
mortgage which enables people trapped in rental cycles to realise their home ownership aspirations,

via the only available deposit-free mortgage without the need of a guarantor. The value of this product
has been clearly demonstrated, with applications totalling £62.4m already received since its launch,
and £29.7m completions. With the criteria now extended to also include tenants that were previous
homeowners, we're enabling even more renters to access the property ladder.

In addition, we support one in ten individuals looking to buy and sell homes in the UK through our estate
agency network; whilst lending in 2023 by our Home Financing business now goes to more first-time
buyers than ever (c. 33% of all loans advanced).

Make Money Work Harder

We will ensure we are even more relevant for our customers; that we fully understand their needs, and
provide greater solutions in savings as well as long-term investing, through our branches, on the phone or
online. As part of our commitment to paying a competitive savings rate we have passed on an average of
1.33% of the 1.75% change in Bank of England base rate in 2023; meaning our minimum variable savings
rate has increased from 1.75% to 3.25% at the year end.

Furthering our commitment, in June we launched a new highly competitive member benefit product in the
form of a regular saver that pays an interest rate of up to 7.5%, enabling members to make the most of their
hard-earned money. This provided over 68,000 new accounts for our members, and when these accounts
mature after 12 months, we expect to pay more than £8.2m in interest, giving real value to our members.

As part of our money model, as well as savings products, we provide financial advice to our members.
This year we have focused on how we make that easier and more accessible, by providing free advice to
our members that choose to take it, helping with their savings and investment goals, in order to make
their money work harder.

Make Membership Matter

Our members will see and feel the value of Skipton membership and ownership. In November 2022 we
launched our Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) Plus proposition. Partnering with Vibrant Energy,
a Skipton Group company, to offer a free EPC assessment, with advice on how to improve the energy
efficiency of homes (EPC Plus), which was extended to all Skipton savings and mortgage members in
January. Since launching the proposition, around 10,000 surveys have been conducted providing over
£700k of benefit to our members.

In the year, the Home Financing and Money businesses were awarded the Customer Contact Association
(CCA) Global Accreditation for Customer Experience recognising our commitment to driving service
excellence; whilst Skipton International has been awarded the Platinum Trusted Service Provider Award
by Feefo. Our commitment to our members through our products and services has also been recognised
by independent third parties, being awarded Top Rated Lender in the Mortgage Finance Gazette &
Mortgage Solutions Rated for Service Awards 2023.

Skipton Group has continued to deliver on our core values to support a better society today, for a better
future tomorrow; factoring Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG), including climate resilience, into
our decision-making. In 2023 we have strengthened the wider Group’s engagement with our standards.
We are adapting our services in order to become more accessible and inclusive. Amongst many
initiatives, we have added British Sign Language (BSL) interpretation to the disclosure videos in branch
and started to introduce service counters that now have a lowered central section, making them more
accessible; whilst in June we joined the Hidden Disabilities scheme. The Skipton Group is committed to
donating 1% of its pre-tax profit to charity, which for 2023 is £2.9m in support for good causes.

Further details of our strategic priorities can be found in the Strategic Report.
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Enablers to deliver our strategy
It has been a transformative year for the Skipton Group:

Aligning our structure with our purpose: Where
appropriate we have developed new strategies for

our businesses and appointed new leadership, whilst
refining our operating model to support even greater
accountability, performance and agility. We have
welcomed new faces, who bring fresh ideas, whilst also
promoting our existing talent into leadership positions
throughout the organisation, including to the Group
Executive Committee. We are building an increasingly
diverse pipeline of talent and investing in our places of
work, both branches and the main support centres.

+ Investments and outcomes in digital and data: We have
begun retooling the businesses through our digital
transformation programme and our financial advice
reengineering in Money, our Dancerace implementation
in Skipton Business Finance and an early test of a new
Salesforce CRM system in Hamptons Estate Agency.
We are also re-platforming our entire business from on-
premise infrastructure to the cloud. These technology-
enabled changes are blending great integration of third-
party software with high quality internally built platforms.
We are changing the way we ‘do change’ and becoming
more ambitious and agile.

| believe these changes will enable us to deliver better
outcomes for our members than ever before; being closer to
our members and customers and more accountable for our
purpose to help more people have a home, help people save
for life ahead and support long-term financial wellbeing.

Our role in helping more people onto the property ladder,
enabling existing homeowners to improve energy efficiency,
and providing opportunities for people to save and plan for
the future is needed now more than ever.

Conclusion and outlook

Looking ahead, we will continue to step-up our support to
members and customers through challenging times. Our
ambition is to make a positive impact in order to tackle the
UK’s housing crisis by enabling more first-time buyers to
realise their homeownership aspirations. By responsibly
utilising our incredible data assets, we have a unique insight
across the UK housing market - it is our Group platform

that allows us to support members and customers in

every stage of the home-owning process - saving, buying,
protecting, retrofitting, selling and investing.

We have an opportunity to add even more value through
first-to-market products and excellent customer service
that responds to real and changing societal needs. Our
focus will continue on our three key strategic priorities as
we drive further value for our members and customers. We
will develop new capability to support more people into
homeownership and improve the customer journey for
buying and selling homes, whilst continuing to grow our
lettings business. We will also continue to invest more to
ensure our members receive above-market interest rates for
their savings and have access to free advice to help them
plan their financial futures.

| believe the Skipton Group has great potential to drive
transformative change in the UK housing market and
financial services industry, leveraging our collective Group
capability. Our Group brand will give us an elevated position
to drive change, influence decision-makers and a platform
to campaign on the issues that matter to our members, our
communities and wider society. We will do this by evolving
our ambitious performance culture, investing in colleagues
to enable them to succeed.

Sl

Stuart Haire
Group Chief Executive

27 February 2024
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Strategic Report

Skipton Building Society’s purpose is rooted in serving the needs
of our members - to help more people have a home, help people
save for life ahead and support long-term financial wellbeing.
This has been at the heart of all the actions we've taken this year.

The business model

The Skipton Group is headed by the UK's fourth largest
building society, and includes the UK’s largest estate
agency, with consolidated total assets of £37.2bn,
1,229,888 members and a 10% share of the estate agency
market (based on available properties); helping one in ten
individuals buy and sell homes in the UK.

In our 1715t year, we remain true to our founding purpose
from 1853; to help more people have a home, help people
save for life ahead and support long-term financial
wellbeing - it's what we do and why we're here.

The Skipton Group primarily comprises our Home Financing
and Money businesses within the Society, mortgage
lending and deposit taking by Skipton International

and buying & selling homes through our estate agency
business, Connells group. Sitting alongside our primary
businesses and supporting a thriving business model, the
Group also comprises Skipton Business Finance and Jade
Software Corporation. These Skipton Group businesses are
collectively how we achieve our purpose.

Our Home Financing business provides loans to borrowers
to purchase and own their home, whilst also supporting
the private rental sector through the provision of buy-to-
let mortgages to landlords. This is further strengthened
through our mortgage lending by Skipton International in
the Channel Islands.
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Our Money business brings together a secure place for our
members’ savings with the provision of high-quality free
advice, offering guidance to our customers to support their
long-term financial wellbeing. This provision of regulated
advice sets us apart from many of our peers.

Our Estate Agency business is focused on delivering for
customers and clients throughout the process of buying,
selling and renting homes. Through its network of brands
and branches nationwide, Connells group combines
residential sales expertise with a range of consumer and
corporate services including new homes, mortgage services
and conveyancing. The Connells group also supports
customers to have a home through its lettings business and
is also one of the largest providers of residential survey and
valuation services in the UK.

To supplement our core activities, we also source some of
our funding from the wholesale markets, which diversifies
our funding base and supports our financial stability; and
we use the additional capital generated by the Group to
think innovatively about how we can make the biggest
difference to support our members and customers now, and
in the future.

Our mutual status means we do not pay dividends, since we do not have external shareholders. Our profits are
therefore reinvested for both the short-term and long-term benefit of our members and customers, to support
sustainable growth, to modernise and remain relevant with new capabilities and propositions, and to preserve a
strong capital position that supports and protects our members, customers and creditors. By doing this, we are
building a stronger, more purposeful, and impactful Group. The Group's business model can be illustrated as follows:

Where the money comes from

+ Members' and customers’
deposits with the Society’s
Money business and Skipton
International
Wholesale markets

+ Retained earnings from
previous profits and dividends
from our Group businesses

What we use our profits for

+ Enhancing the customer
experience

+ Investing in the future of
the Group, including digital

capability with assistance from
Jade; whilst doubling down on

human interaction

+ Maintaining capital strength - we
have financial strength, a strong

track record and are growing
+ Leveraging Group assets to
drive additional value for
members in order to make
membership matter
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What we incur costs on

+ Paying and developing our colleagues

+ Property and operating costs
Mortgage and other impairment losses

+ Paying taxes

What we do with it

Provide mortgages through

the Society’s Home Financing
business and Skipton
International, to help more people
have a home:

+ Residential mortgages

+ Buy-to-let mortgages

Provide working capital facilities
to SMEs through Skipton
Business Finance

How we generate income

Net interest income in the Society

and Skipton International
The difference between the
interest receivable from our
borrowers and on our liquid
assets, and the interest
payable to our savers and on
wholesale funding

Other income

+ Provision of full financial
advice and other financial
products and services

Fees and commissions receivable

+ Through the process of buying,
selling and renting homes,
and other related services by
Connells group

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Strategic Report (continued)

The Group's operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Society Board (the Board) for the following key business
lines - these reportable segments, which have been revised
with effect from 1 January 2023 (see Note 42 for details),
are now assessed and presented at the operating

entity level:

The Society

As the UK's fourth largest building society, Skipton offers
mortgages, savings and financial advice - split between our
Home Financing and Money businesses; with a national
presence represented by our network of 82 branches.
Skipton Building Society is authorised by the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA) and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA) and the PRA.

Skipton International (SIL)

SIL carries out mortgage lending in the Channel Islands
and buy-to-let lending in the UK, and accepts deposits
in Guernsey from an international customer base. SIL
is licensed under the Banking Supervision (Bailiwick of
Guernsey) Law 2020, as amended, and regulated by the
Guernsey Financial Services Commission.

Connells group

Connells group is the UK's largest high street estate agency
and property services provider, with a 10% market share.
Across its 81 brands and network of over 1,200 branches
nationwide, Connells group combines residential sales

and lettings with a range of consumer and corporate
services including land and new homes, mortgage

services, conveyancing, auctions, surveying and valuations,
commercial property services through Lambert Smith
Hampton, Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) provision
and asset management.

Other

Interests in a small number of other business lines that are
not separately reportable are combined within the ‘Other’
category, together with the impact of Group consolidation
adjustments. These include:

+ Skipton Business Finance (SBF) — our invoice financing
provider of working capital facilities to small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs); and

+ Jade Software Corporation — a software solutions
provider based in New Zealand that specialises in digital
and large IT enterprise solutions, as well as being the
provider of our core database and software development
language.

This segment also includes Northwest Investments, the
intermediate holding company Skipton Group Holdings and
the Group’s special purpose vehicles, formed to acquire
funds from the wholesale markets.
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Promoting long-term success

The Board’s approach

Policies and practices

The business model set out on pages 14 and 15 details how
the Group generates long-term value and preserves a strong
capital position to protect our members and customers.

In order to achieve our purpose, in 2023 the Board set
defined long-term objectives built around three strategic
priorities. Throughout the year, the Board monitor progress
against these strategic priorities using a number of key
performance indicators that are reported to the Board and
senior management on an ongoing basis and are key to the
Board's oversight of the business and to its decision-making
process. For further details on the 2023 strategic priorities
and how we delivered against these see pages 20 to 25.

The Board and senior management are committed to
maintaining an inclusive culture where we continue

to invest in our colleagues’ skills, personal and career
development and well-being. Our colleagues are critical

to our success; by maintaining a strong culture and
empowering decision-making close to our members and
customers, we can deliver on our purpose. Respect for our
environment and the communities in which we operate is
also a key part of delivering on our purpose.

Corporate governance

The Board is responsible for determining the Group strategy
for managing risk and overseeing its systems of internal
control. The ongoing effectiveness of these internal
controls is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis, as
described in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Society maintains a high standard of corporate
governance for the benefit of its current and future
members and in order to conduct its business in a prudent
and well organised manner. The Board's terms of reference
clearly set out its responsibility for the overall stewardship
of the Group in line with the Society’s ‘Principles of
Governance’, as set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Decision-making

Achieving the right balance of risk and reward is essential
to ensuring the long-term sustainability of the Group and
enables us to deliver on our strategic priorities. Through
the Board Risk Committee approved risk management
framework and governance structure, the Group has a
formal mechanism for identifying and managing risks
throughout the business, further details of which can be
found in the Risk Management Report.

The Group's Corporate Plan is delivered in line with the risk
management framework and was approved by the Board
following a review of our strategic priorities. In setting our
strategic priorities we engage with our customers to find
out what is important to them and how we can best meet
their needs. We use this knowledge and insight to inform

and shape everything we do. These strategic priorities
together with a number of key performance indicators, are
key to the Board's management of the business and to its
decision-making process.

Strategy, priorities and objectives

Our purpose is to help more people have a home, help people
save for life ahead and support long-term financial wellbeing.

Our purpose has remained the same since our building
society was formed in 1853, and we have three key strategic
priorities which will also remain the same as we look ahead
to 2024; Help more people have a home, Make money work
harder and Make membership matter.

Leveraging our Group structure will enable us to keep
focused on purpose delivery; building a stronger, more
sustainable, and more powerful Group. This will be
supported by the development of our Group brand to give
us an elevated position to drive change, influence decision-
makers and provide a platform to campaign on the issues
that matter to our members, our communities and

wider society.

Our Group gives us a greater opportunity to give more to our
members, where they need it most. It provides us with

a diversified range of capabilities and enhanced

financial strength.

We're member-owned, and we have a responsibility to our
members to remain financially sustainable, generating profit
to invest back into our businesses for the future benefit of
members.

Our strategic priorities build on our 2023 foundations,
creating new business structures for our Home Financing,
Money and Estate Agency businesses, delivering core
capabilities for our customers and building our membership
proposition, in order to give back even more value when and
where it matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, our strategy is
about leveraging the power of the Skipton Group; we have
measured our performance against the three strategic
priorities we set for 2023 - details of our performance
against these priorities can be found on pages 20 to 25.

We have three key strategic priorities to deliver our purpose

Making Money
Work Harder

Making
Membership
Matter
Buying & Financing
Selling Homes Homes

Help More People Have a Home

Members, and brokers on behalf of members, want
us to provide finance to help them buy homes. We
will invest to create innovative products to help those
trying to get onto the housing ladder, specifically
focusing on first-time buyers where no such solutions
exist today. More information on how we have started
to deliver this in 2023 can be found on page 20.

% Make Money Work Harder

Helping people save is a founding purpose of our
Society and the centre piece of our mutual status,
and the Skipton Group has the ability to offer savings
and financial advice. Our aim is to help customers
make sure their money is in the best place to meet
their long-term financial wellbeing, identifying
opportunities to make their money work ‘harder’.

#°3R Make Membership Matter

We want to make membership matter by delivering
value to our members and customers through great
products and propositions that serve real needs,
alongside top-quality customer service.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Enabling Capability

It has been a transformative period for the Skipton Group

as we have implemented a new Group structure which is
aligned to our members’ needs; namely, financing their
homes (Home Financing), making their money work harder
(Money) and helping them buy and sell homes (Estate
Agency, Connells group). As part of this we have appointed
new leadership, whilst refining our operating model to
support even greater accountability, performance and
agility. We have welcomed new faces, who bring fresh ideas,
whilst also promoting our existing talent into leadership
positions throughout the organisation, including to the
Group Executive Committee. We are building an increasingly
diverse pipeline of talent and investing in our places of
work, both branches and the main support centres.

In support of this, the Society signed the Armed Forces
Covenant, committing to being a recognised employer and
supporter of Armed Forces personnel, as well as partnering
with WISE (Women in Science and Engineering), to ensure
gender parity across the Society by attracting, retaining, and
developing the best talent.

As we set ourselves up for further success, we have
refreshed our behaviours framework for our colleagues,
gaining their input and participation on what they value

as well as the target behaviours that they should role
model - being brave, being accountable, being curious

and being collaborative. This sits alongside our “cultural
clarity” work, renovating our culture to foster growth
mindsets and building on the great people attributes we
hold today. Throughout 2024 we will continue to build on
our culture and talent across our Group, bringing together
our people and processes to drive value for all. The
Society’'s Workday solution to support both our people and
finance functions has delivered new improved processes,
ensuring we have high performing platforms that can be
used for administration and reporting activity. Across our
finance teams, this has seen the completion of finance
transformation delivery, supporting more intelligent tracking
and forecasting for our planning cycles.

Further integration of the solution modules will continue
through 2024 and beyond as we build on the capability
we have embedded and roll out further across our Group,
particularly supporting talent management, colleague
engagement and people metrics.

Our Group technology and infrastructure has continued to
transform and enable our businesses throughout 2023 and
we have a clear roadmap of activity as we move into 2024
with our Corporate Plan. Our commitment to service for
our members, brokers and colleagues is driving significant
activity across our digital transformation programme, re-
platforming our businesses with a cloud first approach and
integrating third party software with high quality internally
built software.

In leveraging the power of our Group, we are starting the
journey to responsibly utilise our incredible data assets
which give us unique insights across the UK housing
market, where we can drive tangible and purposeful
difference and play a key role in societal challenges.
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We are changing the way we conduct our change activity as
we embark on a new year, becoming increasingly ambitious
and agile in our ways of working and operating model to
deliver more value and at pace to support our members

and communities. Aligned to our cultural renovation,

we will increase our agile maturity level as we embed
organisational agility.

Economic and market background

Throughout 2023 and into 2024, we face significant
uncertainty as the UK sees stubbornly higher prices and

a weakened growth outlook; placing real pressure on
household finances - we are fully aware of the impact this

is having on all our members. In order to curb inflation, the
Bank of England has repeatedly raised interest rates since
the end of 2021, increasing during 2022 from 0.25% to 3.5%
and in 2023 from 3.5% to 5.25%. Although inflation is falling,
and interest rates appear to be stabilising, the cost of living
challenges remain.

The housing market in 2023 saw demand reduce as
consumer confidence weakened amidst higher borrowing
costs. The sharp increase to interest rates in 2022,
exacerbated in September 2022 by adverse market reaction
to the UK government’s ‘mini-budget’, led to prolonged
mortgage market volatility as we entered 2023.

House prices have softened over the year, though not to
the extent some had forecasted. The outlook for 2024
remains subdued, but mortgage rates have now started to
reduce, with the Base Rate expected to have peaked, and
at a lower level than first predicted. However, it is expected
that interest rates will remain higher for longer. With
demand continuing to outstrip supply, the extent of further
reductions in house prices is uncertain.

Whilst unemployment remains relatively low with some
sectors struggling to fill vacancies, there has been growing
unrest amongst workers as wages fail to keep pace with
inflation; industrial action spread during the year amongst
both public and private sector workforces.

The Group's future performance will be impacted by the
performance of the UK economy as events and conditions
evolve. However, the Group remains robust, with strong
capital and liquidity ratios, healthy and sustainable growth
seen in both mortgage and savings balances, good
underlying profitability and a diversified business model.

Performance in the year 2023

We monitor our progress against our strategic objectives
that are set at the start of the year, using a number of

key performance indicators (KPIs) aligned to each of our
strategic priorities. These indicators are reported to the
Board and senior management on an ongoing basis and are
key to the Board’s management of the business and to its
decision-making process.

The Group's performance in 2023 is discussed on the pages
that follow.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Help more people have a home

We will continue to develop new capability to support more people into homeownership and improve
the customer journey for buying and selling homes, whilst continuing to grow our lettings business.

We want to help make societal change by facing into the
UK'’s housing crisis and enable more first-time buyers get
on to the property ladder for the first time. In May 2023 we
launched a new option for aspiring first-time buyers - our
Track Record mortgage which enables people trapped in
rental cycles to realise their homeownership aspirations, via
the only deposit-free mortgage. The value of this product
has been clearly demonstrated, with applications totalling
£62.4m already received since its launch. With the criteria
now extended to also include tenants that were previous
homeowners, we're enabling even more renters to access
the property ladder.

We support one in ten individuals looking to buy and sell
homes in the UK through our estate agency network; whilst
in 2023, the Home Financing business has supported 39%
more first-time buyers, providing specific financing for
19,120 first-time buyers in the year (including a record 1,925
completions in November). In 2023 around 33% of our new
lending was to first-time buyers; meaning we are well placed
to achieve our aim of completing 50% of our new lending to
first-time buyers by 2028.

SIL (based in Guernsey) has a UK mortgage proposition
specifically for UK buy-to-let investors resident overseas.
The offering is simple and hassle-free, available online, by
phone or video with a personal point of contact throughout
the whole process. Following a risk assessment visit by the
Guernsey Financial Services Commission (GFSC) in the year,
recommended enhancements were identified, which SIL

are in the process of addressing to strengthen its control
environment.

Mortgage advances grew by 6.3% and our Group mortgage
portfolio by 12.1% (2022: 9.6%), whilst maintaining our
prudent credit risk appetite. Despite the UK mortgage
market being stagnant for the majority of the year, Skipton
Group has increased its market share of balances to 1.69%
(2022: 1.49%) (Source: Bank of England statistics, ‘Lending
secured on dwellings’).

The Group's UK residential mortgages in arrears by three
months or more remained low, representing only 0.23% of
mortgage accounts (2022: 0.16%). This compares to the
industry average of 0.91% (Source: UK Finance industry
arrears data (residential mortgages in arrears by more than
three months)). This is testament to our strong up-front
lending controls and proactive credit management, whereby
we closely monitor and manage mortgages that have fallen
into arrears, working with borrowers to find solutions that
are appropriate for their individual circumstances.

Furthermore, the Society were a founding signatory to the
Mortgage Charter, which outlines the standards lenders
have agreed to uphold for customers affected by the
increase in mortgage rates and the elevated cost of living,
albeit this is only being used by a small proportion of our
borrowing members.

20 Annual Report & Accounts 2023

During the year, the Home Financing business has shielded
our variable rate mortgage customers from interest rate
rises, having the lowest Standard Variable Rate (SVR)/
Mortgage Variable Rate (MVR) amongst our peers at 6.50%
and 6.79% respectively (as at 31 December 2023); passing
on less than a third of the Bank of England base rate
changes - only 0.5% of the 1.25% rise in the year was passed
on to our borrowers. These steps are designed to recognise
the challenging economic time for our members.

In the year, we have also launched a small range of products
with a low rate of interest, made possible with a 5%
completion fee, available to existing customers who have
an upcoming maturity, intended for those who may struggle
to afford their monthly payments. This is just another way
that we're looking to support our customers and continue to
make membership matter to them.

The Home Financing business has enhanced its focus

on how we monitor our success to ensure we are always
providing outstanding experience to our members and
customers. This is reflected in the Home Financing
business’ strong net customer satisfaction score of

93% (2022: 93%) (being the percentage of members and
customers surveyed that scored satisfaction as 5,6 or 7
minus those scoring 1, 2 or 3 on a scale of 1-7). Our service
remained strong despite large application volumes, with
average time from application to offer of just 9.0 days.

Our commitment to listening to our borrowers and brokers
continues to be recognised, with Skipton being named
the What Mortgage Awards 2023 — Best National Building
Society for the 10" year in a row.

We will continue to invest in enhancing our service in 2024
through the optimisation of more self-service functionality
and streamlined processes for our borrowers.

The Connells group mortgage services proposition
continues to deliver for our customers and the number of
mortgages arranged by the group decreased by only 7%,
despite the prevailing challenging market conditions. The
number of properties on which Connells group exchanged
contracts during the year was 70,971 (2022: 87,395). Total
lending generated for UK mortgage providers during 2023
was £30.9bn (2022: £36.9bn).

The Connells group lettings business manages properties
on behalf of landlords, with the number of properties under
management at 31 December 2023 increasing to 125,666
(31 December 2022: 122,614).

As we move into 2024, we continue to explore further ways
to support new and existing borrowers with their lending
needs, primarily focusing on affordability challenges and
transitioning to a higher rate environment, helping first-time
buyers to achieve their home ownership ambitions and
mitigating against risks using technology and data. We will
use the power of our Group to test and learn, developing
opportunities to play our part in greening homes across

the industry.

Help more people have a home

Group gross mortgage
advances

Group net mortgage
growth

Number of first-time
buyers the Home
Financing business has
supported (note 1)

Home Financing net
customer satisfaction
score (note 2)

Group residential
mortgages in arrears by
three months or more

Number of properties
Connells group exchanged
contracts on

Letting properties under
management by Connells

group

Notes

To help more people have a
home through prudent and
controlled lending

To help more people have a
home through prudent and
controlled lending

To help more people on to
the housing ladder

To put our members and
customers at the heart of
our business

To manage and monitor
our arrears and credit risk
management, to ensure
appropriate solutions for
our borrowers

To help more people
through the customer
journey of buying and
selling homes

To help more people
access the rental market
and have a home

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

£6,700m

£3,089m

7,893

93%
93%

0.23%
0.16%
0.22%

70,971
87,395

[
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1. Reporting of first-time buyers comprised of products (i.e. mortgages), totalling 7,893 in 2021; we have since adapted our monitoring to focus on customer numbers,
whereby more than one person can be party to the mortgage.

2.

As measured from an in-house relationship survey of c¢.4,000 Home Financing and ¢.4,000 Money members and c.1,000 financial advice customers (with an annual
response rate of ¢.5,000). The customer satisfaction scores are calculated as the percentage of customers who are satisfied (those scoring satisfaction as 5, 6 or

7 minus those scoring 1, 2 or 3 on a scale of 1-7). Since 2022, we have enhanced our focus on how we monitor our success by considering each customer journey
separately - this helps ensure we are always providing outstanding experience to our customers, tailoring this between our Home Financing and Money propositions;
as a result, comparative data for 2021 is not available (instead a combined Society net customer satisfaction score was reported in 2021 of 86%).
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Strategic Report (continued)

Make money work harder

We will continue to invest more to ensure our members receive above-market interest rates for their
savings and have access to free advice to help them plan their financial futures.

As part of our commitment to paying a competitive savings
rate we have passed on 76% of the Bank of England base
rate changes in the year to our members, that equates

to an average of 1.33% of the 1.75% change in base rate
increases seen in 2023; meaning our minimum variable
savings rate has increased from 1.75% to 3.25% at the

year end. Furthering our commitment, in June we launched
a new highly competitive member benefit product in the
form of a regular saver that pays an interest rate of up to
7.5%, enabling members to make the most of their hard-
earned money. This provided over 68,000 new accounts for
our members, increasing their product holdings within the
Money business; and when these accounts mature after 12
months, we will pay more than £8.2m in interest, giving real
value to our members.

In addition, we have strengthened our proposition during
the year with the launch of a variety of limited offer savings
products, including a five-year fixed rate bond locking in

the current higher interest rates for longer, a competitively
priced single access saver allowing one withdrawal per year,
as well as tracker individual savings accounts (ISAs) and
bonus saver accounts which pay bonus interest over and
above our already favourable rates.

This has helped achieve record net monthly growth in
savings balances in November of £578m as people look
to maximise the return on their savings, spearheaded by
our marketing campaign ‘The Abandoned Billions’ which
is raising awareness of the c.£250bn held in UK current
accounts earning little to no interest, which could and
should be earning higher rates.

On average, we paid 0.65% higher interest (2022: 0.52%
higher interest) than the Rest of Market average for banks
and building societies (Source: CACI Current Account &
Savings Database, Stock , Jan - Dec 2023) - this equates to
an extra £148m in our members’ pockets.

The Money business’ competitive savings rates resulted in
total balances growing in the period by 15.4% to £26.0bn
(2022: 13.6% to £22.5bn), compared to the UK savings
market where net savings grew by only 1.9% (Source: Bank
of England Statistics).

We have achieved this growth without compromising on
service - our Money business achieved a net customer
satisfaction rating of 86% (2022: 88%) (being the percentage
of members and customers surveyed that scored
satisfaction as 5, 6 or 7 minus those scoring 1,2 or3 on a
scale of 1-7).

Reflecting our continued efforts to service the needs of our
members, we have maintained our award-winning customer
service, consistently ranking towards the top of cross
industry customer service league tables.
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This was evidenced by Fairer Finance who awarded our
Money business’ savings accounts ‘Gold’ in their latest
customer experience ratings; this is down to the skills, care
and empathy with which our customer facing colleagues
engage our members through the human touch.

Being the UK's first and one of the biggest providers of
the cash Lifetime ISA (LISA), we now hold balances of
£1.2bn (2022: £1.1bn) for LISA customers saving hard for
their first home or for later life; these customers benefited
from Government bonuses in the period of £49.5m (2022:
£59.3m).

Forming part of our Group, SIL offers some of the best
offshore interest rates whilst being committed to providing
personal service - a winning combination when depositing
money in an offshore savings account. SIL offers Sterling
and US Dollar savings in fixed rate bonds, notice and easy
access accounts.

As part of our broad advice offering, we also provide
financial advice to our members. This year we have focused
on how we make that more accessible, by providing free
advice to our members, helping with their savings and
investment goals, in order to make their money work harder.
As part of this, we have moved the vast majority of our
customer assets to a cheaper and more flexible proposition
offering, providing better value for their funds, and closing
our Monitored Informed Investing (MII) service. In 2023,

we supported 6,000 customers with financial advice
(2022:7,835). Funds under management, as part of our
financial advice offering, totalled £4.3bn as at 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: £3.9bn).

In August 2023, we also launched a free pension health
check to enable our members to make more of their money
now, and in the future, to have the retirement they deserve.

From 2024, we will continue to broaden access to advice,
through education, tools and our expert colleagues, enabling
simplification of our advice journeys and raising awareness
of our propositions for our members. We aim to increase
advice cases by 200% over the life of our Corporate Plan

by making our advice accessible to all, delivering real value
back to our members through our commitments.

Our high quality and innovative products will continue

to be at the forefront of providing members with more
value, including delivering these through more digital first
interactions, supported by our expert colleagues and the
human touch.

Make money work harder

Rate of interest paid
above market average
(Money business only)
(note 1)

Growth in member
savings balances
(Money business only)

Money net customer
satisfaction score (note 2)

Increase in offshore
funding balances (in SIL)

Number of financial
advice customers

Funds under
management (FUM)

Notes

To ensure we are paying
a fair and competitive
savings rate to our
members and customers

To help more members
save for their future

To put our members and
customers at the heart of
our business

To help more customers
save for their future

To help more customers
plan their financial futures

To help our members and
customers’ money work
harder

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

%

£1,087m

£4,108m

1. Calculated as the average rate of interest we have paid over and above that paid by the Rest of Market average for banks and building societies in the twelve months
to 31 December 2023 (Source: CACI Current Account & Savings Database, Stock, Jan - Dec 2023).

As measured from an in-house relationship survey of ¢.4,000 Home Financing and ¢.4,000 Money members and ¢.1,000 financial advice customers (with an annual
response rate of ¢.5,000). The customer satisfaction scores are calculated as the percentage of customers who are satisfied (those scoring satisfaction as 5, 6 or

7 minus those scoring 1, 2 or 3 on a scale of 1-7). Since 2022, we have enhanced our focus on how we monitor our success by considering each customer journey
separately - this helps ensure we are always providing outstanding experience to our customers, tailoring this between our Home Financing and Money propositions;
as a result, comparative data for 2021 is not available (instead a combined Society net customer satisfaction score was reported in 2021 of 86%).

2.
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AR

Key to our purpose and sitting at the heart of our collective
Group businesses is membership. Success comes from
growing membership in a sustainable manner, bringing the
benefits of membership to an increasing number of people.
In the year, membership numbers grew by 92,328, taking our
total membership base to 1,229,888 (2022: 1,137,560).

The branch network continues to play a key role in the
Group's future plans. The Society currently has 82 branches
(with the wider Group totalling over 1,300 branches
including those of Connells group). In September, five

of the Society’s branches closed following a review of
member usage, nearby alternatives and associated costs
to maintain presence at these locations; we concluded this
did not represent good value to members in these areas.
However, we will continue to invest in our network to ensure
our branches remain relevant now and in future, as well as
helping our members and customers in the different ways
they choose to interact with us, such as by telephone, video,
webchat and through our digital assets.

In 2022 we launched our Energy Performance Certificate
(EPC) Plus proposition, partnering with Vibrant Energy, a
Skipton Group company, to offer a free EPC Plus report
which includes advice on how to improve the energy
efficiency and carbon footprint of homes. This offer of a free
EPC Plus was extended to all Society savings and mortgage
members in January 2023, as we look to scale and develop
this proposition. Since launch in November 2022, 9,559
surveys have been conducted providing over £710k of
benefit to our members, with a further 117 scheduled (as of
December 2023).

As part of our continued focus on maintaining very high
service standards for our members and customers, we
have increased headcount in customer facing areas which
has allowed us to increase contact volumes, meeting the
needs of our customers without compromising on service
standards, and providing additional capacity for colleagues
to truly ‘add value’. Time taken to answer mortgage-related
calls and webchats is 79 seconds, whilst for savings-related
calls and webchats it is 156 seconds, despite increased
call volumes seen over ISA season. This has enabled us to
maintain a strong Trustpilot rating of 4.3 stars out of 5 (31
December 2022: 4.4 stars).

In the year, the Society was awarded the CCA Global
Accreditation for Customer Experience recognising our
commitment to driving service excellence; whilst Skipton
International has been awarded the Platinum Trusted
Service Provider Award by Feefo. Our commitment to our
members through our products and services has also

been recognised by independent third parties across both
mortgages and savings, being awarded Top Rated lender
status in every category of the Mortgage Finance Gazette
& Mortgage Solutions Rated for Service Awards 2023,

and the winner of the Best Fixed Rate Mortgage and Best
Overall Mortgage Lender at the 2023/2024 Personal Finance
Awards; our Cash ISA product also won highly commended
alongside best personal finance brand as we continue to
focus on providing real member benefit.
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Make membership matter

Our members will see and feel the value of Skipton membership.

Whilst we strive to get things right for our customers first
time, every time, we recognise that on occasion things can
go wrong and our customers may have cause for complaint.
We aim to deal with these complaints efficiently and with
empathy, putting right what has gone wrong. A measure

of our success in doing this is the percentage of Society
complaints referred to the Financial Ombudsman Service
(FOS) that have their outcomes changed. The Society's
change in outcome rate for the first six months of 2023 was
21% (full year 2022: 26%). This compared favourably with
the financial services industry average of 37% for the first
six months of 2023, being the latest available comparable
market data (Source: FOS complaints data (resolved cases)).

We continue to enhance our service capabilities and
improve the customer experience. Through our digital
transformation programme we are further upgrading our
Home Financing and Money businesses’ digital capability
which sits alongside our human touch and member centric
service. Focus this year has been on the foundations to
support our transformation, including confirmation of payee;
a new digital way for authentication; increasing the use of
digital customer communications; and new Skipton App
capability, including functionality for customers to open new
ISA accounts and do electronic ISA transfers at a time and a
place convenient to them on the App.

As part of enhancing our digital and human service, we are
also adapting our services to become more accessible and
inclusive. Amongst many initiatives, for Society members
and customers we have added British Sign Language (BSL)
interpretation to the disclosure videos in branch and started
to introduce service counters that now have a lowered
central section, making them more accessible; whilst in
June we joined the Hidden Disabilities scheme.

The Skipton Group is committed to donating 1% of its pre-
tax profit to charity each year. For 2023 this means donating
over £2.9m to good causes and for 2024 we are introducing
a strategic charity partner vote to ensure members have
their say over how we donate a proportion of our profits.

We will deliver these funds through purposeful and aligned
charity partnerships, one of which is the Skipton Building
Society Charitable Foundation (which has now donated over
£3m since its launch in 2000) and through colleague and
community schemes.

Looking ahead we will proactively and consistently
demonstrate the value of membership, making it tangible,
accessible and engaging for all. We want our members

to have a more prominent voice in our future, and aim

to increase our member participation within our Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and further participative activity by
increasing our number of members on panel to 25,000 by
2025.

Our roadmap continues to build on our member proposition
today, providing member exclusives, and personalised
experiences, and empowering our colleagues to recognise
members for their loyalty.

Make membership matter

Total member numbers
(Society only)

Growth in membership
numbers (Society only)
(note 1)

Free EPC Plus reviews
carried out (note 2)

Society Financial
Ombudsman Service
(FOS) complaints -
change in outcome rate
(note 3)

Society Trustpilot rating
(out of 5 stars)

Notes

To ensure we are attracting
and retaining members

To ensure we are attracting
and retaining members

To help members
understand how to make
homes more energy
efficient

To ensure we are treating
customers fairly

To put our members and
customers at the heart of
our business

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

1,229,888
1,137,560
1,082,997

8,456

1. Included as a key measure in the executive directors’ remuneration policy calculations. For further details see the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

2. The free EPC Plus assessment and bespoke report offer was first announced in November 2022, hence comparative data as at 31 December 2021 is not applicable.

3. As published by FOS in September 2023 in respect of the six-month period to 30 June 2023 (being the latest available data - published every six months);
comparatives have been updated to reflect the final position for the twelve months to 31 December 2022 - this information was not available at the time of
publication for the respective period. The Society rate of 21% compares favourably to the industry average of 37%.
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Responsible and sustainable

It is essential that businesses take action to help tackle the
profound environmental and social challenges our country
and our planet face. This is a responsibility we place
significant importance on. As a member-owned business,
the long-term best interests of members and customers are

the priority, rather than profit maximisation for shareholders.

The Skipton Group is united by a common purpose to help
more people have a home, help people save for life ahead
and support long-term financial wellbeing. We believe this
is the most significant contribution we can make to building
a better, more sustainable society fit for the future. Our
strategy for making positive change aligns with the United
Nations (UN) Sustainable Development Goals. The Group's
approach is also underpinned by an alignment with the UN
Principles for Responsible Banking to which our banking
businesses, the Society and SIL, are signatories.

We are at the start of our journey to establish a Group-
wide approach to sustainability and are working to

further embed maturity and alignment of our processes
across our core businesses in the years to come. In
September 2023, we commenced a process to update our
Materiality Assessment, to better understand the common
sustainability issues, from which we will look to set our
future priorities and strategy. Our next Group Sustainability
Report, to be published on our website later in 2024, will
further outline our approach.

Greener homes

In 2023 we observed significant economic challenges

for our members, our colleagues and wider stakeholders.
Ongoing higher energy costs combined with the UK’s poorly
insulated housing stock put a significant strain on the
finances of many households, hitting those on the lowest
incomes the hardest. That's why we will play our part to
support customers with retrofitting and making homes
more energy efficient, in line with national net zero targets.
Our ability, and the ability of our customers, to achieve net
zero are heavily reliant on external factors. These include
the actions of the UK Government and clear, early policy
intervention, specifically those linked to upskilling and
suitable home retrofit funding schemes.

In November 2023, we announced our plans to conduct a
residential property retrofit study, together with academic
partners Leeds Beckett University and Leeds University. The
study will help the Group to develop a deeper understanding
of the costs, behaviours and experiences faced when
undertaking a retrofit and to identify ways to support and
promote access to a wider cross-section of customers.

We continue to work with our Group company, Vibrant
Energy, to offer Society members and colleagues a free
home energy performance certificate assessment, with

an additional report including recommendations for
improvement opportunities and funding options where
available (EPC Plus). The private rental sector plays a
significant role in the UK housing mix, so we have extended
this free offer to our Society buy-to-let landlord customers,
available for up to 10 properties in a portfolio. In addition,
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our green additional borrowing products are available for
any existing members who are looking to make energy
efficient home improvements.

Access to finance

Getting on the property ladder has become increasingly
challenging, and we recognise that financial assistance

is often essential for aspiring homeowners. In May 2023,
we launched our Track Record product, a unique 100%
loan-to-value (LTV) mortgage where no deposit is required,
designed as a route to home ownership for customers in
rented accommodation, who may otherwise struggle to
save a deposit.

In an increasingly complex landscape of mortgage terms
and product names, first-time buyers can often overlook
mortgage options that could potentially help them. This
year we ran a programme to reduce jargon and support
first-time buyers to be aware of all the options available to
them. For example, we renamed our Joint Borrower, Sole
Proprietor product as the Income Booster scheme, which
can increase the borrowing amount through assessing the
main applicant’s income along with the income of up to
three friends or family.

This year we have focused on improving access to financial
guidance in branches, especially for members with lower
savings balances. We offer free reviews to our members to
help with their savings and investment goals and to support
long-term financial wellbeing. In August 2023, we also
launched a free pension health check for our members.

We also recognise that many financial advice customers
want the option to invest in ways that are aligned to their
values, and we have a set of investment options which
integrate environmental, social and governance criteria, to
screen out certain products or industries, such as those
which produce tobacco, controversial weapons, and
thermal coal.

Charitable giving

Through our commitment to donate 1% of Group pre-tax
profits each year, we are helping tackle significant societal
challenges on behalf of members and colleagues, aligned
to our purpose and Group strategic priorities. We will be
introducing a strategic charity partner vote at the 2024
AGM to enable members to have their say in how we donate
a proportion of this money to charity. This is part of our
commitment to make membership matter.

Our charitable giving will help members and wider society
overcome barriers preventing people from having a home,
accessing financial advice and education, and driving an
increase in awareness and action to support the greener
homes agenda.

Responsible supply chain

The Society works in partnership, and closely monitors
relationships with key suppliers. On an ongoing basis
we assess any risk of adverse impact, on our customers,
colleagues or the environment, as a result of these

relationships. Suppliers’ service-delivery is tracked against
key performance indicators to ensure the service provided
is of an acceptable standard.

We are also working with EcoVadis, a sustainability ratings
provider, to assess the sustainability standards within

our supply chain. The platform enables us to monitor

our suppliers’ approach to sustainability across a set of
indicators, covering environment, labour and human rights,
ethics and sustainable procurement. The data and expertise
provided by EcoVadis enables us to develop a greater
understanding of our supply chain. We plan to continue
reviewing this data for the purposes of assessing and,
where practicable, decarbonising our supply chain.

Ethical and transparent

The Group is committed to a zero-tolerance approach to
instances of bribery or corruption across any area of our
business. We have anti-corruption and anti-bribery policies
in place in each business line, which prohibit the offering,
giving, solicitation or the acceptance of any bribe to or from
any person or company by any individual colleague, agent
or other person or body acting on behalf of the Skipton
Group. The policies are readily available to view on our
intranet and we require our colleagues and employees to
complete annual training to refresh their knowledge.

The Society’s Board fully supports the objectives of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015, further details of which can be
found at skipton.co.uk/about-us/governance.

The Group also has regard to the above matters as part of
our risk assessment processes; a full description of our
principal risks and how we manage these is found in the
Risk Management Report.

Diversity and inclusion

Our aim remains to further build on progress made to
ensure our colleagues feel valued, respected and able

to perform to their potential. We seek to provide a work
environment that is safe and accessible, free from unfair
treatment, discrimination and harassment and gives fair
access to learning, development, reward and promotion
opportunities.

We have a range of policies and practices which support
these aims and monitor their application. In relation

to gender specifically, the Society has seen a higher
representation of women amongst its senior leaders,
which is 50% at present (2022: 45%). When we signed

the Women in Finance Charter in 2019, we agreed to a
number of pledges that we can measure over time. It also
demonstrates our commitment to gender equality and
supports our belief that diversity of thought results in a
better Society for our customers. Progress reports against
these pledges are included in our Gender Pay Report,
published annually in April.

The Society’s latest Gender Pay report, published in April
2023, highlights actions we've taken to increase the number
of female applicants for senior roles. We are strengthening
our Employee Resource Groups, and focussing on data to
understand our workforce so we can develop evidenced
based and data driven initiatives. Our partnership with WISE
(Women in Science and Engineering) helps us to further
embed our commitment to ensuring gender parity across
the Society and we will be working closely with WISE to
ensure we attract, retain, and develop the best talent across
the organisation.

Furthermore, we are continually reviewing and improving
our People Policies, with current work on developing a
Colleague Transition policy which will outline the support
and assistance that can be provided to colleagues who are
undergoing gender reassignment.
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The number of employees of each gender employed in the Group and the Society as at 31 December 2023 is outlined below:

Percentage Percentage

100.0%

Executive directors

Other Society senior leaders
Senior leaders
Non-executive directors

Other employees

Percentage Percentage

100.0%

Executive directors (note 1)

Senior managers (note 2)

Non-executive directors (note 1)

Other employees (note 3)

Notes
1. Society Board Directors only.

32
35
5
945

985

42

45

7,843

7,893

35
35

3
1,366

1,404

35

35

10,219

10,257

67
70

8
2,311

2,389

7

80

18.062

18,150

2. Consists of the Society's senior leaders (other than executive directors) and the executive directors of the subsidiaries.

3. Including senior managers of the subsidiaries.

More detailed reporting on diversity and pay by gender within the Society is available on our website skipton.co.uk.
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47.8%

50.0%

62.5%

40.9%

41.2%

54.5%

56.3%

62.5%

43.4%

43.5%

0.0%

52.2%

50.0%

37.5%

59.1%

58.8%

0.0%

45.5%

43.7%

37.5%

56.6%

56.5%

Climate-related disclosures

Climate change is happening right now, and the stakes couldn’t be higher at this defining moment for society. We recognise

our important role to act and have committed to play a vital part in encouraging and enabling at-scale decarbonisation of
UK homes, whilst continuing to reduce the impact of our own operations.

As a Group we continue to embed climate resilience in our decision-making. We support the recommendations of the
Financial Stability Board's Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and present information against the
TCFD reporting framework, under the four pillars: Governance, Strategy, Risk management and Metrics and targets, as set
out below.

Further details on how we manage climate-related risk can be found in the Skipton Climate-related Disclosures Report
published on our website skipton.co.uk.

Governance

Governance across the Skipton Group around climate-related risks and opportunities

Board oversight of climate-related risks and
opportunities

The Society’s Board of Directors has delegated
oversight of climate-related risk for the Society and its
subsidiary businesses to the Board Risk Committee,
although ultimate oversight continues to reside with the
Society's Board.

Board Risk Committee (BRC)

In 2023, the BRC was informed about climate-related
issues on four separate occasions. Recent areas of
focus include assessment of:

+ climate risk scenario design;
+ Group scenario analysis results;

+ mortgage credit risk climate risk management
information; and

« credit risk appetite limits.
The Board Remuneration Committee

ESG performance is linked to remuneration through the
Single Variable Pay Arrangement (SVPA), the incentive
scheme in which the executive team participates.

The measures used to calculate outcomes under this
scheme are selected because they directly support our
ESG purpose, strategic priorities and goals. For further
disclosure on performance objectives please refer to
the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Management's role in assessing and managing climate-
related risks and opportunities

The Group Executive Committee and the boards of
subsidiary firms are responsible for the proactive
management of the financial and operational risks
arising from climate change and the strategy to

mitigate these risks. The Group monitors and manages
climate risk and the Society has embedded capabilities
to meet the requirements of the PRA’s Supervisory
Statement 3/19 (SS3/19) ‘Enhancing banks' and
insurers’ approaches to managing the financial risks
from climate change'.

Senior Management Function responsibility for the
identification and management of the financial risks
from climate change in 2023 was the Group Chief Risk
Officer.

The Climate Change Risk Forum (CCRF) is an ad-hoc
forum including senior representation from around
the Group, to coordinate activity associated with the
identification, assessment and monitoring of climate
risk.

During 2023, the CCRF reviewed:

+ the key physical and transition risks to which the
Group and the Society are exposed; and

+ the climate risk scenario analysis.

The Stress Testing Steering Group is responsible for
review and challenge of the design of the climate risk
scenarios, the assumptions applied and the outputs
with final approval provided by the BRC.

The Group Chief Risk Officer maintains regular
oversight of subsidiary businesses in relation to risk
management. Connells group operates a group Audit &
Risk Committee which reports directly to the Connells
board. Management responsibility for financial risks
from climate change is allocated to the Connells
group Interim Chief Finance Officer. For the other main
subsidiaries, the management responsibility sits with
the respective CEOs and boards.
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Strategy

Actual and potential impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on Skipton Group's

businesses, strategy, and financial planning

Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities the
organisation has identified over the short, medium, and
long-term

During 2023, the Climate Change Risk Forum completed
a review of our key climate-related risks that are likely to
impact the Group over the short, medium and long-term
and assessed any new or evolving risks. Further details
on the potential risks identified can be found in the
Skipton Climate-related Disclosures Report published
on our website skipton.co.uk.

The risks have been split into transitional risk and

physical risk and a time horizon has been assigned to

each risk:

+ Short-term: 1<5 years, aligned with the Group
financial planning horizon

+ Medium term: 5-10 years, covering the main horizon
for key transition risks

+ Long-term: 10+ years, covering the future position
including key physical risks

Climate change also presents potential opportunities,
for example to build business resilience and develop
new products, for our customers.

Impact of climate-related risks and opportunities
on organisational business, strategy and financial
planning:

We have considered the impact of transitioning to

a low-carbon economy and the physical risks from
climate change. Consideration was also given to the
impact of climate risks on our Group going concern
assessment - please see the Directors' Report. An
assessment of climate change on the Society's
financial statements has been conducted and
separately Connells group have considered the financial
impact of the risks on its income and costs, business
strategy and financial planning.

While climate-related risk may impact our business
model in a range of ways, the most material potential
impact relates to credit risk in our residential mortgage
portfolio. Changes in climate have the potential to
increase the frequency and severity of physical risks,
which could lead to an increasing number of properties
subject to physical flooding or subsidence. This could
potentially result in a decrease in the valuation of

the property which is used as collateral to mitigate
mortgage credit risk. In addition, transitional risks
associated with progress towards a net zero economy
could lead to reduced property valuations or affect a
borrower’s ability to service their mortgage loan.

The Society has set quantitative Credit Risk Appetite
limits to manage the financial risks from climate
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change. Limits have been set for the physical and
transition risks identified as high-risk segments from
the annual scenario analysis activity. We manage

our climate risk exposures where possible and have
implemented enhanced lending controls for flooding
and coastal erosion to provide further physical risk
mitigation. We continue to monitor Energy Performance
Certificate (EPC) transition risk to track mortgage
portfolio property retrofitting.

We are also taking action to help our customers’
transition towards a net zero carbon economy,
including:

+ playing a bigger role to support the improvement
of energy efficiency of UK homes and to support
our customers to improve their residential energy
efficiency; and

+ continued exploration of ways for customers to
access funds for home improvements.

Resilience of the strategy, taking into consideration
different climate-related scenarios, including a below
2°C rise in global temperature scenario

To help inform our strategic planning and determine
the impact of the financial risks from climate change
on our overall risk profile and business strategy, in
2023 we performed detailed quantitative analysis, with
qualitative assessments for less material exposures.
In each case, through the combination of existing risk
management practices and existing climate-related
actions, no areas of concern were identified.

The most significant risks are primarily focused on the
impact of climate change on our residential mortgage
portfolio. Dedicated quantitative climate risk stress
testing on the Group’s credit risk management was
conducted across five climate risk scenarios, including
a below 2°C scenario, informed by the Bank of England
Climate Biennial Exploratory Scenarios (CBES).

This included assessing the residential lending portfolio
at property level to determine the potential impact of
key climate-related physical and transitional risks. A
quantitative assessment of IFRS 9 Expected Credit
Losses (ECL) for the credit risk in the residential
mortgage portfolio (excluding equity release) was also
performed.

In addition, our estate agency business considered
the relevant scenarios and performed quantitative

modelling of a below 2°C scenario, with additional

assumptions for the volume of properties sold.

Further details of our scenario analysis can be found in
the Climate-related Disclosures Report published
on our website skipton.co.uk.

Risk management

How Skipton Group identifies, assesses, and manages climate-related risks

Processes for identifying and assessing
climate-related risk

The annual climate risk impact assessment seeks to
identify potential risks that could result in financial or
reputational damage and is reviewed by the Climate
Change Risk Forum (CCRF). Through the CCRF we
review climate-related risks to which the Group is
exposed. We continue to refine and enhance our
approach as new data and best practice emerges.

The assessment to identify risks involves relevant
subject matter experts from across the Group and
considers the likelihood of risk crystallisation and
potential risk impact to the Group and our customers.
We continue to make progress to develop a more
consistent and collaborative Group approach as
subsidiaries continue to evolve their understanding of
climate risk across their individual businesses.

Processes for managing climate-related risks

Consideration of climate risk is incorporated into
relevant first line processes, risk appetites and control
frameworks. With respect to mortgage credit risk,
identified as our key climate-related risk, our current
controls for managing new lending include conducting
a physical inspection of the property for higher loan to
values, where any known flood risk or risk of coastal
erosion will be reflected in the valuation.

Any postcode identified as potentially at risk of future
coastal erosion requires a desktop or physical survey to
capture local knowledge of the risks to each property.
The Society’s loan conditions require insurance at the
point of completion which provides assurance that

the property is insurable at that point in time. Our

concentration risk rules have also been enhanced to
consider flood risk.

How processes for climate-related risks are integrated
into overall risk management

Our ongoing approach to credit risk management is
carefully considered, based on experience from our
stress scenario analysis. Regular monitoring provides
oversight of any emerging concentration risks on the
mortgage portfolio.

We continue to be prudent and proportionate in our
approach; balancing the risks with any adverse impacts
on our members and the wider UK housing market.

Risk management framework

Our climate-related risk management processes

are aligned and integrated into the Group’s risk
management processes. The Group has a formal
structure for identifying and managing risks throughout
the business. This framework is designed to deliver

the Corporate Plan in line with the Board'’s overall risk
appetite and is based upon the three lines of defence
risk management model with risks rated on magnitude
and likelihood.

Climate risk is managed in other risk areas through
various mechanisms including consideration as part of
the Internal Capital and Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Processes (ICAAP and ILAAP) and the inclusion of
climate-related risks within our Operational Risk
Framework.

Further details on climate risk are included in the
principal risks and uncertainties section of the Risk
Management Report.
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«>97  Metrics and targets
alil

Metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevant climate-related risks

Metrics and targets the Group uses to assess and
manage relevant climate-related risks and opportunities

The metrics used to monitor climate-related risks are:

+ Society mortgage portfolio properties classed in the
highest flood risk category

+ Society mortgage portfolio properties classed in the
highest subsidence risk category

+ Society mortgage portfolio properties at risk of being
impacted by coastal erosion

+ Society mortgage portfolio properties by current EPC
category assessment level

+ Connells group professional indemnity claims
caused by physical climate change

Skipton’s Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 GHG emissions

Across the Skipton Group we continue to collect data
to provide information on energy used and emissions
we generate across our operations. This year we have
reported our emissions on a Group-wide basis.

Our Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions relate to the energy
we use to operate our branches and offices, and
transport for our employees. Most of our operations
are based in the UK, with smaller facilities in Guernsey,
Jersey and New Zealand. Our Scope 1 and 2 location-
based emissions have reduced slightly in 2023.

We aim to purchase 100% renewable electricity tariffs,
with a renewable energy guarantee of origin (REGO) for
our own operations. We also sourced a green gas tariff,

+ Greenhouse gas (GHG) footprint across Scope 1
and 2

+ Estimations of Skipton's Scope 3 emissions,
including financed emissions for the mortgage
portfolio

The Society continues to monitor and manage physical
and transition risk impacts across our mortgage
portfolio and has quantitative portfolio credit risk
appetite limits to directly manage physical risks.

Please refer to the Directors’ Remuneration Report for
further details on the integration of climate-related
performance indicators through the Single Variable Pay
Arrangement (SVPA).

with renewable gas certification, across the Society
offices and branches in 2023. Operational energy
reduction actions over this last year have included
switching to more energy-efficient lighting across
the branch network. We have also been investigating
improved building insulation options.

We report Scope 3 data covering financed emissions
from our lending for our residential, buy-to-let and
commercial mortgage portfolio (Society and SIL).
Despite the increase in scope 3 emissions - due to a
higher number of mortgages in 2023 — there are signs
of a very minor shift in the mortgage book towards a
higher average EPC rating.

GHG emissions and energy data

Scope 1 and 2 (note 1) mm

Emissions from operating offices, branches

el and company vehicles (tCO,e) 4,395 4.848
Scope 2 (location-based) (Etrgios;sei)ons from the purchase of electricity 5,737 5,462
Total Scope 1 & 2 energy usage including company vehicles (kWh) 46,114,596 50,350,561
Total Scope 1 & 2 emissions (location-based) 10,132 10,310

% from UK operations 99.5% 99.3%
Scope 1 & 2 location-based emissions intensity ratio (tCO,e / £m turnover) 6.52 6.84

Financed emissions —
mortgage lending (t/CO.e)
2

Notes

Category 15 emissions from residential,
buy-to-let and commercial mortgage portfolio 288,033 267,903

1. For Scope 1 and 2 data, where actuals data was not available, consumption was either estimated from the average consumption or proxy data used.
2. The Scope 3 financed emissions have been calculated in line with the Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF) methodology and using

some of PCAF’s emission factors.

We recognise that there are certain limitations in the
collection of such data which will affect both the
metrics and our targets, and the usefulness of this data
for our strategic decision-making.

The targets used to manage climate-related risks and
opportunities and performance against targets

We are committed to reducing the impact of our
operations on the environment and to playing our

part in achieving the UK economy net zero target by
2050. The Society have a target to halve Scope 1, 2
and operational Scope 3 carbon emissions by 2030
and achieve net zero Scope 1, 2 and 3 (operational and
financed) carbon emissions by 2045.

We recognise, to reach our net zero target, there are
many factors and uncertainties beyond our control
and require the involvement of others including policy
makers, governments, suppliers, and customers. We
appreciate that these may impact on our ability to
meet our climate-related targets, or make them more
challenging, and there is a risk that all or some of them
will not be achieved.

Financial strength

Our financial strength is based on creating mutual value for members, customers, colleagues and communities for
generations to come. To do that, we maintain our strong capital and liquidity positions so we can invest to improve the
Society and remain resilient in challenging conditions.

Financial strength is monitored through the following KPlIs:
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Key Performance Indicator Strategic Goal _ R:ft(;luesrsed

Financial Strength

Total Group profit before tax

Underlying Group profit
before tax *

Group net interest margin
(% of mean assets)

Society cost income ratio *
(note 1)

Society cost to mean asset
ratio A

Group retail funding as a
percentage of total funding

Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR)

Prudential Group Common
Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio
(note 2)

Prudential Group Leverage
ratio (note 2)

Notes

* Included as a key measure in the executive directors’ remuneration policy calculations. For further details see the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

To ensure we generate
the necessary capital to
grow the business

To ensure we generate
the necessary capital

to grow the business
regardless of any costs
or benefits not arising
from the Group's ongoing
trading operations

To manage the earnings
of our business

To maintain a
manageable cost base to
ensure our core business
remains efficient

To maintain a
manageable cost base to
ensure our core business
remains efficient

To ensure we fund

the majority of our
mortgages through retail
savings, in line with our
customer proposition

To ensure we hold
sufficient levels and
quality of liquidity

To ensure the Group
remains financially
strong by having a strong
(risk weighted) capital
base

To ensure the Group
remains financially
strong by having a strong
(non-risk weighted)
capital base

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

2023
2022
2021

£333.4m
£298.8m
£271.8m

£308.6m

£297.7m

1.53%
1.35%
1.03%

47.0%
50.5
56.6%

0.72
0.6
0.60%

83.2

£

78.9%
80.2%

173
175
173%

26.3%
25.8%
44.6%

6.7%
6.8%
6.8%

| | a\a
AN Y )
oY 3

£

Pages 36
to 41

Pages 36
to 41

Page 37

Pages 39
and 40

Pages 39
and 40

Pages 42
and 43

Pages 41
and 42

Pages 43
and 44

Pages 43
and 44

A The comparative figures are restated for 2022 and 2021 to show the Society only position (previously the Mortgage and Savings division position) following a
revision of the Group's reportable segments with effect from 1 January 2023, as set out in Note 42.

N —
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These ratios apply International Financial Reporting Standard 9 (IFRS 9) transitional arrangements.

. For the purposes of this ratio, costs and income exclude items that are not included in arriving at underlying Group profit before tax (as defined on page 35).

Despite the heightened economic uncertainty, the Group
achieved a profit before tax (PBT) in 2023 of £333.4m (2022:
£298.8m). The Society has had a strong year, generating
profits of £283.7m (2022: £160.9m), principally due to
opportunities arising from improved net interest income and
margins, whilst providing sustainable value to our members,
which have benefited from further increases in the Bank

of England base rate. In contrast, high inflation and rising
interest rates have dampened consumer confidence in the
housing market impacting the results of the Connells group.
Revenue in the period of £950.9m was 7.7% below last year
(2022: £1,030.3m). Consequently, Connells group realised a
reduced PBT of £13.8m (2022: £67.5m profit).

We continue to grow our mortgage and savings balances
strongly. Our mortgage balances remain mostly funded

by retail deposits, in line with our mutual ethos, whilst we
also make use of longer-term funding from the wholesale
markets and have also retained some funding previously
drawn down through the Bank of England’s now closed
‘Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs’
(TFSME) scheme. This balanced approach helps us align
the duration of our funding with the longer-term mortgages
many of our members want, whilst also continuing to

offer competitive savings rates for members. It remains
imperative that our funding costs are sustainable, so we
can generate the profits needed to maintain our capital
strength, for current and future members.

The Group maintains sufficient levels of high-quality liquid
assets in order to support growth plans and recognise
market uncertainty. Stress testing scenarios are regularly
run to help ensure we remain within our liquidity risk
appetite and meet all regulatory requirements. Extreme
economic scenarios are also run to ensure our contingency
plans remain robust.

Managing our cost base remains a key component of our
strategy. For the Group, administrative expenses increased
in 2023 by £36.3m to £1,224.8m (2022: £1,188.5m). Spend

in the period reflects £40.0m of further investment in the
Society's service and people, including colleague pay awards
and restructure costs, and investment in the Society's
principal office and branch network, with further inflationary
rises incurred, but offset by cost savings seen across
Connells group. Further details can be seen on pages 37

and 38.

Proactive management of credit risk arising from our
mortgage portfolios remains a key priority. The Group
adopts a responsible approach to mortgage lending. Our
Lending Policy ensures that we only lend where the level of
risk is acceptable and where customers are assessed as
being able to afford to repay the loan. In addition, we closely
monitor and manage mortgages that have fallen into
arrears and, where required, aim always to find solutions
that are appropriate for our borrowers and minimise the risk
of the Group incurring financial loss.

Capital resources are in excess of regulatory requirements,
with substantial buffers across risk-based and leverage
frameworks. Skipton's Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio
increased to 26.3% (2022: 25.8%), driven by increased total
regulatory capital. Skipton's leverage ratio remained stable
at 6.7% (2022: 6.8%).

Alternative performance measures

The Board monitors and reports profits at both a statutory
level, governed by accounting standards and practices, and
at an ‘underlying’ level to give greater transparency of the
performance of the Group’s ongoing trading activities. As
per the Group's policy on alternative performance measures
agreed by the Board Audit Committee, we also report
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) for Connells’ group results:

Underlying Group PBT - The Board uses underlying profit

to measure the progress of the Group against its strategic
objectives and uses this measure to aid in strategic
decision-making in relation to the operation of the Group’s
business activities. The following items are excluded from
statutory profit to arrive at underlying profit: gains or losses
on disposal of Group undertakings, impairment of Group
undertakings, fair value movements in relation to the equity
release portfolio, and fair value movements in respect

of share warrants, equity share investments and Group
undertakings.

This reflects the Group's current strategy and business
model, the majority of these items being generated from
the Group’s investments in other entities not considered

to be part of the Group’s core strategy and excluded from
underlying profit on that basis. The other items listed above
are excluded from underlying profit on the following basis:

+ Fair value movements in relation to the equity release
portfolio and associated derivatives. Under IFRS 9, the
Group's equity release portfolio is held entirely at fair
value, as are the associated derivatives, with resulting
gains / losses taken to the Income Statement and as
a result, the Group is exposed to significant income
statement volatility. Such gains / losses are therefore
excluded from underlying PBT on the grounds that they
are not reflective of the underlying trading performance
of the business.

+ Fair value gains or losses on equity share investments
and share warrants are recognised through the Income
Statement (except for certain investments where
the Group has elected for such gains or losses to be
recognised through other comprehensive income). As
detailed above, we exclude any gains or losses from
the disposal of Group undertakings and therefore on
the same basis fair value gains / losses on equity share
investments and share warrants are also excluded from
underlying PBT.

The Group's policy is to not adjust for amortisation charges
or acquisition costs when calculating underlying profits.
Details of amortisation charges arising from the acquisition
of Countrywide by Connells group in March 2021 are
discussed on page 38; these charges will not recur in the
medium term.

Underlying profit provides greater transparency of the
performance of the Group’s ongoing trading activities
and improves the comparability of information between
reporting periods.
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The Society reports a cost income ratio, as shown in the table on page 34. Any items excluded from underlying profit

are also excluded from the calculation of this ratio in order that this measure too provides greater transparency of the
performance of the Society’s ongoing trading activities and improves the comparability of information between reporting
periods.

Connells group EBITDA - This is a common performance measure used in the estate agency industry, and which is
calculated by excluding interest charged on debt financing, interest received, taxes paid, depreciation and amortisation,
gains / losses on investments, impairment and fair value movements of group undertakings, profits or losses from
joint ventures and dividends paid to non-controlling interests.

Financial performance

A summary Group Income Statement is set out below:

Net interest income 542.8 424.4
Fees and commissions receivable 985.4 1,077.9
Fair value gains on financial instruments mandatorily held at FVTPL 23.5 1.3
Other income 29 4.0
Total income 1,5654.6 1,507.6
Administrative expenses (1,224.8) (1,188.5)
Operating profit before impairment losses and provisions 329.8 319.1
Impairment and provisions 3.6 (20.3)
Total Group profit before tax 3334 298.8
Tax expense (78.8) (67.8)

Profit after tax 254.6 231.0

Underlying Group profit before tax for the year was £308.6m (2022: £297.7m) as shown below. Underlying PBT by segment
is shown on page 39.

Total Group profit before tax 333.4 298.8
Less profit on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - 0.1)
Less fqir value (gains) / add back fair value losses in relation to the equity release (11.0) 9.8
portfolio (note 1)

Add back impairment of goodwill - 0.8
Less fair value gains on share warrants and equity share investments (13.8) (11.6)
Underlying Group profit before tax 308.6 297.7

Notes

1. The £11.0m gain (2022: £9.8m loss) is comprised of fair value gains of £9.2m (2022: £132.3m losses) and fair value gains of £1.8m (2022: £122.5m gains) on the
associated derivatives held to economically hedge these fair value movements, as shown in Note 5a).
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The movements in the Income Statement during the year are
attributable to the following key Income Statement items.

Net interest income

Our net interest income, the main source of income for

the Society and SIL, was £542.8m (2022: £424.4m). The
Group net interest margin, a key performance indicator that
measures net interest income as a percentage of mean
total assets, increased to 1.53% (2022: 1.35%).

Following a prolonged period of record-low interest rates, in
response to stubbornly high inflation, the Bank of England
raised Bank Base Rate to 5.25% in August, its highest

level for 15 years; an unprecedented fourteen consecutive
rate rises since December 2021. This rising interest rate
environment created opportunities for the Society and SIL
to generate higher net income, whilst delivering competitive
mortgage products to our customers. However, savings
margins were impacted by the base rate changes, resulting
in higher cost of funds, in a highly competitive savings
market, whereby we've passed on higher interest rates to
existing customers. Taken together, these factors led to an
overall increase in net interest margin for 2023.

Whilst retail savings remain the primary source of funding,
we also make use of longer-term funding from the
wholesale markets to minimise refinance risk, accessing
funds from a number of diverse sources. In the year, the
Society raised funding by a series of issuances through
the wholesale markets, further details of which are noted
on pages 42 and 43.

Net non-interest income

The Group's net non-interest income (or ‘other income’) by
segment is set out below:

2022
£m
Restated*
Society 39.9 42.6
SIL 0.3 0.3
Connells group 933.7 1,021.1
Other* 13.2 16.4
987.1 1,080.4

Notes

* The comparative analyses are restated following a revision of the Group's
reportable segments with effect from 1 January 2023. The Group's reportable
segments are now assessed and presented at the operating entity level;
information is no longer presented on a divisional basis. The impacts of this
change are presentational only and there is no impact on total Group amounts
reported. See Note 42 for further details.

~ Information regarding segments that are not separately reportable is combined

within the ‘Other’ category, together with the impact of Group consolidation
adjustments.

The majority of the Group’s other income is generated by
Connells group. Details of Connells group performance can
be found on page 40.

The Society’s net non-interest income relates mainly to
financial advice activities (£31.5m; 2022: £31.6m), with
funds under management at 31 December 2023 of £4.3bn
(2022: £3.9bn).

Net non-interest income in the Other segment was £13.2m
(2022: £16.4m). Jade Software Corporation saw an increase
of £2.2m due to significant new projects, whilst Skipton
Business Finance also saw an increase of £1.2m. This
segment also includes charges relating mainly to the
elimination of intra-Group fees received by Connells group
for services provided to the Society and SIL.

Fair value movements in relation to the
equity release portfolio

The Society's legacy equity release portfolio, which was
acquired on merger with Scarborough Building Society in
2009, is held at fair value with any fair value gains or losses
taken to the Income Statement. The Group holds derivatives
to economically hedge these fair value movements, which
are also held at fair value. As these derivatives cannot be
designated under IFRS 9 as being in a hedge relationship
for accounting purposes, fair value movements in the
derivatives do not precisely offset the fair value movements
in the portfolio; income statement volatility therefore arises.
For the year there was a fair value gain of £9.2m on the
portfolio and a £1.8m gain on the associated derivatives,
resulting in a net fair value gain of £11.0m. The fair value
movements are driven by changes in market expectations
of long-term interest rates, inflation and house price
growth. The equity release portfolio is less sensitive to
these movements than the associated derivatives as the
mortgage cash flows are discounted more heavily than the
associated derivatives, therefore creating volatility in the
net fair value. The net fair value gain of £11.0m is excluded
from underlying profit, as shown in the table on page 36.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses by segment are set
out below:

Society 239.1
SIL 11.9 10.3
Connells group 938.6 960.8
Other* 35.2 25.8
1,224.8 1.188.5
Notes

* The comparative analyses are restated following a revision of the Group's
reportable segments with effect from 1 January 2023. The Group's reportable
segments are now assessed and presented at the operating entity level;
information is no longer presented on a divisional basis. The impacts of this
change are presentational only and there is no impact on total Group amounts
reported. See Note 42 for further details.

A Information regarding segments that are not separately reportable is combined
within the ‘Other’ category, together with the impact of Group consolidation
adjustments.
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Administrative expenses across the Group increased by
£36.3m to £1,224.8m (2022: £1,188.5m).

For the Society, administrative expenses in the year
increased by £47.5m (24.8%) to £239.1m (2022: £191.6m).
Spend in the period reflects further investment in our
service and in our people, including colleague pay awards
and restructure costs as we transition our business to
become fit for the future, enabling us to deliver better
outcomes for members than ever before, together with
investment in our principal office and branch network,
creating a positive atmosphere through exciting new spaces
that give colleagues more flexibility following our move to a
hybrid working model; as well as inflationary increases seen
more generally.

Connells group administrative expenses decreased in 2023
by £22.2m to £938.6m (2022: £960.8m). Excluding the
impact of amortisation charges relating to the acquisition in
March 2021 of Countrywide (2023: £15.7m; 2022: £20.7m),
costs reduced by £17.2m on a like-for-like basis. Despite the
impact of inflation, Connells group continues to maintain
tight cost controls which have driven the reduction in
administrative expenses.

The Other segment includes the impact of the long-term
management incentive scheme in place for Connells group
senior management, being a £0.3m credit for the year
(2022: £3.2m credit). The management incentive scheme
was put in place to reward and retain the high performing
management team of Connells group, in order to safeguard
the financial contribution this business makes to the
Group, and the scheme expense is based on a number

of assumptions relating to the future performance of the
Estate Agency businesses, as well as the assumed dates of
exercise of the options held within the scheme. The Income
Statement charge in 2023 reflects the latest forecasts of
the Connells group, where one manager left the scheme
during the year, resulting in a release of the associated
liability held. For further details of the incentive scheme
calculation and assumptions, see Note 1u) to the Accounts.
The Other segment also includes adjustments to eliminate
the impact of intra-Group transactions.

Impairment on loans and advances to
customers

During the year the Group recognised impairment gains on
loans and advances to customers of £3.1m (2022: £17.1m
loss), as set out below:

2022
£m
Restated*

Residential mortgages 3.0 (21.8)
Commercial mortgages* 0.9 5.0
Other loans (0.8) (0.3)
3.1 (17.1)

Note

A Also known as loans fully secured on land.
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Ongoing management of our credit risk exposure is a key
focus area, in order to minimise losses to the Group and to
help our customers through financial difficulties wherever
possible.

The impairment on residential loans and advances to
customers was a £3.0m credit (2021: £21.8m charge). The
key driver for this credit to profit for the year is revisions

to the Group's forward-looking economic assumptions,
and associated scenario weightings, which have been
updated during the year to reflect changes in the external
environment; full details can be found in Note 1u) to

the Accounts. This caused probability of default (PD) to
reduce and, as a result, a number of accounts which were
previously held in stage 2 no longer meet the ‘significant
increase in credit risk’ criteria and have returned to stage 1.
Overall impairment coverage for the residential portfolio at
31 December 2023 was 0.10% (2022: 0.13%)

(see Note 40a)(i)).

The commercial lending portfolio has been closed to

new business since 2008 and stands at £135.2m (2022:
£159.3m). Arrears levels within the portfolio remain low.
Movements in the commercial loan impairment allowance
during the year resulted in a credit to the Income Statement
of £0.9m (2022: £5.0m credit). During the height of the
COVID-19 pandemic we agreed significant forbearance in
the commercial portfolio, as these loans were not available
for COVID-19 payment deferrals. We now have evidence that
these loans have been out of forbearance and performing
for a long enough period to exit the forborne state.
Furthermore, the level of allowance required is reducing
over time as this closed book continues to run-off. Overall
impairment coverage for the commercial portfolio at 31
December 2023 was 6.66% (2022: 6.21%).

Taxation

The effective tax rate for the Group is 23.7% (2022: 22.8%).
For the Society it is 24.7% (2022: 19.7%).

In addition to UK corporation tax payable on its profits,
with effect from 1 April 2023, the Society’s taxable profits
above £100m (previously £25m) are subject to a 3%
banking companies surcharge (previously 8% surcharge)
which increases the tax charge for 2023 by £9.1m for
both the Group and Society (2022: £10.6m); the impact
of this surcharge is less significant in 2023 due to the
increased surcharge allowance, as well as the reduction
in the surcharge rate. The Society's effective rate of tax is
also impacted by non-taxable dividend income of £27.0m
(2022: £62.0m). The table below shows the total UK tax
contribution borne by the Group in the year:

Corporation tax 74.1 51.4
Taxes on property 16.1 16.5
Employment taxes 73.0 75.8
Irrecoverable VAT 19.7 13.2

182.9 156.9

More detailed tax disclosures are provided in Notes 9 and
30 to the Accounts and in the Country by Country Reporting
section. Further details of the Group's taxation strategy can
be found at www.skipton.co.uk/about-us/governance.

Other comprehensive income

During the year the Group recorded a net expense of £26.2m
through other comprehensive income (net of tax) (2022: net
expense of £2.3m). The 2023 figure includes a £4.5m loss
(before tax) (2021: £6.7m loss) from the re-measurement of
retirement benefit obligations, with further details provided
in Note 31 to the Accounts.

Gains / losses (before tax) on equity share investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income were £0.2m for the year (2022: £8.5m loss). The
2022 figure comprises a loss of £8.5m in respect of the
Group's equity share investment in a start-up challenger
bank, Commercial and Northern Limited (formerly Bank
North Limited) (‘Bank North’). In the second half of 2022,
amidst the worsening economic and market conditions,
Bank North was unable to raise the further funds required
to obtain its full banking licence; as a result, Bank North
commenced wind-down of its operations and subsequently
entered liquidation in early 2023; in December 2023 the
Group received £0.2m as a first and final distribution

from the liquidation. The fair value of the Group's equity
investment in Bank North was reduced during 2022 to £nil.
Further details are provided in Note 17€) to the Accounts.

Various other movements in the Group’s fair value,
translation and cash flow hedging reserves account for the
remainder of the overall movement in other comprehensive
income.

Performance by segment

The Group's total profit before tax by key business line was
as follows:

2022
. £m
Reinstated*

Society 283.7 160.9

SIL 47.3 39.9

Connells group 13.8 67.5

Other? (11.4) 30.5

Profit before tax 333.4 298.8
Notes

* The comparative analyses are restated following a revision of the Group’s
reportable segments with effect from 1 January 2023. The Group's reportable
segments are now assessed and presented at the operating entity level;
information is no longer presented on a divisional basis. The impacts of this
change are presentational only and there is no impact on total Group amounts
reported. See Note 42 for further details.

A Information regarding segments that are not separately reportable is combined

within the ‘Other’ category, together with the impact of Group consolidation
adjustments.

Statutory profit before tax in the year was £333.4m,
compared to £298.8m in 2022, driven principally by the
increase in underlying profits outlined below.

The Group's underlying profit before tax by segment,
determined in the same way as underlying Group PBT (as
defined on page 35), was as follows:

2022
. £m
Reinstated*

Society 272.7 170.7
SIL 47.3 39.9
Connells group 25 56.7
Other? (13.9) 30.4
Underlying Group profit 308.6 297 7
before tax

Notes

* The comparative analyses are restated following a revision of the Group's
reportable segments with effect from 1 January 2023. The Group's reportable
segments are now assessed and presented at the operating entity level;
information is no longer presented on a divisional basis. The impacts of this
change are presentational only and there is no impact on total Group amounts
reported. See Note 42 for further details.

* Information regarding segments that are not separately reportable is combined
within the ‘Other’ category, together with the impact of Group consolidation
adjustments.

The Group's underlying profit before tax in the year was
£308.6m (2022: £297.7m). Segmental information is set out
below.

Society

The Society reported underlying pre-tax profits of £272.7m
for the year (2022: £170.7m).

Net interest income, which is the main source of income
for the Society, is the amount earned on assets (principally
mortgages, other loans and advances, and liquidity), less
that paid on liabilities (principally retail savings, wholesale
funding, subscribed capital and subordinated debt). The
Society’s net interest income amounted to £458.7m (2022:
£356.9m).

The Society’s net interest margin, one of our key measures
of performance, measures net interest income as a
percentage of mean total assets and was 1.39% for 2023
(2022: 1.22%). The rising interest rate environment created
opportunities in the period to generate higher net income,
which we shall invest to deliver future benefits for our
members.

As noted on page 38, administrative expenses for the
Society increased to £239.1m for the year (2022: £191.6m).
This has led to our ratio of costs to mean assets, a
traditional building society measure of efficiency, to
increase in the year to 0.72% (2022: 0.66%). However, the
ratio of costs to income improved in 2023 to 47.0% (2022:
50.5%); this improvement reflects our strong income growth
without a commensurate increase in cost base.
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+ Home Financing — Our Home Financing business is
designed to provide finance in order to access the housing
market and ‘help more people have a home'.

Gross mortgage advances in our Home Financing business
were £6,326m (2022: £5,836m), whilst net lending was
£2,883m (2022: £1,808m). Despite the uncertain economic
environment, the Home Financing business achieved strong
net mortgage book growth in the period of 12.3% (2022:
8.4%), without compromising the quality of our mortgage
assets.

Residential mortgages in arrears by three months or more
totalled 419 cases representing only 0.23% of mortgage
accounts (31 December 2022: 285 cases, representing
0.17%), and is testament to our aforementioned proactive
credit management in what is a difficult time for mortgage
holders. At the year end the Home Financing business’s
residential impairment loss allowance was £27.9m (2022:
£31.9m), with a related credit to the Income Statement of
£3.5m (2022: £21.3m charge). These movements reflect the
impact of changes to the Group's forward-looking economic
assumptions, which have been updated during the year

to reflect changes in the external environment, and the
impact of revisions to certain judgemental adjustments (as
discussed in Note Tu) of Notes to the Accounts).

The commercial lending portfolio, which has been closed
to new business since 2008, stands at £135.2m as at the
year end (2022: £159.3m) with an average loan size of
£242.7k. Arrears levels within the portfolio remain low. At 31
December 2023 the commercial impairment loss allowance
stood at £9.0m (2022: £9.9m), with a related credit to the
Income Statement of £0.9m (2022: £5.0m credit). The
reduction in the impairment allowance is principally due

to changes in portfolio quality, with the level of allowance
required reducing over time as this closed book continues
to run-off.

Home Financing holds an equity release mortgage book
which is closed to new business. We have seen a net fair
value gain on our equity release portfolio and associated
derivatives of £11.0m (2022: net loss of £9.8m). This net
fair value gain is driven by changes in market expectations
of long-term interest rates, inflation and house price growth.

« Money — Our Money business helps our members’ ‘money
work harder’ and combines our savings and financial advice
businesses with our online, branch and contact centre
capabilities.

Savings balances increased by £3,471m in the year, which
represents growth of 15.4% (2022: 13.6%). LISA customers
continue to be well represented in our customer base and
as at 31 December 2023 we had 164,956 LISA customers
(2022: 159,638) with total balances of £1,153m (2022:
£1,100m).

The Society's net non-interest income, which is
predominantly made up of financial advice fees and
commissions receivable, was £39.9m (2022: £42.6m).
Funds under management, as part of our financial advice
offering, totalled £4.3bn as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: £3.9bn).
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SIL

SILs performance continues to be strong, with pre-tax
profits in the year of £47.3m (2022: £39.9m). The strong
increase in profits reflects the benefits to income and
margin from the rising interest rate environment, whereby
SIl's net interest margin has increased to 2.37% (2022:
2.20%) whilst the ratio of administrative expenses to
income remained stable at 19.9% (2022: 20.3%).

SIUs savings book grew 11.4% in the year to £2,446m (2022:
£2,196m). SIL also reported growth in its mortgage book,
which increased by 9.6% to £2,151m (2022: £1,962m). The
quality of the mortgage book remains good, with only four
cases in arrears by three months or more (31 December
2022: nil on the same basis).

Connells group

The UK housing market stalled in Q4 2022 and Connells
group entered 2023 with a materially lower sales pipeline.
Nevertheless, Connells group remained profitable, and
achieved a PBT of £13.8m (2022: £67.5m). EBITDA, a more
commonly used performance measure in the estate agency
industry, was £63.7m (2022: £124.9m).

The number of properties that the business exchanged
contracts on during the year was 19% lower than for

the same period in 2022 reflecting the more challenging
market conditions. However, the group’s lettings business
has continued to grow its properties under management
increasing to 125,666 at the year end (31 December 2022:
122,614). Connells group financial services proposition
continues to perform well. The number of mortgages
arranged decreased by only 7% despite the reduction in the
number of housing transactions. The total value of lending
generated for UK mortgage providers during 2023 was
£30.9bn (2022: £36.9bn).

Connells group administrative expenses totalled £938.6m
(2022: £960.8m), a reduction of £22.2m on last year.
Despite the impact of inflation, Connells group continues to
maintain tight cost controls which have driven the reduction
in administrative expenses.

Despite housing market activity being the lowest since
2009, Connells group has maintained its dominant position
in the market; and with a more positive outlook as we

enter 2024, with an uptick in activity driven by recent falls
in mortgages rates, Connells group, with a strong balance
sheet and substantial cash reserves, remains well equipped
to succeed through whatever market conditions prevail in
the coming months.

Other

SBF generated a pre-tax profit for the year of £9.6m (2022:
£7.3m). Following removal of Covid-related Government
support schemes, and in light of UK inflationary pressures
across the UK, SBF has been able to help more SMEs
amidst increasing demand for working capital support,
with a total portfolio comprising 872 clients (2022: 838)
and total drawn funds of £171.2m at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: £150.6m). The quality of SBF's lending

during these turbulent times continues to be good, with
impairment as a percentage of drawn funds remaining low
at 0.94% (2022: 0.78%).

Jade reported a profit of £1.3m for the year (2022: £0.6m).
The total of the other remaining business lines, including
the impact of Group consolidation adjustments and the
Connells group management incentive scheme charge,
decreased overall Group profit by £22.3m (2022: increase
to profits of £22.6m). The movement year-on-year is
attributable in the main due to a swing in fair value gains

/ (losses) on financial instruments, whereby the yield
curve has materiality shifted on swaps in light of the latest
economic data.

The Income Statement impact of the Connells group
long-term management incentive scheme is based on a
number of assumptions relating to the future performance
of the Connells group, as well as the assumed dates of
exercise of the options held within the scheme. The credit

in the year was £0.3m (2022: £3.2m credit) which reflects
the latest view of the expected future performance of the
Connells group. During the period two senior managers in
the scheme exercised a proportion of their options in line
with the scheme rules which resulted in total payments of
£2.5m being made, whilst one senior manager subsequently
left the scheme resulting in a release of the associated
liability held. Further details of the scheme, including the
calculation of the liability and the assumptions used, can be
found in Note 28.

Financial position

A summary Statement of Financial Position is set out below:

Assets
Liquid assets 7,092.7 6,792.7

Loans and advances

to customers held at 28,161.4 24,452.3
amortised cost

Loans and advances

to customers held at 0.9 1.0
FVTPL

Equity release portfolio 293.3 278.7
held at FVTPL

Derivatives 1,000.8 1,355.1
Fixed and other assets 672.8 691.5
Total assets 37,221.9 33,571.3

Liabilities

Shares 25,949.8 22,349.6
Borrowings 7,316.9 7,894.1
Derivatives 452.2 415.6
Other liabilities 354.8 365.5
Subordinated liabilities 685.3 311.8
Subscribed capital 41.6 41.6
Reserves 2,421.5 2,192.9
Non—controlling 0.2) 02
interests

Total liabilities 37.221.9 33571.3

and equity

Our financial position is analysed below by our key balance
sheet areas — liquidity, loans and advances to customers,
retail funding, wholesale funding and intangible assets.

Liquidity

The Group continues to hold strong levels of liquid assets to
ensure it can meet its liabilities as they fall due and to help
mitigate the current economic uncertainties. The Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (LCR), a measure designed to ensure that
financial institutions have sufficient high-quality assets
available to meet their liquidity needs for a 30-day liquidity

stress scenario, was 173% at 31 December 2023 (2022:
175%).

The Group's liquidity levels are closely managed by senior
management and have remained above internal and
regulatory limits throughout the year. Liquid assets at 31
December 2023 were £7.1bn (31 December 2022: £6.8bn),
providing the Group flexibility in an unpredictable market.

At 31 December 2023, the Society held £5.9bn (2022:
£5.3bn) of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) as
analysed below:

Balances with the Bank 3.155.5 3,420.4

of England

Gilts 369.4 234.8

Treasury bills 493.6 104.6

Fixed rate bonds 580.0 554.4

Floating rate notes 169.6 169.5

Residential mortgage 408.2 2927

backed securities

Covered bonds 758.6 561.1
5,934.9 5,337.5
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The Society also holds a portfolio of other liquid assets,
which are not categorised as HQLA, as shown below:

Certificates of deposit 97.9 282.5
Cash with other 0.5 -
institutions

98.4 282.5

The above tables showing HQLA and non-HQLA held by
the Society are different to the total amount of liquid
assets shown within the Society’s Statement of Financial
Position (E£7.1bn; 2022: £6.8bn) due to certain items that
are excluded from the above tables, such as liquid assets
used as collateral and those used in repurchase (or ‘repo’)
transactions.

The Group's treasury investments are held to provide
liquidity and 99% (2022: 100%) of the Group's treasury
investments, excluding exposures to a central clearing
house used to clear derivatives to manage interest rate
risk in line with regulation, are rated A3 or better. The
Group's policy is that initial investments in treasury assets
are typically A3 or better (with the exception of some
unrated building societies where separate credit analysis is
undertaken).

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) is a longer-term stable
funding metric, which measures the stability of our funding
sources relative to the assets (e.g. mortgage balances)

we are required to fund. The Group’s NSFR (137.1% at 31
December 2023; 138.6% at 31 December 2022) is well in
excess of the regulatory requirement of 100%, confirming
that the Group holds sufficient stable funding to meet this
requirement.

When measured as a percentage of shares, deposits

and borrowings, the liquidity ratio remained strong at
21.3% compared with 22.5% at 31 December 2022. The
Group regularly conducts an Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process (ILAAP) in accordance with the
Prudential Regulation Authority’s (PRA) liquidity guidelines
and the Board remains satisfied that the Group has
sufficient liquid assets at its disposal in order to meet its
obligations as they fall due.

Loans and advances to customers

The Group continues to grow its mortgage assets in a
controlled manner, lending within clearly defined risk
appetites through both the Home Financing business and
SIL. The Group achieved strong net mortgage growth of
12.1% (2022: 9.6%) with mortgage balances increasing

in the year from £25.5bn at the end of 2022 to £28.6bn.
The Group has continued to lend to a broad spectrum

of borrowers, within our credit risk appetite, throughout
the year. New lending, delivered through both mortgage
intermediaries and our own distribution channels, amounted
to £6.7bn (2022: £6.3bn). Net mortgage lending totalled
£3.1bn (excluding impairment and fair value adjustments
for hedged risk) (2022: £2.2bn). Of the new lending in the
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year, more than ever was in relation to first-time buyers,
which represented c.33% of all new lending.

The average residential loan-to-value (LTV) ratio (calculated
on a valuation-weighted basis) on new lending has
increased slightly to 63.0% (2022: 57.5%). We consider our
new lending to remain prudent and the mortgage book to be
well diversified by geographical location. As at 31 December
2023, the average valuation-weighted LTV of the total
residential mortgage book (excluding equity release) was
44.5% (2022: 40.9%).

Our well-managed spread of risk ensures that the quality of
the Group’s lending remains high, such we are well placed
to deal with uncertainty ahead. This is evidenced by our low
proportion of residential mortgage accounts in arrears by
three months or more which remained low at 0.23% (2022:
0.16%) excluding non-UK lending; this compares favourably
with the industry average of 0.91% (2022: 0.71%) of UK
mortgages in arrears by more than three months (Source:
UK Finance).

The Group’'s commercial mortgage portfolio reduced in

the year by 15.1% to £135.2m. The average LTV of this
portfolio reduced from 44.9% to 42.5% and the proportion of
accounts in arrears by three months or more in this portfolio
was 1.62% (2022: 0.92%).

At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group's equity
release portfolio was £293.3m (2022: £278.7m). The
increase in fair value of equity release mortgages is
primarily due to movements in external market rates which
form the basis of the rate at which the portfolios cash flows
are discounted to (see Note 15 for further details).

We support our customers who find themselves in financial
difficulty and where appropriate we will apply a policy of
forbearance which could include arrears capitalisation, a
reduction in the monthly payment, a payment deferral, a
conversion to interest only or a mortgage term extension,
based on the customer’s individual circumstances and
needs. Ensuring a fair outcome for our customers is central
to our strategy of forbearance, further details of which

can be found in Note 40 of the Notes to the Accounts. As

a signatory to the Mortgage Charter, which outlines the
standards lenders have agreed to uphold for customers
affected by the increase in mortgage rates and the elevated
cost of living, further demonstrates our commitment to our
customers and members.

Funding

The Group continues to manage the mix of retail and
wholesale funding in the best interests of our members
but remains primarily funded by retail savings. Optimising
our mix of retail and wholesale funding is essential to

the Group achieving both its retail savings and lending
growth objectives. We maintain a diverse funding portfolio
to prevent over-reliance on one source and, taking into
consideration the term profile of our lending, closely
manage the term of our funding in order to manage the
risks of duration mis-match. As at 31 December 2023, 83.2%
of our funding comes from retail savings (2022: 78.9%).

Retail funding

As a mutual building society we remain committed to
providing savers with competitive returns along with
offering excellent customer service, which is reflected in the
15.4% increase in retail savings balances during the year, as
detailed on page 22.

In addition to our UK retail funding, the Group also

accepts deposits through SIL (our Channel Islands based
subsidiary). SIL increased its funding base to £2.4bn (2022:
£2.2bn); these balances are included in ‘Amounts owed to
other customers’ within the Group Statement of Financial
Position.

Wholesale funding

At 31 December 2023, £4.9bn (2022: £5.7bn) of our funding
came from the wholesale markets, as analysed below:

Repo and other secured 1,472.0 1914.1

agreements

Deposits 984.2 1,192.9

Covered bonds 2,251.5 2,396.1

Securitisation 186.0 239.8

Fair value adjustments (22.8) (44.3)
4,870.9 5,698.6

{’-\mqunfcs owed to credit 2,003.4 2,963.3

institutions

Amounts owed to other 362.8 143.7

customers

Debt securities in issues 2,447 2,591.6
4,870.9 5,698.6

The Group's wholesale funding balances shown above
exclude £2,446.0m (2022: £2,195.5m) of offshore funding in
our Channel Islands based subsidiary, SIL.

During the year, we have successfully issued a £500m
5-year covered bond in both June and October. At 31
December 2023 the Society had £1.35bn outstanding

under the Bank of England’s “Term Funding Scheme with
additional incentives for SMEs' (TFSME) (2022: £1.9bn of
TFSME outstanding), having repaid £0.55bn during the year.
The TFSME scheme closed in October 2021.

The credit ratings of the Society are assigned by two major
credit rating agencies, Fitch and Moody's. In October 2023
Fitch affirmed the Society's Long-Term Issuer Default

Rating (IDR) at ‘A- with a Stable Outlook, Short-term IDR at

‘F1’ and Viability Rating (VR) at ‘a-". In September 2023 Fitch
also affirmed the Society’s mortgage covered bonds at ‘AAA’
with a Stable Outlook. In June 2023 Moody'’s affirmed the
Society's ‘A2’ long-term deposit and senior debt ratings with
a Stable Outlook and Short-term IDR at ‘P-1". Moody's also
assigns ‘Aaa’ to the Society's Mortgage Covered Bonds.

The ratings reflect the continued financial strength of the
Society, which compares favourably to other large building
societies. The Society’s current credit ratings, which have
not changed since 2021, are summarised in the table below:

_“

Covered Bonds AAA Aaa
Senior Preferred A A2
e oo
I(Issg;er Default Rating A- N/A
Short Term F1 P-1
Senior Non Preferred A- Baal
Outlook Stable Stable
Last change of rating A;g;ft July 2021

The Class A Notes of our rated securitisation transactions
(Darrowby No. 5 plc) remain Aaa rated by both agencies.

Capital (unaudited)

Capital comprises principally the general reserve and
subscribed capital provided through Permanent Interest-
Bearing Shares (PIBS). Capital is ultimately held for the
protection of depositors and other creditors by providing a
buffer against unexpected losses.

We monitor our capital at a prudential consolidation group
level (comprising the entire Group except Connells group
and a small number of other businesses whose activities
are not closely aligned with the core business) and at a
Society only level by applying the Capital Requirements
Directive V (CRD V), and the UK Capital Requirements
Regulation (UK CRR).

The capital requirements under the prudential consolidation
group are higher than for the Society and the same risk
management framework is applied to both. Therefore, the
analysis throughout this Capital section has been disclosed
at a prudential consolidation group level only.

Total regulatory capital has increased by £242.3m from
31 December 2022 to £2,235.2m as at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: £1,992.9m). This is mainly due to the
retained profits accumulated during the year and dividend
income received from the Connells group.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023 43



Performance & Strategy

Strategic Report (continued)

Risk weighted exposure amounts (RWAs) have increased
by £767.7m in the period to £8,343.3m (31 December 2022:
£7,575.6m - restated). This increase is principally driven by
strong residential mortgage book growth in the year and

an increase in operational risk (as calculated under the
standardised approach as per article 317 of UK CRR) due
to rising average income in the past three years. This is
partially offset by a change in the composition of the liquid
assets portfolio, resulting in lower overall risk weights for
liquid assets at 31 December 2023.

The Society has PRA permission to apply the IRB approach
to certain credit risk exposures. From 1 January 2022,

new regulation, applicable to internal ratings-based (IRB)
models, resulted in the Society applying a temporary model
adjustment (TMA) to the Society’s regulator-approved IRB
model output for Society residential mortgage exposures.
Until the updated IRB models are approved by the PRA, the
TMA remains subject to change and may cause variations
in the capital metrics. There have not been, and we do not
expect there to be, any material changes to the risk profile
or strategy of the Society as a result of changes to the TMA.

The CET1 ratio has increased to 26.3% from 25.8% at 31
December 2022, driven by the increase in total regulatory
capital, partially offset by the growth in RWAs. The leverage
ratio has remained stable at 6.7% (31 December 2022:
6.8%), showing that the growth in mortgage lending has
been offset by the profits accumulated during the period.

The following table shows the composition of the prudential
group’s regulatory capital as at 31 December 2023. IFRS 9
Financial Instruments transitional arrangements are applied
throughout.

2022
Unaudited £m
Restated*

Capital resources

Common Equity Tier 1 2.195.2 1952.9
capital

Total Tier 1 capital 2,195.2 1,952.9
Total Tier 2 capital 40.0 40.0
Total regulatory capital 2,235.2 1,992.9
Risk weighted assets 8,343.3 7,575.6*

Capital and leverage ratios (note 1)

Common Equity Tier 1 26.3% 25.8%
(CET1) ratio

Tier 1 ratio 26.3% 25.8%
Total capital ratio 26.8% 26.3%
Leverage ratio (note 2) 6.7% 6.8%
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Notes

* The comparative analyses are restated following a review of the interpretations
and capital calculations in relation to the treasury exposures. The impact of
the restatements is an increase to RWAs at 31 December 2022 of £2.0m. There
were no reportable changes to the capital and leverage ratios at 31 December
2022.

1. The capital ratios are calculated as relevant capital divided by RWAs. The
leverage ratio is calculated as Tier 1 capital of the prudential consolidation
group divided by total exposure, less deposits with central banks and
regulatory adjustments.

2. The leverage ratio represents the UK regulatory regime which excludes
deposits with central banks from the leverage exposure measure.

Capital management

The Group is regulated by the PRA and is required to
manage its capital in accordance with the rules and
guidance issued by the PRA under CRD V and the UK CRR.

The Group completes an Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) at least annually to assess
current and projected capital requirements to support

the current risks in the business and future risks arising
from the Corporate Plan. The ICAAP considers all the
Group's material risks and includes Board-approved stress
scenarios which are intended, as a minimum, to meet
regulatory requirements.

Minimum Requirement for Own Funds
and Eligible Liabilities

The Minimum Requirement for Own Funds and Eligible
Liabilities (MREL) is a regulatory requirement set by the
Bank of England to ensure institutions can cover losses
that would need to be absorbed in the event of a resolution
scenario. The amount of MREL that institutions need to
have is linked to the resolution strategy chosen for each
firm. The Bank of England'’s preferred resolution strategy
for Skipton Building Society is a single point of entry bail-in
under Part 1 of the Banking Act 2009. From 1 January 2023,
our MREL requirement is 2x (pillar 1 plus pillar 2A capital
requirements) plus the applicable capital requirement
buffers issued by the Bank of England, which is 20.1% of
RWAs plus capital buffers.

At 31 December 2023, total MREL resources, including
MREL eligible senior non-preferred debt, were 35.2% of
RWAs (31 December 2022: 30.9% - restated). The increase
in the year is mainly due to the issuance in April of £350m
of senior non-preferred notes due 25 April 2029 (senior
non-preferred notes contribute to meeting our MREL
requirements) and retained profits accumulated during the
year, partially offset by the increase in RWAs described
above. 35.2% exceeds the 2023 MREL requirement of 20.1%
of RWAs plus capital buffers issued by the Bank of England.

Pillar 1

The Group holds capital to meet Pillar 1 requirements

for credit risk, operational risk, and market risk. The IRB
approach is applied to calculate the capital requirement for
residential mortgages in the Society, and for equity and non-
credit obligation exposures. The standardised approach is
applied to all other exposures, operational risk, market risk
and credit valuation adjustments.

Pillar 2A

The PRA requires the Group to hold additional Pillar 2A
capital for risks not covered under Pillar 1 such as pension
and interest rate risk. At 31 December 2023 this was
£171.2m (31 December 2022: £159.1m).

The combination of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2A requirements form
the Group's Total Capital Requirement (TCR).

Further information on the Society's financial strength can be
found in the Group’s Pillar 3 Disclosures, which are published
on the Society’s website skipton.co.uk.

Pension funds

The Group manages three funded defined benefit schemes
as described in Note 31 to the Accounts. Using the
methodology set out in IAS 19 Employee Benefits, the
aggregate valuation of the three schemes at 31 December
2023 was a combined deficit of £26.2m (2022: £29.6m). The
decrease in deficit in 2023 is largely due to the increase in
the fair value of plan assets.

We continue to take steps to manage the deficit and all
schemes are closed to new members and to future accrual
of benefit. The actuarial valuation deficits, as described

in Note 31 to the Accounts, are used to judge the level of
contributions that should be made and a schedule of deficit
contributions has been agreed between the Trustees and
the Group. As detailed in Note 31 to the Accounts, the Group
made a one-off payment of £23.0m to the Skipton (2015)
Scheme on 2 January 2024. This payment has reduced the
expected ongoing contributions into this scheme to nil.

In 2020, estimated costs of £1.5m in relation to Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation were expensed to
administrative expenses, under past service costs. During
the year these estimates have been revised to £0.2m. The
difference between the previous estimates (after being
updated for changes in market conditions at 31 December
2023) and the revised estimates has been treated as a
negative past service cost. The refinement to the liability
has given rise to a benefit of £0.8m through the Income
Statement in 2023.

The pension Trustees will continue to monitor and manage

the pension schemes in a responsible manner, working with
the employer to share the aim of ultimately eliminating the

actuarial funding deficit.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes into
which eligible employees are automatically enrolled.

Non-financial information statement

The Society, although not required to follow the Companies
Act 2006, has sought to voluntarily comply with elements
of s414CB of the Act by including certain non-financial
information within our Annual Report & Accounts to provide
our stakeholders with a fuller picture of our performance.

Information regarding the following matters can be found
on the following pages:

Non-financial information Discussed further

Business model Pages 14 and 15
Key performance

- Pages 21, 23 and 25
indicators 9

Key risks Pages 78 to 85

Climate matters Pages 29 to 33

Environmental matters Pages 29 to 33

Colleagues Pages 54 and 55

Social matters Pages 26 to 33

Respect for human rights ~ Pages 26, 27, 54 and 55
Anti-corruption and anti-

. P 27
bribery matters age

Principal risks and uncertainties

As a result of its normal business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of risks. The Group has a number of
committees and policies to successfully manage these
risks. These principal risks and uncertainties are set out in
the Risk Management Report and in Notes 38 to 40 to the
Accounts.

This Strategic Report was approved by the Board of
Directors on 27 February 2024 and signed on behalf of the
Board by:

ﬁ% Nt wué(_

Bobby Ndawula
Group Chief Financial Officer

27 February 2024
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The Board of Directors

Gwyn Burr

Chair of the Board, the Board Nominations
Committee and the Non-Executive
Remuneration Committee.

Appointed to board: 2022

“My role is to lead the Board’s focus on the development
and delivery of the corporate plan. | also remain focused
on making membership matter. As members’ behaviour

in dealing with their financial affairs continues to evolve,
I'm continuing to work with the team to serve the needs

of our members both now and in the future. This includes
championing change to deliver increased support for our
members — which can be seen in the initiatives we've
launched already and those we plan to introduce in the
future. I'm proud to lead a board that's tireless in its efforts
to support our members and colleagues and have a positive
impact on their lives.”

Gwyn brings wide-ranging executive experience in retail,
thanks to her director-level roles at Asda and Sainsbury'’s.
She also has significant financial services experience,
having previously held non-executive director positions
with Principality Building Society, Sainsbury’s Bank plc
and the Financial Ombudsman Service. She is currently a
non-executive director at Metro AG and is on the board for
Ingleby Farm.
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Stuart Haire

Group Chief Executive and a member of the
Non-Executive Remuneration Committee and
Chair of the Group Executive Committee.
Appointed to the board: 2022

“l am fully focused on creating a strong franchise now

and in the future by careful stewardship of the Group. This
will ensure that it matters more now and in the future to
our members and customers. The Skipton Group is an
incredible set of businesses. It's well placed to address
challenges such as access to your first home, financial
education and quality impartial advice, as well as improving
access to the housing market and energy efficiency in UK
homes. We've made a start, but there’s so much more we
can and should do to support people in these crucial areas.
My job is to continue this work, to make our organisation
even more relevant for both existing and new members

as they consider their long-term financial needs and
aspirations.”

Stuart has over 20 years of business leadership experience
across financial services. He brings a unique blend of
technical and customer facing skills and experiences

which will support delivering value to our members and the
modernisation of the Group. Stuart is driven by the purpose
of serving members’ interests both now and preparing the
business, to continue to serve those interests in future. He's
previously held senior executive roles at NatWest and HSBC
and was CEO of Wealth and Personal Banking at HSBC UK.

Andrew Bottomley

Chief Executive Officer - Money and a member
of the Group Executive Committee and the Non-
Executive Remuneration Committee.

Appointed to board: 2016

“My priority has been to define a clear member focused
strategy for the new ‘Money’ business, as well as mobilising
our two-year project investing in technology to build a
seamless digital experience for members. My focus is

to broaden the access members have to advice on their
money, along with high quality products and services. I'm
most passionate about helping members achieve their
financial goals, whether that's saving for their first home
or planning for retirement. | want our members to be able
to speak to our experts in our branches, over the phone or
through our digital teams, so that they can be confident
their money is working hard for them.”

Andrew has extensive experience in financial services
having previously worked in Lloyds Banking Group, Halifax
and Bank of Scotland. He has served in a variety of senior
roles across mortgages, savings and financial advice as
well as leading large retail customer teams. He is the Chief
Executive Officer for our ‘Money’ business, which helps
members make the most of their savings and investments.

lain Cummings

Chair of the Board Audit Committee and a
member of the Board Nominations, Risk and
Change Committees.

Appointed to board: 2022

“l was attracted to an organisation that takes a long-term
view and focuses on delivering value to its members. From
supporting them with their mortgages — often the largest
financial commitment of their lives — to helping them save
for their future. In what's been a year of change for the
Society, my main priority has been maintaining the integrity
of our reporting to protect the interests of the Society

and its members. This year, I'll be supporting the smooth
transition to our new Group Chief Financial Officer — making
sure we maintain our high standards and support the future
development of the Society.”

lain is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales with over 35 years of experience working
in the financial sector. He was a partner at KPMG for over 24
years, working with banks and other major financial services
firms in both audit and advisory roles, including three years
leading KPMG's banking audit practice. He is a non-executive
director of Rathbones Group plc (a listed wealth manager),
where he is Chair of the Board Audit Committee.
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Steven Davis

Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Board Nominations
Committee.

Appointed to board: 2023

“As our Consumer Duty Board Champion, I've spent time with
colleagues to make sure we're delivering good customer
outcomes and meeting our regulatory requirements. This
year I'm keen to understand the key frustrations for our
members and to support the business in delivering its
strategic plan. Throughout my career, my main motivation
has always been to make a difference for both customers
and colleagues. Skipton Group has amazing colleagues who
are very focused on doing the right thing for our members
and the Group as a whole. | see part of my role as ensuring
there is both a member and colleague voice at board.”

Steven has over 35 years' experience in retail, FMCG and
financial services, both in the UK and abroad. Over the

past 20 years he’s held senior executive roles in HR, retail
operations and change management, always with a strong
focus on the colleague and customer experience. His

last role was with Sainsbury’s Bank, where he sat on the
Sainsbury’s Group HR Executive. Steven is a non-executive
director of Peter Vardy Group. He brings a wealth of
experience in strategy, change leadership and building strong
customer and colleague propositions.
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Denis Hall

Chair of the Board Risk Committee and a
member of the Board Audit and Nominations
Committees.

Appointed to board: 2017

“My priority has always been on making sure the interests
of our members are safeguarded. Whatever happens in the
world, it's important that we service their needs effectively.
I'm a big advocate of Skipton'’s core principle in putting
members first. And it's been great to see our member-driven
values and purpose grow even further over the years. As well
as the Society, | also serve on the boards of other financial
institutions in Europe. This keeps me informed on current
issues, so | can contribute to the Society by weighing up
different approaches to common challenges.”

Denis has worked in senior risk roles with Citibank, Deutsche
Bank and GE Capital. He brings a wide knowledge of risk
management, regulation and financial services enabling
him to chair the Board Risk Committee and provide
support, advice and challenge to the executive team on
risk management issues. Denis is a non-executive director
of Germany'’s Aareal Bank and Moneta Bank in the Czech
Republic and sits on the Audit and Risk Committees for
both these organisations. He is also non-executive director
and Chair of the Risk and Audit Committee for Auxmoney
Holding in Ireland.

Heather Jackson

Chair of the Board Change Committee
and a member of the Board Nominations,
Remuneration and Risk Committees.
Appointed to board: 2018

“My focus is on fairness and always considering situations
from a members’ viewpoint. | want to make sure the change
initiatives we're planning make the lives of our members
and customers better and easier. Having always lived in
Yorkshire, I'm focused on value for money! Making sure

we have a positive impact on our members is what drives
me personally. | am hugely motivated by the Society’s
colleagues’ desire to serve all members’ best interests and
by our strong purpose.”

Heather brings her strong business operations, technology,
strategy and change background which is vital as the Society
focuses on improving our customer journeys through all
channels and on our use of data to support better decision
making. She has 25 years' experience in senior executive
roles at Lloyds plc, Capital One, Boots the Chemist, Asda and
Burton Group plc. She's a non-executive director for Ikano
Bank Europe and at Rothesay (the UK's largest pensions
insurance specialist) as well as a trustee director of
Yorkshire Cancer Research.

Mark Lund

Deputy Chair of the Board, Senior Independent
Director and a member of the Board Audit,
Nominations and Remuneration Committees.
He is also an independent non-executive
director of Connells.

Appointed to board: 2016

“I'm a huge fan of the Society’s mutual business model. I'm
as excited as I've ever been about the opportunities it brings
— especially for our membership, which is my priority. I'm
delighted the Society has now introduced our member-only
benefits. | want to make sure we have a strong and resilient
business — with a clear plan that continues to develop the
Society for the benefit of our members”

Mark’s experience at senior leadership level in financial
advice and investment management enables him to provide
relevant insight which is particularly important as the Society
develops its financial advice business. He has more than 40
years’ experience in commercial and financial services. His
previous roles include CEO of St James’s Place plc, CEO of
Virgin Direct and Director of Henderson Investors plc. He is a
non-executive director of Coutts & Co.
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Philip Moore

Member of the Board Audit, Nominations and
Risk Committees. He is also a non-executive
director of Connells and Chair of Connells’ Audit
and Risk Committee.

Appointed to board: 2021

“l want all members to feel proud they're part of the Society.
And over the past year, my priority has been on making sure
we deliver even more value for our members. | joined the
Board because of the Society’s strong mutual values and
clear purpose. These attributes have created a financially
strong, member-focused organisation. And, by drawing on
my wide financial experience, | hope to contribute to its
continued success.”

Philip has over 40 years' experience in international financial
services, spending nearly 20 years as a CFQ, including of

a FTSE 100 company, followed by consulting partner roles
in the UK and South East Asia building his commercial,
strategic and regulatory expertise. He has experience of
chairing audit, risk and remuneration committees for a
number of companies, including Bank of Ireland (UK) plc
and Wesleyan Assurance Society. He is also a trustee of
homelessness charity St Mungo's and a Governor of North
Herts College.
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Bobby Ndawula

Group Chief Financial Officer, Chair of the Asset
& Liability Committee, member of the Executive,
Retail Credit and Non-Executive Remuneration
Committees. He is also Non-Executive Chair

of Skipton International Limited and a Non-
Executive Director of Connells Limited.

Appointed to board: 2015

“Being part of a values-led, customer centred organisation
is important to me. | enjoy leading and developing high
performing teams that embrace change and continuously
improve the financial strength of the Society and the wider
Skipton Group for the long-term benefit of our members.
My ambition is for Skipton to continue to grow sustainably,
so we can help more people achieve their financial goals.”

Bobby is an experienced finance professional and leads

the Society’s finance and treasury functions, amongst other
areas, which are essential to the ongoing success of the
Society. A chartered accountant, he previously held a number
of senior positions in Group Finance and Financial Risk.
With over 20 years’ experience in IT, finance, capital and risk,
he is responsible for ensuring that the Society’s treasury,
accounting and finance practices remain at a high standard.
Bobby'’s also a Trustee of Yorkshire Cancer Research.
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Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual
Report & Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The financial information included in this Directors’ Report
is taken from the statutory Accounts on pages 114 to 237
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards in accordance with the requirements
of the Building Societies Act 1986 and with those parts of
the Building Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions)
Regulations 1998 that are applicable. Further unaudited
information which allows comparison between 2023 and
2022 is set out in the Strategic Report.

Business objectives

The business objectives of the Group are set out in
‘The business model’ and ‘Promoting long-term success’
sections of the Strategic Report.

Business review and future developments

The Chair's Statement, the Group Chief Executive's Report
and the Strategic Report set out the performance of the
business and its future objectives.

Profits and capital

Group profit before tax was £333.4m (2022: £298.8m). Total
profit after tax (attributable to the Society) transferred to
the general reserve was £254.6m (2022: £231.2m).

Total Group reserves at 31 December 2023 (excluding non-
controlling interests) were £2,421.5m (2022: £2,192.9m)
including the fair value reserve of £(9.5)m (2022: £(16.9)m),
the cash flow hedging reserve of £4.9m (2022: £29.6m), the
cost of hedging reserve of £(0.5)m (2022: £(1.1)m), and the
translation reserve of £4.6m (2022: £4.9m).

Gross capital at 31 December 2023 was £3,148.2m

(2022: £2,546.1m) including £685.3m (2022: £311.8m)

of subordinated liabilities and £41.6m (2022: £41.6m)

of subscribed capital. The ratio of gross capital as a
percentage of shares, deposits and borrowings at 31
December 2023 was 9.46% (2022: 8.42%) and the free
capital ratio was 7.98% (2022: 6.74%). The Annual Business
Statement gives an explanation of these ratios.

Mortgage arrears

Group mortgage balances at 31 December 2023 included
57 cases (2022: 52) either in possession or where payments
were 12 months or more in arrears. The capital balances of
these loans were £5.4m (2022: £7.9m). The total amount of
arrears on these loans was £0.7m (2022: £0.6m).
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Charitable donations

In the year, the Group made charitable donations of

£0.8m (2022: £1.3m). £0.4m was paid in 2022 toward our
commitment of donating £2.9m (being 1% of pre-tax Group
profits for 2022), with additional funds of c.£1.8m pledged
at the year end. No contributions were made for political
purposes (2022: £nil).

Creditor payment policy

The Group's policy concerning the payment of suppliers

is to negotiate and agree terms and conditions with all
suppliers and upon complete provision of goods and
services, unless there is an express provision for stage
payments, undertake to pay suppliers within the agreed
payment period. The number of trade payable days as at 31
December 2023 for the Group was 11 days (2022: 9 days).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the
‘Principal risks and uncertainties’ section of the Risk
Management Report and in Notes 38 to 40 to the Accounts.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Details of the key risks to which the Group is exposed

in relation to its financial instruments, and how these
risks are managed, are set out in the ‘Principal risks and
uncertainties’ section of the Risk Management Report and
in Notes 38 to 40 of the Notes to the Accounts.

Colleagues

The Group remains committed to its policy of treating

all colleagues and job applicants fairly, ensuring equal
opportunities. Our policy is that no colleague, or potential
colleague, is treated less favourably on any grounds
including age, race, colour, religion, nationality, ethnic origin,
gender, marital status or sexual orientation. We also give

all applications from disabled people full consideration in
relation to the vacancy concerned and their own aptitudes
and abilities. In the event of an existing colleague becoming
disabled, we make every effort to maintain their present
position or to employ them in alternative suitable work.

We also aim to provide high quality relevant training and
development opportunities to all colleagues, which enables
them to achieve their full potential and helps the Group
meet its corporate objectives.

The Board is briefed regularly on key colleague matters
as they arise. There is a comprehensive internal
communications structure to cascade relevant business
information to colleagues throughout the organisation in
an appropriate and timely way. The Society’s subsidiary
companies have similar arrangements in place to ensure
effective communication of relevant matters.

The Society recognises an independent trade union

(Aegis) with which management meets regularly to consult
and negotiate on a wide variety of matters and to which
colleagues may make their views known on issues affecting
their interests.

Property, plant and equipment

The Directors consider that the overall market value of

the freehold and leasehold properties occupied by the
Group, excluding the principal office of the Society, is in
excess of their corresponding book value that is included
within property, plant and equipment (per Note 18 to the
Accounts). In arriving at this view, the Directors have taken
account of the value-in-use, together with internal and
external valuations of the Group's property portfolio.

It is difficult to ascertain a reliable market value for the
principal office of the Society, which is a special purpose
facility, however the Board considers that its value in use to
the Group is greater than its book value.

Investment property

The Directors have considered the overall market value of
investment properties. In arriving at a view, the Directors
review internal valuations, and obtain external market
valuations for investment properties at least every

three years. In 2023, £0.2m of impairment was charged
against a particular property; this was driven by valuation
calculations that take into account the discounted rent
receivable until the expiry date of the current tenancy
arrangement and post-cost expected consideration should
the property be subsequently sold for alternative use. The
Directors consider that the overall market value of the
remaining investment properties held is in excess of the
corresponding book value that is included within investment
properties (per Note 20 to the Accounts).

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation of
the Annual Report, Annual Business Statement, Directors’
Report and Annual Accounts

This statement, which should be read in conjunction with
the Independent Auditor’s Report, is made by the Directors
to explain their responsibilities in relation to the preparation
of the Annual Report & Accounts.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, Annual Business Statement, Directors’ Report and
the Annual Accounts in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Building Societies Act 1986 requires the Directors

to prepare Group and Society Annual Accounts for each
financial year. Under that law they are required to prepare
the Group Annual Accounts in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Building Societies Act 1986 and have

elected to prepare the Society Annual Accounts on the
same basis.

The Group and Society Annual Accounts are required by
law and UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, in
accordance with the requirements of the Building Societies
Act 1986 and with those parts of the Building Societies
(Accounts and Related Provisions) Regulations 1998 that
are applicable, to present fairly the financial position and
the performance of the Group and the Society. The Building
Societies Act 1986 provides in relation to such annual
accounts that references in the relevant part of that Act to
annual accounts giving a true and fair view are references
to their achieving a fair presentation.

Under the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules, group financial
statements are required to be prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards.

In preparing each of the Group and Society Annual
Accounts, the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies in accordance
with IAS 8 Accounting Polices, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and apply them consistently;

« present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

« state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards
in accordance with the requirements of the Building
Societies Act 1986 and with those parts of the
Building Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions)
Regulations 1998 that are applicable, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

+ assess the Group and Society's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and

use the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Society or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

In addition to the Annual Accounts, the Act requires the
Directors to prepare, for each financial year, an Annual
Business Statement and a Directors’ Report, each
containing prescribed information relating to the business
of the Group.

The Directors are also required by the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority

to include a management report containing a fair review
of the business, which is set out in the Strategic Report,
and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group which is set out in the ‘Principal risks and
uncertainties’ section of the Risk Management Report.

The Directors have decided to prepare voluntarily a report
on corporate governance as if the Society were required
to comply with the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and
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Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority in
relation to those matters. This is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

A copy of these Annual Report & Accounts is placed on
the Society’s website. Information in respect of the Capital
Requirements (Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulations
2014 is included as an annex to these Annual Accounts.

Directors' responsibilities for accounting records and
internal controls

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group:

+ keeps proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Society, in accordance
with the Act; and

+ takes reasonable care to establish, maintain, document
and review such systems and controls as are
appropriate to its business in accordance with the rules
made by the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential
Regulation Authority under the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000.

The Directors are responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
annual accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeqguard the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Society's website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of annual accounts may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of going concern

The Group's business activities together with its financial
position, capital resources and the factors likely to affect
its future development and performance, including the
impact of climate risks are set out in the Strategic Report
and the ‘Principal risks and uncertainties’ section of the
Risk Management Report. In addition, Notes 38 to 40 of the
Annual Accounts include the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing its liquidity risk, details

of financial instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

In common with many financial institutions, the Group
meets its day-to-day liquidity requirements through
managing both its retail and wholesale funding sources, and
is required to maintain a sufficient buffer over regulatory
capital requirements in order to continue to be authorised to
carry on its business. The Group's forecasts and objectives,
which take into account potential changes in trading
performance and funding retention, indicate that the Group
expects to be able to operate at adequate levels of both
liquidity and capital for at least the next 12-month period.

Consequently, after reviewing the Group’s forecasts and the
risks it faces, the Directors are satisfied that there are no
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and have,
therefore, continued to adopt the going concern basis in
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preparing these Annual Accounts, as explained in Note 1a)
to the Accounts.

Directors' statement of longer-term viability

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code,

the Directors have assessed the prospects and the ongoing
viability of the Group over a longer period than the 12-month
period required by the going concern basis of accounting.

The Directors’ assessment of the medium-term prospects

of the Group is based on the Group's corporate plans, which
project the Group's performance, profitability, capital, liquidity
and funding position over a five-year period. The assessment
included a review of the Group's current position relative to the
market and a review of the Group's strategic priorities over the
medium-term including management actions to achieve these
strategic goals.

The assessment also included a robust review of the
Group's principal risks and uncertainties (outlined in the
‘Principal risks and uncertainties’ section of the Risk
Management Report), which were taken into account to
ensure that the possible likelihood or impact of these risks
materialising would not materially impact the prospects

of the Group and to ensure that the necessary control
framework was in place to mitigate the impact of these
risks on the future prospects of the business. Specifically,
the Directors took account of those risks that could result
in events or circumstances that might threaten the Group's
business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity
and reputation, including the social, economic, political and
regulatory environments and climate change.

The Directors concluded that the medium-term prospects
of the Group are satisfactory and that the financial strength
of the business remains healthy throughout the period of
assessment.

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group with
the period of assessment being a five-year period, to the end
of 2028. Having considered various options, the Directors
determined that a five-year period is an appropriate period
for the purposes of the Group's viability assessment. This
period reflects the Group's five-year corporate planning
horizon over which the prospects of the Group and the
principal risks threatening these prospects are assessed as
outlined above, and also the period over which associated
stress testing is performed.

In arriving at their conclusion on the longer-term viability of
the Group, the Directors considered the following:

« The Group's prospects over the five-year period as
outlined above.

+  Stress testing carried out on the 2024 — 2028 business
plans through the Group'’s Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process and Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process. The key economic stress test
modelled reflected a market-wide fall in residential
house prices of 34%, unemployment reaching 12%
and the Bank Base Rate decreasing to 0.1%, each of
which would adversely impact upon the level of losses
experienced within the Group's loan portfolio. The
Directors concluded that the impact of this severe
economic environment would not threaten the longer-
term viability of the Group.

+  Reverse stress testing carried out by the Group, which
considers scenarios specific to the Group that could
cause the Group to fail. The Directors have concluded
that any such scenarios are unlikely to materialise.

+ The potential impact of climate-related financial risks
across a range of forecast scenarios. This includes
consideration of the potential impact of both orderly
and disorderly transitions to a low carbon economy by
2050 and the impact of a scenario in which no such
transition occurs.

*  The potential impact of emerging regulation, where
there is sufficient information regarding the future
regulation.

«  The principal risks facing the Group and the control
framework in place to manage and mitigate these risks
(as outlined in the Risk Management Report), including
an assessment of the likelihood and impact of these
risks on the Group. This includes specific consideration
of the significant economic and political uncertainties,
including a potential change in the UK government,
on-going geopolitical conflicts, supply chain disruptions
and external pressures on oil prices. Furthermore, the
UK cost of living challenges and interest rates that
remain high by recent historical standards.

« A number of severe but plausible scenarios, arising from
the principal risks, which are remote, but if they arose
could threaten the longer-term viability of the Group.

There are inherent limitations in preparing long-term
financial plans with regard to a number of factors including,
but not limited to, social, economic, political, regulatory

and climate factors. The Directors consider that the outer
years of the financial planning period are more difficult to
predict and therefore these years have a greater degree

of uncertainty. For example, the external environment
remains uncertain and although inflationary pressures

are easing and the peak in bank base rate appears to have
been reached, we expect competitive pressures to return

in the mortgage and savings markets. These impacts may
have an effect on the performance of the Group within the
Group's financial planning period; the extent of the impact is
currently unknown.

However, based on the results of this assessment,

the Directors concluded that they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
next five years.

Directors

The Directors of the Society at 31 December
2023, along with their roles and
membership of board committees, are

set out in the Corporate Governance

Report. During the year the composition

of the Board was refreshed to ensure it
continues to have an effective balance

of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity to deliver on Skipton's strategic
priorities. Details of changes to the

executive and non-executive directors of the Society in
the year are set out in the ‘Board changes’ section of the
Chair's Statement.

Details of Directors’ service contracts are disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report. No Director of the Society
had any interest in the shares of any Group undertaking as
at 31 December 2023.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
executive and non-executive directors offer themselves for
election or re-election by the members at the 2024 AGM

Auditor

In accordance with Section 77 of the Building Societies Act
1986, a resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP (EY) will be put to the forthcoming AGM of the Society.

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Society’s auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Society’s auditor is aware of that
information.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the
Annual Report & Accounts

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Directors’ Report confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

+ the Annual Accounts, prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards in
accordance with the requirements of the Building
Societies Act 1986 and with those parts of the
Building Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions)
Regulations 1998 that are applicable, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the Group and Society; and

+ the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the Group and Society, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

We consider the Annual Report & Accounts, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for members to assess the
Group's and Society’s position and performance, business
model and strategy.

Signed on behalf of the Board

C\m&&ﬁ\s V "__S\‘W

Gwyn Burr
Chair

27 February 2024
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Dear Member,

| am pleased to present the Group's Corporate Governance
Report, which details how the Group’s governance framework
operated in 2023.

As Chair of the Skipton Group, | am very aware of the
particular importance of good governance in being
accountable to members of the Society. | view good
governance as being at the heart of a well-run business and
am committed to meeting prevailing best practice standards.

Our approach is based on the principles and provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) published by
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), which applies to listed
companies. This report benchmarks the Society against the
present version of the Code, which is applicable to listed
entities with accounting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2019. A copy of the Code is available at frc.org.uk.

The Code's expectation is one of ‘Comply or Explain’. The
philosophy of the Society’s board of directors (the Board) is
to comply with the Code and the guidance on it issued by
the FRC and the Building Societies Association.

58 Annual Report & Accounts 2023

As the Code was not designed for mutual organisations, it
inevitably contains sections with which the Society cannot
comply. The areas of non-compliance during the year were:

+  Provision 3, which requires the chair to discuss
governance matters with major shareholders and
relay their views to the board as a whole (as a mutual
organisation, owned by its members, with each
voting member having one vote, there are no major
shareholders and therefore this specific requirement is
not relevant to the Society);

«  Provision 36, which requires remuneration schemes to
promote long-term shareholdings by executive directors
is not possible for the Society due to its mutual status;
and

+  Provision 38, which expects the pension contribution
rates for directors to be aligned to those of the
workforce. Whilst all new appointments to executive
roles will align to this requirement, there is one historical
arrangement in place which does not.

During 2023, other than the points listed above, the Board
believes that the Society complied with all other aspects of
the Code.

Governance framework

The Group comprises Skipton Building Society (the Society),
which is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
and the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA), and its direct
and indirect holdings in a number of legal entities, some of
which are also regulated by the FCA. Skipton International
Limited, based in the Channel Islands, is regulated by the
Guernsey Financial Services Commission.

The Group's governance arrangements are designed to ensure
that it meets the requirements and expectations of its members,
colleagues and regulators.

On a day-to-day basis the Group Chief Executive is
responsible for ensuring that the Group meets its strategic
and operational objectives as defined in the corporate plan.
He is assisted by the Group Executive Committee, which he
chairs, comprising the Society's executive directors and other
senior Group executives.

Each Group subsidiary is governed by a board. The board of
Connells Limited (Connells) and Skipton International Limited
(SIL), normally contain at least one Society director as a
shareholder non-executive director (appointed by the Society
or the direct parent company) as well as the business’ own

Directors
The role of the Board

The Board's terms of reference clearly set out its responsibility
for the overall stewardship of the Group within the context of
the Group's ‘principles of governance’ which are:

+  Governing body - The Society is headed by an effective
Board which is responsible for the long-term success of the
Group.

The Board formulates strategy and establishes the
Society's risk appetite and balance sheet strategy. It

is organised so as to have a proper understanding of,
and competence to deal with, the current and emerging
issues facing the business of the Group, exercising
independent judgement, and effectively reviewing and
challenging the performance of management.

+ Management and oversight - The Society’s management
and oversight framework enables the Board to provide
strategic guidance to, and effective oversight of,
management throughout the Group.

The governance framework clarifies the respective roles
and responsibilities of directors and senior executives in
order to facilitate Board and management accountability
to the Group and the Society’'s members. This ensures

a balance of authority such that no single individual

has unfettered powers. It has clear lines of sight into
activities to enable challenge and oversight, allowing

the Board to obtain assurance over performance, the
integrity of reporting and effectiveness of control
implementation.

+ Recognise and manage risk - The Board has a sound
system of risk oversight, risk management and internal
control supported by timely and transparent reporting.

executive management. Each subsidiary board is responsible
for the prudent management of the subsidiary’s businesses,
operating within the Board's appetite for risk and delegated
authorities from the Board, to deliver agreed corporate

plan objectives.

Sarah Whitney (a non-executive director of the Society) is
also the Chair of the Connells board, from 1 March 2024
Sarah will step down from the boards of the Society and
Connells and be replaced as Connells chair by Mark Lund
(the Group’s deputy chair and senior independent director
of the Society), who is currently a non-executive director
of Connells. Philip Moore (a non-executive director of the
Society) is a non-executive director of Connells and chair
of the Connells Board Audit and Risk Committee.

Bobby Ndawula (an executive director of the Society)
is the Chair of SIL.

The Board's ‘principles of governance’, which are summarised
below, provide the framework through which the Society
establishes its systems and processes concerned with the
overall direction, effectiveness, and control of the Group.

The governance framework identifies, assesses,
manages and monitors risk on an ongoing basis.

It informs management and the Board of material
changes to the risk profile of the Society and the Group
and facilitates challenge of the effectiveness of actions
taken to mitigate risk. It is designed to be forward-
looking in approach so as to reduce both the likelihood
and the impact of known risks crystallising.

The Board has established a framework of authorities
that maps out the structure of high-level delegation
below Board level and specifies those issues which
remain the responsibility of the Board. The Board also
has a general duty to ensure that the Group operates
within the Society’s Rules, relevant laws, regulations
and guidance issued by relevant regulatory authorities
and that proper accounting records and effective
systems of internal control are established, maintained
and audited.

Culture

The Board has agreed purpose, behaviours and culture
statements for the Society to ensure there is clear direction

for the business and clear expectations of how we wish our
people to behave. Our purpose remains constant: we are here
to help more people have a home, help people save for life ahead
and support long-term financial well-being. To help deliver this it
is important that culturally we maintain a working environment
where the customer is at the centre of our thinking and

the benefits of diversity amongst our workforce and the
communities we serve is recognised and utilised.

The Board monitors culture in a number of ways such as
through customer feedback, employee surveys (internally
and externally facilitated) and independent assurance
reviews. The Group Chief People Officer formally reports to
the Board on the conclusions of all work carried out in this
area and how our culture might evolve to remain as effective
as it might.
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Board meetings

The Board met 11 times during 2023 (nine scheduled meetings
and two ad-hoc meetings). In line with good governance, the non-
executive directors also meet, without the executive directors
present, after each Board meeting. The attendance record of
each director at each Board and Board committee meetings is
set out in the ‘Board and Committee membership attendance
record’ section of this report.

In addition, the Board held three strategy meetings in the year,
in June, September and December, where the Group's strategic
objectives were discussed. These strategic objectives were
formally approved by the Board in December 2023.

To enable the Board to use its time effectively, a forward
looking meeting planner and rolling Board agenda is maintained

Responsibility

by the Group Secretary and General Counsel. There is sufficient
flexibility in the Board's agenda to ensure that the Board can
address emerging matters in a timely manner.

Each Board meeting receives:

+  reports from the Chair, Group Chief Executive and the
Group Chief Financial Officer;

+ adetailed management report on the Society and the
Group, containing financial and non-financial data; and

+ updates on all Board committee meetings held since
the previous meeting of the Board.

Below is a sample of some of the matters considered by the
Board during the year.

Strategy Considered and approved the Group's five-year Strategic Plan, assessing the strategic actions
identified to achieve the Group’s strategy.
Reviewed progress on the delivery of each of the Society’s key strategic change projects, particularly
focusing on the development of the Society’s digital offer.

Risk Management & «  Approved the Society's risk appetite and monitoring ongoing adherence.

Regulatory Matters

Approved the Board Risk Appetite Statement, the Society's Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment

Process (ILAAP) and the Society’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

Approved the Society’s Recovery Plan and Resolvability Assessment Framework (RAF) to ensure
that adequate provisions and processes are in place to protect the Society’s business and its

members.

Reviewed and approved the Society’s Health and Safety Policy.

Performance and + Reviewed and approved the Society’s interim and full year financial results.

Financial Reporting
Statements.

Reviewed and approved the Society’s Annual Report & Accounts and Summary Financial

Approved the Society's costs budget for 2024.
«  Approved the Society's Long-term Viability Statement.
Approved the Letter of Representation to the Auditors.
+ Reviewed and approved the Quarterly Performance Reviews and reforecasts.

People and Culture

Approved the Society's new organisational design.

+  Considered the outcome of the 2023 Colleague Membership Survey.
Considered the annual report on Gender Pay Gap within the Society.

Environmental, +  Completed the annual review and approved the terms of reference of the Board Risk Committee and

Social and Corporate
Governance (ESG)

Board Audit Committee (with terms of reference for the remaining Board committees and the Board
to be reviewed and approved early in 2024).

Approved the establishment of a new Board Committee — the Board Change Committee.
+ Received reports on the outcome of the internal board effectiveness review and associated action

plan.

Approved arrangements connected with the Society's 2024 annual general meeting.
Approved the Society’s Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement.
+  Reviewed and approved the Society’s Speak Out (Whistleblowing) Policy and received the

Whistleblowing Annual Report.

Approved conflicts of interest and directors’ outside interests, as necessary.
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For the Board to be effective, the relationship between the executive directors and non-executive directors must be
constructive and one of openness and respect. The boardroom environment is collegiate and all are encouraged to
contribute. The role of the non-executive directors is not only to challenge but to support the Group Executive Committee and
bring their experience to bear. To this end, the non-executive directors are welcomed to meetings outside the formal Board
and committee structure, which develops their understanding of the business and allows the management teams to benefit
from their experience and fully understand the non-executive perspective on particular issues.

Board Structure

Chair. Gwyn Burr

Responsible for setting the Board's agenda, leading the Board and ensuring the Board's effectiveness.

Board: 10 Directors
Responsible for the overall conduct of the Society’s businesses, setting Group strategy
and exercising oversight over the Group

Non-executive directors: Gwyn Burr, lain Cummings, Steven Davis, Denis Hall,
Heather Jackson, Mark Lund, Philip Moore, Sarah Whitney**

Executive directors: Stuart Haire, Andrew Bottomley, Bobby Ndawula

Board Audit Board Change

Committee Committee

Committee

Board Nominations

Board Non-Executive

Remuneration Remuneration Board Risk

Committee

Committee Committee

Members: Non-executive directors

lain Cummings*

*
Denis Hall Heather Jackson* g‘gx-r:e)l(seug:ltive
Mark Lund lain Cummings directors
Philip Moore

Denis Hall*
Heather Jackson
lain Cummings
Philip Moore

Steven Davis*
Mark Lund
Heather Jackson

Gwyn Burr*

Members: Executive directors

* Denotes chair of the Committee
** Until 29 February 2024

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain matters to its committees
(comprised only of non-executive directors, except in the
case of the Non-Executive Remuneration Committee) in
order that these can be considered in more detail. The
Board committee structure comprises:

+  The Board Audit Committee — further details are set out
in the Board Audit Committee Report;

+  The Board Change Committee — further details are set
out in the Board Change Committee Report;

+ The Board Nominations Committee — further details are
set out in the section below headed ‘Appointments to
the Board and its committees’;

+  The Board Remuneration Committee and Non-Executive
Remuneration Committee — further details are set out in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report; and

Stuart Haire
Andrew Bottomley
Bobby Ndawula

+ The Board Risk Committee — further details are set out
in the Risk Management Report.

The terms of reference of all Board committees are
available on the Society's website (www.skipton.co.uk) or
from the Group Secretary and General Counsel, on request.

Board composition

Under the Society’s Rules, the Board must comprise no
more than 15 and no less than six directors and, under

the Code, at least half of the Board should comprise
non-executive directors. At 31 December 2023, the Board
comprised the Chair, seven independent non-executive
directors and three executive directors. This composition
is designed to be able to meet the needs of the Group

and allow for appropriate and efficient operation of the
Board's committees. Details of the Society's directors at 31
December 2023 are set out in the Board of Directors report.
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The diagrams below set out the composition of the Board as at 31 December 2023 in respect of tenure, age, gender and

the number of executive and non-executive directors.

Gender of
Executive/

Tenure of
Non-executive

Non-executive .
directors

directors

B Mvale
B Female

B Lessthan 1 year
B 1to3years
Il 3to 6 years

More than 6 years

The Davies Report recommends that at least 33% of the
composition of boards will be female. At 31 December 2023,
three members (27%) of the Board were female. Improving
this ratio and harnessing the benefits of diversity will be a
key consideration in all new recruitment to the Board. The
Society is a signatory to the Women in Finance Charter, which
underlines the Board’'s commitment to gender equality.

As Chair, | will continue to regularly review the size

and composition of the Board and its committees, in
conjunction with the Board Nominations Committee, to
ensure that they are optimally resourced and refreshed

at appropriate intervals. Our Board Composition Policy is
available on the Society’s website at skipton.co.uk/about-
us/governance/board-composition-policy.

Appointments to the Board and its committees and at
executive level

The Board Nominations Committee (NomCo), which
comprises all the Society’s non-executive directors, is chaired
by me and leads the process for Board and Group Executive
Committee appointments and succession planning.

NomCo has succession planning as a key area of focus
and conducts an annual review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure it contains the required
balance of skills, knowledge and experience relevant to

the activities of the Group. This review assesses what

is required both in the short-term and the longer-term to
deliver the Group's strategy in light of its priorities and
changing customer behaviours. The next formal review will
be undertaken by NomCo by the end of Q1 2024, following
receipt of the external Board evaluation undertaken by Clare
Chalmers Ltd in late 2023.

Succession requirements must cater for both planned

and unplanned events. To this end, NomCo will also be
undertaking a review of succession planning for senior
executives by the end of 2024. Succession plans are
designed to ensure that those identified as having potential
at these levels and in the talent pool below are provided with
relevant development opportunities and, where appropriate,
that effective contingency arrangements are in place.
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Balance of
Executive/

Age of
Executive/
Non-executive
directors

Non-executive
directors

B Executive directors 40-49
B Non-executive directors B 50-59
B 60+

Appointments to the Board, its committees and to the
Group Executive Committee are made by the Board on the
recommendation of NomCo, in consultation with relevant
committees’ chairs, where appropriate. All appointments
are made on merit. In making appointments, the Board
considers all aspects of diversity, including age, experience
and gender when reviewing the composition of the Board,
its committees and the Group Executive Committee.

Tenure, election and re-election of Directors

The Code recommends that all directors of FTSE 350
companies should stand for annual re-election. Adopting this
best practice, the Society’s Rules require that all directors
stand for re-election every year. Non-executive directors are
generally appointed for an initial period of three years and,
whilst expected to serve for six years, this may be extended
to nine years in total.

All of our directors are subject to election following their
appointment and annual re-election by our members at

the AGM based on the best practice set out in the Code.
Details of each individual director’s contribution are set out
in the booklet accompanying the Notice of AGM sent to all
qualifying members.

Independence

No directors have any direct business relations with the
Society or any of its subsidiaries or have any personal
or family ties with any of the businesses’ advisers, other
directors, or senior employees.

The Board considers all the non-executive directors to have
been independent at the time of their appointment and to
have continued to be so in accordance with the criteria set

out in the Code.

As Chair, | can confirm that | am independent and have no
conflicting relationships or circumstances that might affect
my judgement on Group or Society matters.

Division of responsibilities

The offices of the Board Chair and the Group Chief Executive
are distinct and held by different individuals. The role of
each role holder is set out in their role profiles and terms of
appointment.

Board Chair
(Gwyn Burr)

Group Chief Executive
(Stuart Haire)

Managing and providing leadership to the Board and Group, safeguarding and promoting
the long-term success and sustainability of the Society in the interests of current and future
members.

Establishing agendas for Board meetings, ensuring they are appropriately focused on
strategy, performance, culture and risk management matters, and proactively manage the
annual calendar of business to ensure the most appropriate use of the Board's time.

Fostering a culture where Board members are able to challenge issues openly and encourage
and manage strong debate whilst achieving decisions on issues considered by the Board.

Demonstrating ethical leadership and uphold the highest standards of integrity and probity,
setting clear expectations concerning the Society’'s and Group's culture and behaviour.

Building an effective and diverse Board reflecting an appropriate balance of skills and
experience given the Group's current and future activities.

Leading the development of and monitor the effective implementation of policies and
procedures for the training and professional development of all of the non-executive directors.

Ensuring effective communication with all stakeholder groups and communicating with the
Society's members on behalf of the Board.

Supporting the Group Chief Executive and leading the annual appraisal of the Group Chief
Executive.

Delivering the strategy for the Group as set by the Board.
Ensuring the prudent day-to-day management of all Group businesses.
Providing leadership and direction to and developing the vision and strategy of the Group.

Communicating the purpose, vision, strategy and performance of the Skipton Group to
members, colleagues, regulators and other stakeholders.

Building and leading an effective Group executive team to manage Group businesses in the
longer-term interests of the Society’s members.

Ensuring that effective succession and development plans are in place and implemented for
all key executive roles.

Leading the Group Executive Committee to successfully deliver agreed plans, objectives and
targets within the Board agreed appetite for risk.

Monitoring the effective implementation of policies and procedures for the induction, training
and on-going development of all individuals performing designated senior management
functions on behalf of the Group.
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Time commitment

One of the criteria which the Board takes into consideration when recruiting a non-executive director is their ability to have
sufficient time to take on the position. In addition, throughout their term of office with the Society, directors are required to
inform the Chair in advance of any other positions that they wish to take up so that the time commitment and any potential

conflict of interest can be considered.

Chair 80 — 100 days per annum

Senior Independent Director and Deputy Chair
Non-executive directors

Committee chairs

As required to fulfil the role

On average between 30 and 36 days per annum

Board Audit Committee — on average between 2 and 2.5 days per

month on top of the time commitment of non-executive directors

Board Change Committee - on average between 1.5 and 2 days per
month on top of the time commitment of non-executive directors

Board Remuneration Committee - on average 2 days a month on top of
the time commitment of non-executive directors

Board Risk Committee - on average between 3 and 3.5 days per month
on top of the time commitment of non-executive directors

Copies of the letter of appointment for each of the non-executive directors are available for inspection on request from the

Group Secretary and General Counsel.

Conflicts of interest

The Society's directors are required to comply with the Board
Conflicts of Interest Policy. The policy gives effect to various
legal and regulatory requirements on the Society in relation
to conflicts of interest and aims to ensure that directors

of the Society do not assume roles which would conflict
with their obligations as a director of the Society. Prior to
appointment, all potential directors are required to disclose
any actual or potential conflicts of interest that may prevent
them from taking on an appointment with the Society.

In addition, all directors must seek approval from the

Chair and the Group Secretary and General Counsel before
committing to any additional external appointment. Where
such approval is sought, the director must confirm the
existence of any potential or actual conflicts and that the
role will not exceed the maximum number of directorships
permitted (in accordance with regulatory requirements).
Such a director is required to provide assurance that the
appointment will not adversely impact that individual’s ability
to continue to fulfil their role as a director.

In accordance with their duties as directors, each director
is also obliged to notify the Board of any actual or potential
interest that they have in a matter to be considered at a
meeting. If any potential conflict does arise, the Board
Conflicts of Interest Policy permits the Board to authorise
a conflict, subject to any conditions or limitations as it
may deem appropriate. Such instances are recorded in the
minutes of the relevant meeting. The Board maintains a
register of conflicts of interest which is maintained by the
Group Secretary and General Counsel.
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Induction and professional development

On appointment, new directors receive a comprehensive
and tailored induction programme covering the Group's
businesses and regulatory environment. Ongoing training
and development needs are identified and addressed
through regular review and usually take the form of
attendance at external seminars and Board training sessions
led by relevant internal and external specialists. Those
directors from a non-banking background are provided

with specific training on the capital and liquidity regimes
governing the Society’s operations. Non-executive directors
are encouraged to liaise with individual members of the
Group Executive Committee to demonstrate support and to
undertake subsidiary, branch and department visits on an
ongoing basis.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Group Secretary and General Counsel, who is responsible
for advising the Board on all corporate governance matters
and for ensuring that Board procedures are followed. The
appointment of the Group Secretary and General Counsel is
a matter reserved to the Board.

All directors also have access to independent professional
advice, if required, at the expense of the business and have
the benefit of appropriate liability insurance cover.

Board evaluation

The Board undertakes an annual performance and effectiveness
evaluation of itself and its committees. At least every three years,
this review is conducted by an external facilitator. In 2019, the
Board engaged Praesta Partners LLP to undertake the annual
performance evaluation of the Board and its committees. In line
with this framework, the 2022 review should have been externally
facilitated. However, in light of the level of changes that took
place at Board level in 2022 and in H1 2023, | felt that it would be
more beneficial to delay the external review until the planned new
appointments had been made.

In terms of continuous improvement, the areas of focus
arising from the 2022 internal Board and Board committee
evaluation process were as follows:

+  The Board has recognised and agreed the need to foster
a more modern, ambitious performance focused culture
within the business, investing in colleagues to enable
them to succeed.

+ The Board has agreed to take tangible steps ‘to make
membership matter’ for members and colleagues. This
will involve giving members more opportunities to get
more involved with the Society. Making membership
matter is a particular focus of the Strategic Plan signed
off by the Board in December 2023.

+ The Board recognises the need to foster greater diversity
at all levels within the Group to better reflect the make-
up of the communities in which it operates and which it
serves. The Board will continue to monitor and promote
diversity within the Group throughout the coming year.

Following the completion of a competitive tendering process,
the Board engaged Clare Chalmers Ltd to undertake the
2023 annual performance evaluation of the Board and

its committees. This review was completed in Q4 2023.

The outcomes of that review were discussed at the Board
meeting in February 2024, with feedback regarding the
effectiveness of each Board committee to be discussed by
the relevant committee.

The findings and key themes of this review will be used to
inform a new Board Effectiveness Action Plan for 2024, the
progress of which will be monitored during 2024 and beyond
by the Board itself.

Individual review

Individual non-executive directors are evaluated on a one-
to-one basis by the Chair. Executive directors are evaluated
by the Group Chief Executive against agreed performance
targets for their areas of responsibility and their own
personal performance. The Chair evaluates the Group Chief
Executive's performance whilst the Deputy Chair and Senior
Independent Director leads the Board evaluation of the
Chair's performance. All such reviews are conducted at least
annually and documented accordingly.

Remuneration

Details relating to directors’ remuneration are contained in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Directors’ service contracts and notice periods

The executive directors are engaged on rolling service
contracts which can be terminated by either the Society or the

director giving one year's notice. Unless notice to terminate is
given by either party, the contracts continue automatically.

All non-executive directors are provided with a letter of
appointment on joining the Board and do not have
service contracts.

Accountability and audit

Financial reporting

The directors, after making appropriate enquiries and on
review of internal management reports and completion of the
external audit, consider that these Annual Report & Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable, and
provide the information necessary for members to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy. Further
details on how this conclusion has been arrived at can be
found in the Board Audit Committee Report.

The responsibilities of the directors in relation to the preparation
of the Group's Annual Accounts and a statement that the Group
is a going concern are contained in the statements of directors’
responsibilities in the Directors’ Report.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for determining the Group's
strategy for managing risk and overseeing its systems of
internal control which includes reviewing and approving its
risk appetite on, at least, an annual basis.

The executive directors and senior management are
responsible for the continuous operation of an effective

risk management framework based on a robust system

of internal control. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
Group's business objectives. The principal categories of risk
confronting the Group are described in greater detail in the
Risk Management Report, together with an explanation of
the Three Lines of Defence framework adopted by the Group
for managing risk.

The Board reviews the ongoing effectiveness of its internal
control systems through a combination of processes including:

+ regular reports to the Board by the chairs of its various
committees;

+  presentations to the Board by divisional leaders relating
to the strategy and performance of businesses within
each of the divisions, summarising business perfor-
mance, key business risks, issues and strategies;

+ reqgular reports to the Board, through the Board Audit
Committee, from the Group Internal Audit function in
respect of its independent audits of risk management
processes and effectiveness of internal controls across
the Group (the Group Chief Internal Auditor reports to
the Chair of the Board Audit Committee and attends
Board Audit Committee meetings). The Board also takes
into account Group Internal Audit’s overall view on the
adequacy of the Group’s internal controls based on their
work; and

« reqgular reports to the Board, through the Board Risk
Committee, from the Risk function on the principal
conduct, operational, credit, market and liquidity risks
facing the Group and the strength of the controls in
place to mitigate these.
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The Group has a comprehensive system for reporting
financial results to the Board. Each business prepares
monthly results with comparisons against budget which
the Board reviews and challenges, as appropriate, where
performance is not in line with expectations.

The Group has a number of central oversight and control
functions, including Finance, Risk and Compliance, which
establish and monitor the implementation of compliance
and operational standards across the Group. Each of
these functions is subject to review by the Group Internal
Audit function.

The Group Internal Audit function is responsible for
independently reviewing and reporting on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls operated by management
throughout the Group, thereby helping to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management. Through

its programme of work, approved by the Board Audit
Committee, the Group Internal Audit function is able to
provide assurance on control effectiveness.

Board and Committee membership attendance record

To ensure sufficient focus is devoted to risk oversight, the
Group Chief Risk Officer role is a senior executive position
and member of the Group Executive Committee. The Board
Risk Committee and the Board receive regular reports from
the Group Chief Risk Officer throughout the year and he
attends meetings of the Board. The Board is satisfied that
it understands the risks confronting the Group and that
senior management are taking appropriate action to
mitigate these. More detail is provided on these in the Risk
Management Report.

During the year work has continued to strengthen Group
oversight of the risk management and control frameworks
in place within subsidiary businesses and to further improve
risk reporting from those businesses including Skipton
International Limited. The Board is satisfied that the Group
maintained an adequate system of internal control during
2023, with a clear focus on risk management. This was
carried out in a manner that met the requirements of the
Code and good business practice generally.

The attendance of directors at scheduled Board and committee meetings during the year is set out below:

Scheduled | Board Audit | Board Change

Committee Committee
Gwyn Burr 90f9
Andrew Bottomley 90f9
Richard Coates 30f3 20f2
(note 2)
lain Cummings 90f9 6 0of 6 20f2
Steven Davis
(note 3) il
Stuart Haire 90f9
Denis Hall 90f9 6 of 6
Heather Jackson 90f9 20f2
Mark Lund 90f9 6 of 6
Bobby Ndawula 90f9
Philip Moore 80f9 6 of 6
Sarah Whitney
(note 4) 50f5
Notes:

Board Board NED .
Nominations | Remuneration | Remuneration ggz:\mzt
Committee Committee Committee
1of 1 1of 1
1of 1
30f3
1of 1 50f5
10of1 7of7
1of1
1of 1 90f 9
10of1 90f9 90f9
1of1 80f9
1of 1
1of 1 7 of9

1. Where Directors are not available to attend meetings, they nonetheless receive all papers and provide feedback as appropriate.

2. Richard Coates retired from the Board on 24 April 2023.
3. Steven Davis was appointed as a non-executive director effective from 3 April 2023.
4. Sarah Whitney was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 May 2023.
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Relations with stakeholders

The Board understands the importance of engaging with
its stakeholders and ensuring that it is aware of their
views and alert to their concerns. It has identified its key
stakeholders as:

* our members and customers;

« our people;

« our suppliers;

« our banking counterparties; and

+ ourregulators.

Members and customers

The Society’s membership comprises its savers, borrowers,
holders of its Permanent Interest Bearing Shares (PIBS)
and non-corporate borrowers. This is different to the
shareholders of a listed company, whose owners may
include institutional shareholders. The vast majority of the
Society's customers are, therefore, its members and the
Society encourages feedback from them on any aspect of
its activities and seeks to respond quickly to all enquiries
received.

Against a backdrop of significant economic and political
uncertainty, it is of the utmost importance that we
understand our customers and listen to their feedback.
During 2023, to ensure we were providing products and
services that meet our customers ever changing needs and
expectations we conducted a comprehensive range of
large-scale market research which included:

« getting an up-to-date view of customers lives, their
goals and priorities and how these have changed since
the COVID-19 pandemic;

+ launching a customer closeness programme that
allows us to monitor how customers are feeling about
prominent topics such as the cost-of-living crisis and
any impact on financial behaviours and needs; and

+ evaluating customers experience of dealing with
the Society and how satisfied they are with their
relationship with us; consisting of both in the moment
feedback following an interaction, and a more
holistic view of how well the Society is meeting their
expectations.

Beyond the above, we continue to use direct customer
feedback and research to inform strategic planning,
campaign development, product and customer journey
design. All research is conducted by Market Research
Society registered practitioners, both in-house and with
carefully selected partners, including award-winning
research agencies.

Utilising this research, we were able to make improvements
in 2023 that have benefited our customers;

+  We understand that now more than ever, our members
want to make the most of their money.

*  During ISA season we launched market leading
ISA products.

«  Throughout the year we have continued to release
competitive savings products and as at the 31
December 2023 we paid 0.65% above market
average on all our savings rates.

+  We developed new product and functionality to suit our
customer needs.

+ Alimited access bond which allowed customers
a better rate but unlike a fixed product customers
can still access up to 50% of their money if they
needed to.

+ Accounts to give customers more choice and
control of how they manage their money via
different channels regardless of how they opened it.

+  For our mortgage customers we mitigated the impact of
base rate increases on reversion rates.

* By extending the switch window at the end of Fixed
Rate mortgage periods, customers can secure a follow-
on rate up to 6 months in advance which provides more
certainty and peace of mind.

«  With energy prices being front of mind for many of our
customers alongside sustainability more generally, we
felt customers would value understanding the energy
efficiency rating of their homes and how to improve
them. As a result, we have launched our free EPC Plus
report which is available to all mortgage customers.

In 2023 the Society has continued to achieve extremely high
levels of net customer satisfaction, scoring 85%.

As a mutual organisation it's important for us to be
transparent in sharing our customer feedback. This has
been demonstrated by our continued pursuit to gain public
reviews from customers via our partnership with Trustpilot.
Since integrating this with our existing ongoing research
programme towards the end of 2020, we have maintained a
strong rating of 4.3 stars out of 5 as at 31 December 2023.

Our people

It is important to us that we have a thorough understanding
of our people’s views regarding their experience of working
at the Society and we do this in a number of ways — through
team meetings, surveys, employer review websites, listening
sessions and independent assessments. We have evolved
our approach to colleague listening and involvement

during 2023, focusing more on co-creation and colleague
participation in developing our culture and ways of

working. This has proved invaluable participation informing
the design of all our work relating to colleagues. For
example, the co-created Behaviours Framework has been
incorporated into our strategic communications, leadership
definition, performance management and approach to
colleague recognition.

Colleagues were also closely involved in the cultural
diagnostic work undertaken during the year, through
quantitative and qualitative research methods such as a
survey, focus groups and interviews. A key outcome from
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that work is a clear definition for our target culture, as part
of our cultural renovation. Our target culture recognises our
cultural strengths, our colleagues’ desire for change and

a focus on delivering the best for our members today and
in the future. The principles and actions behind how we
communicated during recent changes to the organisational
design were informed by the insights gained from the
cultural diagnostic work.

Part of our evolving approach to colleague listening and
participation is the desire to influence the large and small
details that form part of the everyday colleague experience.
In terms of the large details, we have a programme to
transform our technology, customer and colleague journeys
where we are directly engaging with colleagues on how

we build our systems and processes. As part of our digital
transformation programme, we actively involve colleagues
in testing the customer engagement platform, asking them
to be critical and find what worked and what we'd missed so
far — key points of feedback were received from this and are
being incorporated into the design of the system that will

go live.

In terms of the smaller but important details, additional
emphasis has been placed on leaders listening to their
teams for feedback and to act upon this locally, empowering
both leaders and colleagues. Recent changes to the
Society’s organisational structure were designed with
outcomes such as better decision-making, communication
and engagement in mind, by having more empowered
colleagues closer to senior leaders to influence how

we work. We feel it is important that the experience of
colleagues and utilisation of feedback should be active
locally through all leaders and teams, rather than centrally
and we will continue to use colleague feedback to inform
our work.

In line with the Code’s requirements, the Board has
appointed non-executive director Philip Moore to be the
director responsible for providing a further avenue for the
voice of our people to be heard at the Board table. He has
conducted a series of ‘listening sessions’ where up to 20 of
our people at a time are invited to a meeting to share their
views on the Society, how they feel in the workplace, how
they feel customers are treated and ideas on what we could
do better and any other topic they wish to raise. A summary
of the feedback from each session has been presented to
the Board. Together with regular personal communications
from members of the Group Executive Committee in the
form of videos, we have also continued to hold quarterly
Strategic Updates where colleagues can ask questions

of the Group Chief Executive and the Group Executive
Committee regarding our direction of travel.

Suppliers

The Group closely monitors all its business relationships
with suppliers, on an ongoing basis, assessing any risk of
an adverse impact on our members, customers, our people
and the environment in which we operate as a result of
these relationships, or as a result of our policies. There

is a continuing focus on the development of the supplier
management framework with the aim of strengthening the
oversight and relationships we have with our suppliers.
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As part of this framework we issue an annual, online,
anonymous questionnaire for completion by suppliers to
assess our performance as a customer. The topics covered
included how timely and accurate we are when paying
invoices, if our corporate responsibility values are clear and
views on whether we live these, strength of relationships and
comparison of our approach to other clients.

Previous feedback has been very positive and the latest
survey was issued to suppliers in Q4 2023 with an update to
the Board planned for Q1 2024.

As part of our focus on sustainability, the Group is clear
regarding the selection of new firms aligning to our
expectations. We are now looking at ways in which we can
help support our existing supply chain to achieve better
ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance practices)
outcomes, using data from our ESG assessment platform.

Regulators

Fostering a positive relationship with our regulators is a

key priority for the Board and senior management team,
supported by continuous dialogue as appropriate. This
involves not only the provision of prescribed reports but
updates from the senior management team on matters we
believe should be drawn to our regulators’ attention. The
Board sees it as important that regulatory bodies are kept
up to date with strategic and operational developments
within the Group and that they maintain ongoing confidence
in the Board and management team.

Banking counterparties

Senior executives and our Treasury team hold meetings with
banks and debt investors, where appropriate, to update them
on the Group's performance and respond to any questions.
This is a long-established arrangement which is seen to
work well.

Whistleblowing (speaking out)

The Society has in place arrangements to ensure that
those who work for us speak up about concerns so
that colleagues can raise concerns in confidence and
anonymously, and that these can be investigated and
properly dealt with.

The Society is committed to ensuring that no-one will be
at risk of detrimental treatment from the Society or its
employees as a result of raising a concern.

The Society provides training on whistleblowing annually
to all colleagues and during the year established a new
channel which enables colleagues and others to report
concerns via Safecall, an independent third party.

Each major business within the Group maintains its

own Whistleblowing Policy. The Board’s commitment to
whistleblowing is supported by the appointment of a non-
executive director as Board champion for this important
area. During the year, following Board approval, this
responsibility moved from myself to lain Cummings, who
also chairs the Board Audit Committee.

The Board Speak Out Champion has overall responsibility
for ensuring and overseeing the integrity, independence
and effectiveness of the Society’s and the Group's
whistleblowing policies and procedures, including
arrangements for protecting whistleblowers against
detrimental treatment. The Speak Out Champion also
ensures that a report is presented to the Board annually
regarding the effectiveness of whistleblowing systems
and controls across the Group.

The Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Each year the Society gives all eligible members at least 21
clear days' notice of its AGM. At the meeting, the Chair, the
Group Chief Executive and the Group Chief Financial Officer
report back to members on the previous year's performance
and the main developments across the Group. Members
have the opportunity to raise questions and put forward
their views. All directors normally attend the AGM, unless
their absence cannot be avoided, and are available for
questions both during a ‘question and answer’ session in
the meeting and on an individual basis before and after

the meeting.

All eligible members are encouraged to vote at the AGM
(either personally or by appointing a representative),
although the voting form includes a ‘vote withheld’ option.
Members can vote either at the AGM, by post or online at
skipton.co.uk/agm. All votes are returned to independent
scrutineers. A poll is called in relation to each resolution
at the AGM and the results of the vote are published on
the Society's website and in branches. As a minimum, the
Society’'s members at the AGM are asked to vote on the
Society's Annual Report & Accounts, election or re-election
of all directors, appointment or re-appointment of the
external auditor and the Report on Directors’ Remuneration.

| am pleased to report that no resolution received less than
91% support from members at the 2023 AGM.

Board priorities in 2024

Together with the senior leadership team, the Board will
continue to focus on the delivery of the Group's strategy
in 2024 through our Strategic Plan. Other priorities for the
Board in 2024 include:

« continuing to enhance Group oversight and governance
arrangements;

+ continuing its oversight of Consumer Duty following on
from training and updates received during 2023;

« agreeing and overseeing the actions arising from the
2023 externally facilitated review of the Board's own
effectiveness;

« fostering an open and inclusive culture which supports
and promotes individual personal development
through the performance and accountability evaluation
mechanism;

+ maintaining a focus on geopolitical risks and the
potential impact of those risks on members and the
communities served by the Group;

continuing its oversight of the Society's change
programme; and

« maintaining oversight of legal and regulatory changes
which affect the operation of the Group.

Conclusion

In summary, | believe that, except for the matters
explained at the beginning of this report, the governance
arrangements operated by the Group align with the Code’s
requirements and have enabled the Board to exercise
effective oversight of business performance, regulatory
requirements and delivery of our customer proposition.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Q\A\&\- V '-_S\‘W

Gwyn Burr
Chair

27 February 2024
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Dear Member,

On behalf of the Committee, | am pleased to present this
year's Board Audit Committee Report, which provides an
overview of how we, as a Committee, have discharged our
responsibilities, setting out the significant issues we have
reviewed and concluded on during the year.

The report focuses mainly on the following three areas:
+ therole and responsibilities of the Committee;

+ the main activities of the Committee during the
year; and

« areview of the effectiveness of the Committee.

Membership and attendees

The members of the Board Audit Committee during the year were:

Denis Hall
Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director
(appointed to Committee Chair
25 April 2023)

lain Cummings
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Mark Lund

Philip Moore Richard Coates

(retired as Committee Chair 24
April 2023)

The Committee held six scheduled meetings during 2023
and the attendance of its members at these meetings is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Committee held private discussions during the year
with the external auditor Ernst & Young LLP (EY), the Group
Chief Financial Officer, the Group Chief Risk Officer and the
Group Chief Internal Auditor, to provide an opportunity

for any relevant issues to be raised directly with
Committee members.

In addition to Committee members, others who regularly
attend meetings (by invitation) include the Group Chief
Executive, the Chair, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the
Group Secretary and General Counsel, the Group Chief Risk
Officer, the Head of Compliance, the Group Chief Internal
Auditor and external audit representatives.

The Committee is currently comprised of four members,

all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Consideration is given towards ensuring that the Board
Audit Committee as a whole has competence relevant to the
financial services sector.

The Board is satisfied that the composition of the Board
Audit Committee includes non-executive directors with
recent, relevant financial experience to provide appropriate
challenge to management. The relevant experience of the
members of the Board Audit Committee is set out in the
Board of Directors Report.

In terms of good governance and to ensure holistic
oversight, | am also a member of the Board Risk Committee
(as are Denis and Philip).

Role and responsibilities of the Committee

The responsibilities of the Committee are delegated by

the Board and are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on our website at skipton.co.uk/about-
us/governance/board-committees. These are in line with
the provisions of the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC)
‘Guidance on Audit Committees’ which was last updated in
April 2016. Our primary responsibilities are:

+  to keep under review the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls, including financial controls and risk
management systems;

« to monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting
process, specifically by reviewing, challenging and
recommending the Group's annual and interim financial
statements to the Board for approval, reviewing and
approving any formal announcements relating to the
Group's financial performance and reviewing and
challenging, as necessary, the significant estimates and
judgements in relation to the financial statements and
reporting how these were addressed;

+ to provide advice to the Board on whether the Annual
Report & Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable and provide the information
necessary for members to assess the Group's strategy,
business model and performance;

+  to provide oversight of the external audit process by
monitoring the relationship with the external auditor,
agreeing their remuneration and terms of engagement,
monitoring their performance, objectivity and independ-
ence, ensuring that the policy to provide non-audit ser-
vices is appropriately applied and making recommenda-
tions to the Board on their appointment, re-appointment
or removal;

+  toreview the effectiveness and independence of the
Group Internal Audit and Compliance Monitoring func-
tions, approve their annual plans, review performance
against these plans on a quarterly basis, review their
material findings and oversee plans to remedy any
shortcomings; and

+ toreport to the Board on how we have discharged our
responsibilities.

The minutes of the Board Audit Committee are distributed to
the members following each meeting and |, as Chair of the
Committee, provide a verbal report to the next Board meeting
after each meeting of the Committee.

New guidance

In May 2023 the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published
Audit Committees and the External Audit: Minimum Standard
(‘Minimum Standard’). The FRC developed the Minimum
Standard in direct response to the UK Government’s
consultation on Restoring Trust in Audit and Corporate
Governance, which included an intention to grant statutory
powers to ARGA (the new Audit, Reporting and Governance
Authority that will take over from the FRC) for mandating
minimum standards for audit committees in their role on
external audits.

The primary objective of the Minimum Standard, which will
apply to FTSE350 companies, is to enhance performance
and ensure a consistent approach across audit committees.
By setting out clear expectations and guidelines, the FRC
aims to support the delivery of high-quality audits and
reinforce public trust in the financial reporting process.
Whilst Skipton is not in-scope for mandatory compliance
with the Minimum Standard, the Group will consider a gap
analysis between our current practices and the minimum
standards. Any changes required will be made to ensure that
we can demonstrate that we consistently achieve at least the
minimum standards in all areas.

Activities of the Committee during the year

During 2023 our work fell under three main areas, in line with
our responsibilities, as follows:

a) Internal controls and risk

The Group recognises the importance of good systems of
internal control in the achievement of its objectives and

the safequarding of its assets. Good internal controls also
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, help
to ensure the reliability of internal and external reporting and
assist in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Group operates in a dynamic business environment
and, as a result, the risks it faces change continually.
Management is responsible for designing the internal
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control framework to ensure thorough and regular evaluation
of the nature and extent of risk and the Group’s ability to
react accordingly. Management is also responsible for
implementing the Board's policies on risk and control, noting
that all employees are responsible for internal control as part
of their individual objectives.

Further details of the Group's risk management practices are
provided in the Risk Management Report.

Through the Committee, the Group Internal Audit function
provides independent assurance to the Board on the
effectiveness of the internal control framework. The
information received and considered by the Committee
during 2023 provided assurance that there were no
significant control failings that would lead to a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Group Internal Audit is supported, as required, by external co-
source partners who are able to provide specialist technical
support when required. The Group Chief Internal Auditor
reports to me and as a Committee we are responsible

for ensuring that Group Internal Audit has adequate skills
and resource levels that are sufficient to provide the level

of assurance required. The Committee is satisfied that,
throughout 2023, Group Internal Audit had an appropriate
level of resources in order to carry out its responsibilities
effectively and that it continues to do so.

The Board Audit Committee is also responsible for approving
the annual budget of Group Internal Audit and approved its
plans of audit work for 2023. This is prepared on a risk-
based approach by Group Internal Audit, reflecting input from
management and the Committee.

We review reports produced by Group Internal Audit and,
through Group Internal Audit, track management actions

to completion; Group Internal Audit then verifies these
periodically, using a risk-based approach, after management
has reported them as complete. Group Internal Audit
provides the Committee with reports on material findings
and recommendations and updates on the progress made by
management in addressing their findings.

We monitor and assess the role and effectiveness of the
Group Internal Audit function in the overall context of

the Group’s risk management systems. The Committee
assesses the effectiveness and independence of Group
Internal Audit annually, immediately following the year end,
and this is reported to and discussed at a meeting of the
Committee shortly thereafter.

During the year, the main areas reviewed were as follows:

+ the governance framework and key controls around
significant prudential and financial risk areas, including
capital and liquidity;

+  key controls around information technology, cyber
security, data protection and operational resilience
risks;

+  key project management controls for material projects
in place to support business strategy;

+ the Society’s credit risk management framework as well
as compliance with the new lending policy; and
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« anumber of specific areas of internal control in
the Group’s subsidiaries, including significant
change projects.

Following a risk assessment visit to Skipton International
(SIL) by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission (GFSC)
in the year, recommended enhancements were identified,
which SIL are in the process of addressing to strengthen

its control environment. The Board Audit Committee will

be monitoring closely the delivery of the internal control
enhancements that have been identified as necessary.

The Committee also has oversight responsibility for the
Society’'s Compliance Monitoring function that provides
second line assurance over conduct risk on activities
regulated by the FCA, as well as assurance over financial
crime and data protection. The Compliance Monitoring
Plan includes control reviews, shorter focused reviews and
customer outcomes testing which includes, but is not limited
to, investment, pension, mortgage and protection advice,
credit management, complaint handling and post-sale
customer outcomes. Consideration is given to Consumer
Duty as part of all relevant reviews and consumer duty-
specific reviews will also be included in the plan where
relevant. The Compliance Monitoring function’s six-monthly
plans of work were approved by the Committee and the
outputs are reported to the Committee, together with
progress updates on management'’s implementation of
actions to address the findings.

The Committee periodically reviews the use of the
confidential reporting channel in the Group. Awareness

of whistleblowing arrangements is maintained through
internal communication and is covered as part of colleague
induction and ongoing development. The Committee also
receives biannual updates from the Director of Group
Finance on tax matters impacting the Group.

As part of the external audit process, the Society’s auditor
provides us with reports on the results of their testing of the
effectiveness of internal controls.

Other matters considered by the Committee during the year
include the following:

« government proposals for significant reforms to UK
audit and corporate governance;

« impacts of changes in the economic environment; and

« impacts on the Group from fraud risks and related
preventative and detective controls

In line with good practice, the Committee requires an
external effectiveness review of the Group Internal Audit
function at least every five years, which considers the quality,
experience and expertise of the function. The most recent
such review took place in 2019 and concluded that the Group
Internal Audit function was operating effectively. The next
review will take place in the first half of 2024. The Committee
led on the selection process to appoint a third party to
conduct this review.

b) Financial reporting

The Committee considers the financial information published
in the Group’s annual and interim financial statements and

considers the accounting policies adopted by the Group,
presentation and disclosure of financial information and,
in particular, the key estimates and judgements made by
management in preparing the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report & Accounts. At the request of the Board, we
considered whether the 2023 Annual Report & Accounts
were fair, balanced and understandable and whether they
provided the necessary information for members to assess the
Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

This was assessed in the following ways:

+  best practice guidance and recommendations, including
those published by the FRC and leading audit firms,
were reviewed and analysed against the Annual Report
& Accounts, and enhancements implemented as a
result of this analysis where necessary;

+ the Group Executive Committee and the Board have been
involved in reviewing and commenting on various drafts
of the Annual Report & Accounts, to help ensure that the
final version is fair, balanced and understandable;

+ the Committee reviewed and was satisfied that the
alternative performance measure of underlying profit
before tax (defined in the Strategic Report), which is
reported alongside the statutory profit measure, gives
a clearer view of the underlying performance of the
business for our members and is in line with the agreed
policy; and

+ athorough review was undertaken by the Financial
Reporting team to ensure there was appropriate
supporting evidence for the content of the Annual
Report & Accounts.

The Committee is satisfied that, taken as a whole, the 2023
Annual Report & Accounts are fair, balanced and understandable
and include the necessary information as set out above. The
Committee has confirmed this to the Board, whose statement in
this regard is set out in the Directors’ Report.

We pay particular attention to matters we consider to be
important by virtue of their impact on the Group's results,

and particularly those which involve a high level of complexity,
judgement or estimation by the Board. The key areas of
estimate and judgement that we considered in reviewing the
2023 Annual Report & Accounts are set out below:

Significant matter Committee action taken

Going concern and
longer-term viability

The Committee reviewed the adoption of the going concern assumption for the Interim Accounts and the
Annual Accounts, adopting the same comprehensive approach for both reporting periods. This involves

review

Impairment of
financial assets

rigorous consideration, based on reports produced by key risk functions around the business as requested by
the Committee, of our current and projected liquidity, capital and funding positions, together with the Group's
principal risks. Risks considered include those arising from business activities (for example credit risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and conduct risk), from market changes, from social, economic and political factors
(such as continuing global inflationary pressures and the Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Hamas conflicts)) and
from climate change. Potential stress scenarios were also considered. Based on this review, we concluded
that the adoption of the going concern assumption to prepare the financial statements remains appropriate.
The Committee has reviewed the statement on the longer-term viability of the Group in the Directors’ Report,
together with papers produced by management and key risk functions in support of this statement. This
includes consideration of the Group's latest corporate plans, the impact of these plans on the Group’s
liquidity, capital and funding positions, and the impact of risks from business activities, from market
changes, from social, economic and political factors, from climate change and from stress scenarios. The
stress scenarios considered included scenarios that could cause the Group to fail; the Committee concluded
that the likelihood of any such scenario materialising in a way that would threaten the Group's longer-term
viability is sufficiently low. Based on this analysis, the longer-term viability statement was recommended to, and
approved by, the Board.

The Committee has monitored loan impairment provisions, taking account of the requirements of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments. We have reviewed the appropriateness of critical judgements made by management,
including the definition of default and the determination of significant increase in credit risk.

We have considered the impact of key assumptions within the Group's loan impairment models (such as
house prices, unemployment and other forward-looking economic indicators within defined economic
scenarios) on the level of provisions made and the relevant disclosure in the Accounts. The Group has
during the year updated its economic scenarios and the weightings attached to each scenario; this
includes revisions to reflect increased political and economic uncertainty (due to factors including global
inflationary pressures and the events in Ukraine and the Middle East). We note that, in particular, revision
of the Group's view of future interest rates has resulted in a decrease in the Group’s loan impairment
provisions; this is reflected both in the modelled impairment amounts and in the post model adjustments.

With respect to climate-related risks, the results of scenario analysis performed by management
during the year has not materially impacted the Group's loan impairment provisions. We recognise that
the future impact of climate-related risks on credit risk is uncertain and we will continue to monitor
developments in future periods.

Against the backdrop of volatile economic conditions, we have examined and challenged the
assumptions adopted and have scrutinised reports produced by management. In December 2023,
we gave due consideration to loan impairment provisions; in light of the economic conditions, we
paid particular attention to any model limitations and held detailed review and discussion of post
model adjustments.
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Significant matter

Impairment of
financial assets
(continued)

Fair valuation of
the equity release
portfolio

Revenue recognition
relating to effective
interest rate
accounting

Appropriateness of
provisioning for legal
or regulatory matters

Defined benefit
pension liability

Revenue recognition
within the Estate
Agency division

Impairment of estate
agency right-of-use
assets

Committee action taken

We are satisfied with the models used during the year to calculate loan impairment provisions for both
the residential and commercial mortgage portfolios, together with the post model adjustments that have
been applied.

The Committee has also monitored the level of impairment held against treasury assets under IFRS 9,
including scrutinising reports produced by the Market & Liquidity Risk function. We consider the level of
impairment held against these assets to be appropriate.

The Group holds an equity release portfolio which is closed to new business. The Group has internally
devised a fair valuation model, using inputs including mortality rates, voluntary prepayment rates,
estimates of future RPI and a house price index, and associated volatility, to predict future cash flows on
the portfolio. As the valuation technique uses some inputs that are not based on observable market data,
judgement is required in determining appropriate assumptions.

The Committee has reviewed the assumptions within the equity release fair valuation model and
scrutinised supporting papers prepared by management. Taking into account the specific characteristics
of this portfolio, and also general macro-economic indicators, the Committee considers that the inputs
and assumptions are appropriate, and therefore that the valuation of the equity release portfolio is
appropriate in the 2023 Annual Report & Accounts.

The Group hedges the interest rate and inflation risk arising from its equity release portfolio through
the use of derivatives. These derivatives are valued using discounted cash flow models which include
estimated redemption profiles and, due to the long-dated nature of these derivatives, any changes

to estimates or assumptions can have a significant effect on the valuation of the derivatives. As the
underlying mortgage portfolio is not held at amortised cost under IFRS 9, hedge accounting cannot be
applied. Both the equity release portfolio and the swaps are held at fair value through profit and loss.
There is some natural offsetting between the changes in value of the portfolio and the derivatives but
this is not perfect, partly due to the different discounting requirements. The Committee has reviewed
papers prepared by management that support the assumptions used and which outline the control
framework management has in place; the Committee is satisfied that the amounts recognised in the
Income Statement are fairly stated and that the valuations of these derivatives are appropriate. Given
the sensitivity of the fair value to certain key assumptions, the Committee also reviewed those key
sensitivities and is satisfied that these are fairly presented in Note 1u) to the Accounts.

Interest income on the Group’s mortgages is measured under the effective interest rate method, as explained
in Note Te) to the Accounts. This method includes an estimation of mortgage product lives. The Committee
reviewed the reports prepared by management, to support these estimates and is satisfied with the
conclusions reached in this respect.

The Committee examined reports received from management regarding the recognition and amounts
of provisions and considered the existence of any contingent liabilities. Taking account of known
issues, including the Group’s principal and emerging risks, we concluded that all such provisions were
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in these Accounts and we agreed with management’s
conclusion on the existence or otherwise of any contingent liabilities.

The Group manages three funded defined benefit pension schemes, as presented in Note 31
to the Accounts.

The Committee has examined and challenged the pension scheme assumptions adopted in these Accounts
and is satisfied that these are reasonable and appropriate; this includes consideration in particular of
scheme asset valuations, given volatility of market pricing during the year.

The Committee has considered the risk relating to the recognition of revenue within the Estate Agency
division, as described by the external auditor within the Independent Auditor's Report. The Committee
reviewed reports prepared by management and by EY regarding the effectiveness of key controls over
the revenue recognition process. The Committee also considered the results of external audit testing
performed in this area, including testing performed in previous years, which has not identified any
evidence of material misstatement or management override in this respect.

The Committee is comfortable that this matter has been appropriately considered and disclosed within
these Accounts.

The Committee has considered the risk relating to the impairment of estate agency right-of-use assets,
as described by the external auditor within the Independent Auditor's Report. The Committee reviewed
assessments prepared by management and the results of impairment testing performed where
indicators of impairment exist.

The Committee is satisfied that the level of provision held against right-of-use assets is appropriate.
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Other matters

We considered matters raised during the statutory external audit
and the half year independent review and, through discussion
with senior management of the business and the external
auditor, concluded that there were no adjustments required that
were material to the financial statements as presented.

c) External auditor

The Committee assesses the effectiveness and
independence of the external auditor annually, following
completion of their year-end audit, and this is reported

to and discussed at a meeting of the Committee shortly
thereafter. This assessment is facilitated by the Group’s
Financial Reporting function and is made by reference to the
FRC's ‘Guidance on Audit Committees’, which details what
is expected of the Board Audit Committee to ensure that
the annual external audit cycle is effective. The assessment
covers the external audit of the previous Annual Report &
Accounts, whilst the proposed approach to the next audit is
also discussed at this meeting, and includes consideration
of matters such as:

+ any risks to audit quality that the external auditor
identified;

+ the key controls that the external auditor relied on to
address any identified risks to audit quality, such as
appropriate audit methodologies, training and quality
control policies and procedures;

+ the findings from internal and external inspections of
the external audit and the audit firm;

+ whether the original audit plan was met;

« openness of communication between the external
auditor and senior management;

+ the skills and experience of the audit team including
whether, in the opinion of the Committee, the external
auditor demonstrated a sound understanding of the
business by, inter alia, identifying the key risks of
material misstatement to the financial statements;

+  whether an appropriate degree of challenge and
professional scepticism was applied by the external
auditor; and

+ the proposed strategy to be used in the next audit,
including the proposed level of materiality to be used.

Based on the above, senior management in the Financial
Reporting function prepared a report for the Committee
which outlined the principles contained within the FRC'’s
guidance and set out management’s view on each principle.
The Committee scrutinised this report and, together with its
own experience, formed an opinion as to the effectiveness
of the audit performed by EY in respect of the 2022 Annual
Report & Accounts. We concluded that the external auditor
had performed an audit of good quality and we were

Q'

satisfied with their independence; both parties were keen to
streamline processes in the future to enhance effectiveness
and ensure value for money. Separately, the Committee

also considered the proposed approach to the 2023 audit
and we were satisfied in this respect. Following the audit of
the 2023 Annual Report & Accounts an updated report, as
detailed above, will be presented to the Committee in 2024
for scrutiny and to conclude on the effectiveness of the 2023
audit performed by EY.

The Committee considered the FRC’s July 2022 Audit
Quality Inspection Report on EY, which did not identify from
its sample reviews any audits which required significant
improvement. The results of this FRC report have been
discussed by the Committee with EY.

The Committee regularly monitors the Group's relationship
with the external auditor and applies a policy for ensuring
auditor independence and objectivity. This policy defines
prohibited non-audit assignments (which include all tax-related
assignments) and procedures for approval of other non-audit
assignments across the Group. All non-audit assignments are
required to be pre-approved by designated mandate holders
and a limit is in place above which approval can only be given
by the Committee; a report detailing any approved expenditure
is also sent to the Committee every six months.

EY undertook a limited number of non-audit related
assignments for the Group during 2023. These were
conducted in accordance with the Group’s aforementioned
policy and are consistent with the professional and ethical
standards expected of the external auditor. Details of the
fees paid to EY for audit and non-audit services are set out
in Note 5 of the notes to the Accounts; non-audit fees during
the year represented 10.0% of total EY audit fees for the
Group (2022: 5.8%). The Group continues to monitor the
non-audit services ratio which, in accordance with the FRC's
Revised Ethical Standard 2019, is limited to 70%.

To further maintain auditor independence, the Group
has a policy, approved by the Committee, regarding the
employment of former employees of the auditor.

Effectiveness of the Board Audit Committee

The effectiveness of the Committee is assessed annually as
part of the annual Board effectiveness review, further details
of which are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
The internal 2023 review, recently completed, concluded that
we operated effectively during the year.

Committee members are expected to undertake relevant
training as part of their ongoing development and,
periodically, the Committee as a whole receives training on
current topics such as current sector challenges, regulatory
developments, conduct risk issues and financial reporting
‘hot topics’ to ensure we remain effective in our role.

lain Cummings

Chair of the Board Audit Committee
27 February 2024
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Dear Member,

On behalf of the Board Change Committee, | am pleased

to present the Committee’s first report covering the role

of this new Committee and how it has discharged its
responsibilities since being established in September 2023.

Members of the Board Change Committee

The Committee is currently comprised of two members,
myself and lain Cummings, both of whom are independent
non-executive directors with significant change management
experience. In addition to serving on this Committee, | serve
as a member of the Board Risk and Board Remuneration
Committees and lain serves as Chair of the Board Audit
Committee and as a member of the Board Risk Committee.
These arrangements ensure good interaction between the
various committees of the Board.

Having recognised the increasing scale and complexity of the
Group's on-going change programme, the Society’s board of
directors established a new committee of the board to improve
board-level oversight and governance of this important aspect
of the Society’s and Group's strategy delivery.

The Committee held two meetings during 2023. Attendance
of its members at those meetings is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

In addition to Committee members, other attendees (by
invitation) included the Group Chief Executive, the Chief
Technology and Transformation Officer, the Group Chief
Financial Officer, the CEO Money and the Group Secretary
and General Counsel. The Committee has received regular
reports directly from members of the senior management
team responsible for delivering the Change Programme
including the Transformation Programme Director, Head
of Engineering Systems Development and Head of
Transformation.
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Role and Responsibilities of the Committee

In March the Society announced plans for additional
technology investment to enhance its existing technology
programme, and it has invested £18m to date to deliver this
ambition. That investment is helping the Society deliver
increased resilience, stronger security, better member
outcomes through improved digital capabilities, better use of
data and improved ways of working for colleagues. Simply
put, all these changes enable us to better serve our members
and customers. Other Group companies will undertake
change programmes over the next few years.

The Committee’s role is to challenge and help shape how
change is delivered across the Group. It provides oversight
of the executive's strategic prioritisation of technology
change, taking into account the need to meet new regulatory
requirements, improve resilience and deliver improvements
for members and customers.

The responsibilities of the Committee are delegated by the
Board and are set out in its written terms of reference which
are available on our website at skipton.co.uk/about-us/
governance/board-committees. The Committee’s primary

responsibilities are:

+ To provide guidance, challenge and advice on the vision,
strategy for change and the implementation of change
across the Skipton Group;

+ To oversee the alignment of the Group’s Change
Programme with the technology and people strategies
and be satisfied that the Change Programme supports
the Group’s wider strategic vision;

+ To provide oversight of the Group’s Change Programme
agenda and oversee management’s plans for the
governance and use of data across the Group;

+ To provide oversight of the adequacy, performance and
management of suppliers/third party partners chosen
by the Society or its subsidiaries to support its chosen
technologies and to support the delivery of any aspect of
the Change Programme;

+  To consider horizon scanning of future industry trends and
opportunities in technology that could affect or benefit
the Group or the implementation of its strategy; and

+ To ensure change is delivered in an as efficient and
effective manner as possible.

Activities of the Committee
Since being established the Committee has focused on:

+ developing an understanding of the breadth of, and
risks associated with, the overall change portfolio and
the management and mitigation of those risks;

+ promoting the standardisation in approaches to change
delivery and reviewing the effectiveness of these;

+ understanding the progress being made to deliver the
Society’s digital transformation programme and the
benefits of that programme of work from a member
perspective; and

« fostering enhanced monitoring and evaluation of
change programmes including timely delivery of
the intended benefits.

Looking forward

In the course of 2024, the work of the Committee will
continue to evolve and will include:

« undertaking a deep dive review of the resourcing of
change;

« considering the key areas of change/technology
required to support the aims contained in the Group’s
Corporate Plan (including looking at how data is
used, cyber and cyber security, and how we might use
Artificial Intelligence (Al) in the future);

+ reviewing the third party and supplier management
associated with the Change Programme;

+ reviewing the extent and appropriateness of the
information supplied to the Board in relation to the
management, delivery and implementation of change
across the Group; and

+  keeping up to date with new industry and technology
developments relevant to the work of the Committee
and understanding how those developments can assist
how we better serve our members in the future.

Conclusion

On behalf of the Committee, | hope this report gives you a
flavour of the work of the Committee and the importance of
its future role.

|/ ,{/
7 2%
//&‘”

Heather Jackson
Chair of the Board Change Committee

27 February 2024
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Dear Member,

As the Chair of the Board Risk Committee, | am pleased to
present the 2023 Risk Management Report. This report explains
the risk management arrangements we operate at Skipton, and
what we believe to be the principal risks facing the Society and
its Group businesses (collectively referred to as the Group).

During 2023 many of the challenges seen in 2022 have
persisted, and some have worsened, as a result of the war in
Ukraine, the cost-of-living crisis, and a sharp rise in inflation.
Our focus has been, and continues to be, on supporting our
members, customers and colleagues, whilst growing our
business in a sustainable way.

From the Board Risk Committee’s perspective, we have a
comprehensive risk management framework to ensure we
remain focused on identifying, measuring, managing, and
controlling risks.

The economic uncertainty created by the war in Ukraine, and
more recently in the Middle East, coupled with high inflation,
is impacting the cost of food and fuel. We are acutely aware
of the additional strain this could cause to our members’
finances and are ready to support any of our members who
may encounter financial difficulty.

In addition to the specific challenges mentioned above, the
Group businesses have maintained focus on the full range of
risks we face.

We continue to make progress in embedding how the
impact of climate change on our members and business is
managed and mitigated. Through our Stress Testing Steering
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Committee, we assess the risks posed by climate change
and develop action plans to mitigate these risks. This is

an area where we will continue to refine and enhance our
approach as new data and best practice emerges.

Committee focus

In line with the risk management framework, the Committee
has, during the year, focused on:

« Liquidity risk, to ensure that the Group maintains a
prudent liquidity position and is well placed to respond
to the uncertain environment, whilst maintaining our
longer-term funding strategy to diversify our funding
base;

+  Capital risk, to ensure that the Group maintains and
forecasts sufficient capital resources to support our
corporate plan, and potentially respond to a severe
economic stress. We continue to enhance our capital
management framework in line with industry standards;

« Interest rate risk, to ensure that the Group has
an effective balance sheet strategy and hedging
arrangements in place to manage interest rate risk;

+  Credit risk, to ensure that the Group appropriately
evaluates and balances risk and reward in a highly
competitive mortgage market, which is particularly
important during a period of significant economic
uncertainty as previously mentioned;

+ Climate risk, to ensure that the Society is developing an
appropriate strategy and framework to enable it and its
Group businesses to respond to the risks arising and
ensure that these are effectively governed,;

+  Model risk, to ensure that statistical models used
to support business decision-making continue to be
compliant with existing and upcoming regulations,
accurate and relevant;

« Operational resilience, to ensure that the Society and its
Group businesses remain able to provide a reliable and
resilient service in all areas to members and customers
and can recover in a swift and organised manner in the
event of an operational failure;

+  Cyberrisk, to ensure that the Group has an appropriate
risk framework and continuous improvement plan in
place to reduce the likelihood of a successful attack.
We remain alert to the risk arising from remote working
and geopolitical tensions and continue to develop our
monitoring regime and defence systems; and

+  Conduct risk, to ensure training and competence
standards are appropriate, customers receive good
outcomes at fair value and that documentation
standards substantiate this. The new Consumer Duty
regulation came into effect in July 2023 for which
we were fully prepared and this will strengthen the
management of conduct risk across the industry.

To assist the Committee’s deliberations, it receives regular
reports from the Group Chief Risk Officer. These reports
provide clarity on the key and emerging risks faced by

the Group and direct the Committee’s attention to those
matters which the Risk Officer believes warrant further
consideration, enabling challenge of first line management
on the actions being taken to mitigate the risks.

Risk overview

Day-to-day operation of the business naturally exposes the
Group to a range of potential risks. To limit the level of risk
accepted by the Group in the normal course of business, the
Board has established a risk appetite which it reviews, at
least annually, in the context of the prevailing environment
in which the Group is operating in.

The risk appetite covers several areas such as liquidity,
capital, interest rate risk and operational risk. In terms of
credit risk appetite, the Society and Skipton International
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Limited (SIL) only lend with a mortgage on residential
properties, either to owner occupiers or buy-to-let investors.
Central to operating within this appetite is a management
culture which promotes awareness of actual and potential
risks and an understanding of their impact on the portfolio
should they crystallise.

Governance structure

To enable appropriate focus on risk matters, the Board
has delegated oversight of risk management to the Board
Risk Committee although ultimate responsibility for risk
management continues to reside with the Board which
receives regular reporting to support its oversight of risk.

The Board Risk Committee is responsible for considering
and recommending the Group’s risk appetite and capital
adequacy and liquidity management policies to the Board. It
is also responsible for ensuring that the Group maintains an
effective risk governance structure to ensure that internal
and external risks across the Group are identified, reviewed
appropriately, managed, and reported on.

The Board Risk Committee is supported by an Executive
Risk Committee which is chaired by the Group Chief Risk
Officer. This is the primary Executive body which meets
regularly to oversee and monitor the key risks across the
Group.

In addition, whilst not a direct Board Committee, Connells
Limited operates an Audit & Risk Committee which reports
directly to the Connells board. As our Skipton International
(SIL) business has grown in recent years, and to strengthen
the local risk management framework, an Audit & Risk
Committee has also been established at SIL. The Group
Chief Risk Officer maintains oversight of all subsidiary firms
in relation to risk management and control.

Membership and attendees

The members of the Board Risk Committee during the
period were:

i

1

fn

Philip Moore

Heather Jackson

Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director

(retired as Committee Chair 24

April 2023) April 2023)

(appointed to Committee 24

The Board Risk Committee is supported by a number of executive committees, which have day-to-day responsibility for risk

management oversight.
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Risk management framework

The Group has a formal structure for identifying and
managing risks throughout the business. This framework is
designed to deliver the corporate plan in line with the Board's
overall risk appetite and is based upon the best practice
‘three lines of defence’ model which operates as follows:

First line of defence, being line management within
the businesses who, through the implementation of
the organisation'’s risk framework, identify, assess,

and manage risk.

Second line of defence, being our Group Risk
function, which includes specific teams dedicated
to Operational risk, Compliance/Conduct risk,
Financial Crime risk, Credit risk, Prudential &
Financial risk (including financial risk arising

from climate change and model risk) and Market,
Interest rate & Liquidity risk. These teams
challenge, monitor, guide and support the business
in managing its risk exposure. The Board Risk
Committee Chair is responsible for maintaining
the independence of the second line of defence to
ensure there are no obstacles to its independent
challenge of first line management.

Third line of defence, provided by Group Internal

@ Audit, is designed to provide independent assurance
to the Board (through the Board Audit Committee)
of the adequacy and effectiveness of control
systems operating within the first and second lines
in identifying and managing risk.

The Board Risk Committeg, in conjunction with the Board
Audit Committee, oversees the effective operation of our
‘three lines of defence’ model. The principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group, which are managed within
the framework described above, are set out later in this report.

Risk environment

The Group is predominantly active in the UK and, to a large
extent, exposed to the UK property market. Therefore, the
general UK macro-economic environment is a key factor in
determining the success of the Group. The main economic
drivers that impact the risk profile of the Group include:

* interest rates;

« inflation;
« unemployment; and

+ the housing market
(volume of transactions and house prices)

Alongside these prudential risk drivers, as a business with
a prominent retail franchise in financial services offering
our customers mortgages, savings, financial advice and
estate agency services, the management of conduct and
operational risk is key to the ongoing success of the Group.
Central to managing these risks is maintenance of a robust
product governance framework, to ensure that we develop
and market compliant and fair products and services
designed to meet the needs of our target market. Many of
our existing processes were reviewed in light of the new
Consumer Duty regulation to ensure we continue to provide
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customers with fair outcomes at fair value. At point of
delivery, the competency and oversight of our colleagues to
ensure we provide good outcomes for our customers is then
essential to maintain the confidence and trust upon which
our brand is based.

Given the uncertainty and challenges arising from the
current economic environment, including elevated inflation
and interest rates, we are closely monitoring our key risk
management metrics to assess for any signs of stress, so
that proactive action can be taken should this be required.
In 2023, the Society's and SIL's mortgage books remained
resilient and are not showing any material signs of stress.
However, we remain vigilant for any credit deterioration in
the year ahead and are ready to support any member who
may be concerned about facing financial difficulty. We have
increased our resources in our collections & recoveries team
and partner with external agencies including the Citizens
Advice Bureau and Payplan who provide free debt advice to
the public. We were amongst the first Banks and Building
Societies to sign up to the new Mortgage Charter when the
Government introduced this in June 2023 and have provided
new forbearance solutions to many customers since then.

Following the annual rate of inflation reaching a 41-year
high of 11.1% in October 2022, it reduced gradually during
2023 and fell to 4.0% by the year end. The Bank of England
increased bank base rate, from 3.50% in December 2022 to
5.25% in August 2023 and market analysts believe bank base
rate is now at its peak. However, bank base rate is expected
to remain at this level for much of 2024 which will continue
to create financial difficulties for some.

Despite elevated inflation and increases in bank base

rate during most of 2023, unemployment has not risen

as dramatically as might have been expected a year ago.
Unemployment rose in the first half of the year before falling
back to 3.8% in November 2023, consistent with the level

of unemployment prevailing at the end of 2022 (Source:
Labour Market Statistics — Unemployment rate (seasonally
adjusted)). Our latest projections forecast that unemployment
will rise slowly through 2024 and 2025 before peaking in
2026, which has been reflected in our forward-looking loan
impairment provisions held in our balance sheet.

The housing market in 2023 slowed as mortgage interest
rates increased. Key House Price Indices report that house
prices have declined marginally during the year. Through
our Estate Agency division, we are carefully monitoring the
housing market and we expect 2024 to be another subdued
year before the market re-sets itself and stabilises.

Notwithstanding the significant increase in interest rates
and inflation, as previously mentioned mortgage arrears
levels remained low throughout 2023, reflective of stable
unemployment. We monitor our credit risk metrics monthly,
and thus far have not seen any material distress emerging
for our mortgage members. We remain alive, however, to
the impact of increased interest rates taking time to flow
through to arrears and do expect to see some members
encounter difficulties with mortgage affordability, and
arrears volumes to increase during 2024.

A key driver of profit for the Society and SIL is the margin
earned on mortgages offered to customers. During 2023
there was significant competition in the mortgage market.
Despite this, our margin remained strong. We anticipate a
highly competitive mortgage market throughout 2024.

The results of the Estate Agency division are principally
driven by the volume of UK property transactions, in
particular second-hand property sales. This market is
heavily influenced by consumer confidence, driven by the
general state of the economy, level of unemployment and
interest rates, together with the availability of mortgages,
particularly for first-time buyers. A slowdown in the housing
market puts pressure on Connells group income levels
but the Estate Agency business is partially protected
against the performance of its core business through its
own diversification into complementary businesses such
as property asset management and lettings. Despite the
economic backdrop the Estate Agency division delivered a
modest profit for the year.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties presented on the
following pages are those that are inherent to the Group’s

Business Risk

business model and strategy, as well as the economic
environment within which the Group operates. These risks
are identified by the Group Chief Risk Officer, discussed

at the Executive and Board Risk Committees, and then
presented to the Board for further consideration and
agreement, as appropriate.

The Risk Committees are also alive to the need to be alert
to new, emerging risks and new, emerging regulations or
corporate governance standards. These are considered

at each meeting of the Committee and by the Group Chief
Risk Officer on a day-to-day basis and in his regular report
to the Committee. A watching brief is then maintained, as
appropriate, by both first and second line teams to determine
whether the key risk profiles of any Group business need
to be updated to incorporate the potential new risks.

Our reporting process is designed to provide the Board
Risk Committee with continuous assessment of the risk
environment across the Group and allow it to challenge
management on its mitigation plans in a timely manner.

Over the following pages, the prudential risks facing the
Group are presented, followed by strategic and business
risks and finally operational and conduct risks.

Risk Definition: The risk of failing to formulate and deliver the strategy and/or a lack of response to changes in the external

environment affecting the sustainability of the business.

Risk The Group Executive Committee and the Boards of subsidiary businesses are responsible for ensuring that business

Mitigationand risk is effectively managed.

Management Potential sources of business risk include revenue volatility due to factors such as macro-economic and geopolitical
conditions, inflexible cost bases, structural inefficiencies or new market entrants with lower cost structures.

Delay or inability to respond to changing customer behaviours is a risk, as customers’ preferred means of accessing
financial services evolves in a rapidly changing digital environment. The Group addresses these risks within its
Corporate Plan which is approved by the Board along with the Group's key strategies. The Board Risk Committee is
also provided with the results of stress and scenario tests to assess the potential impact on the Group of a stressed
business environment such as a severe economic downturn. This enables the Committee to monitor the risk impact
to business strategies and to determine whether changes to these may be required to protect the sustainability of the
Group. In line with regulatory requirements the Group maintains recovery plans detailing the steps it would take to
sustain itself through such severe business stresses.

Capital and MREL risk

Risk Definition: The risk of not maintaining sufficient capital and MREL (minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities) levels to support day to day operations, withstand stressed economic conditions and meet regulatory requirements.

Risk The Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) is conducted to assess the Society’s and the Prudential
Mitigationand Group's current and projected capital and MREL requirements to mitigate the current risks in the business and any

Management future risks arising from the Corporate Plan.

The ICAAP addresses all the Group’s material risks and includes Board-approved stress scenarios which are intended,

as a minimum, to meet regulatory requirements.

The ICAAP is approved by the Board and reviewed by the PRA when setting the total capital requirements.
The Group currently adopts the following approaches to calculating its Pillar 1 minimum capital requirements:
« IRB approach for retail mortgage exposures in the Society;

+ IRB approach for exposures relating to investments in subsidiaries outside the regulatory group and non-
credit obligation assets (property, plant and equipment, fair value adjustments for hedged risk and cash);

Standardised approach for other lending exposures;

Standardised approach for treasury portfolios; and

«  Standardised approach for operational risk and market risk.

MREL is the minimum amount of own funds (capital resources) and eligible liabilities that must be satisfied to provide for
the recapitalisation of the Prudential Group under a gone concern scenario. The ICAAP sets out our expectations of MREL
requirements over the Corporate Plan horizon, and how we expect to meet those requirements.

Within the ICAAP we consider the impact of emerging capital regulation over the corporate planning horizon, including

the reforms to the Basel Ill regulation, and how we expect to meet those new requirements. The capital and MREL
requirements are reported to the Board on a monthly basis.
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Climate risk

Risk Definition: Climate change risk refers to the commercial impact that climate and environmental changes present to our
business model.

Risk Climate change, considered as the combination of extreme weather events and longer-term climate modifications,
Mitigationand presents both risks and opportunities for the Group and our customers.

Management Climate risks arise from both the potential impacts of climate change (‘physical risks’) as well as societal responses
to climate change (‘transition risks’). Climate risk can therefore manifest in various ways including the impact on
traditional risk categories such as credit risk, operational risk and market risk.

The Group’s Executive Committee and the Boards of subsidiary firms are responsible for the proactive

management of the financial and operational risks arising from climate change and the strategy to mitigate these

risks. Our approach to managing the risks from climate change is summarised as follows:

« Identifying and assessing the risks from climate change: We regularly review climate-related risks to which the
Group is exposed;

The most significant risks are assessed further as part of our annual climate risk stress and scenario

testing. The analysis is primarily focused on a quantitative assessment of the impact of climate
change on our residential mortgage portfolio;

*  Managing and monitoring the risks from climate change: The responsibilities for the management of
climate risk are defined within our Climate Change Risk Management Framework. The Framework
is integrated within our wider governance processes and the three lines of defence approach to risk
management; and

The Group has continued to embed the management of climate risk across the businesses during
2023. This includes developing our management information to provide regular monitoring of climate
risk exposures across a range of business areas and enhancing our mortgage new lending controls
with respect to flood risk and coastal erosion.

Conduct risk

Risk Definition: Conduct risk is the risk of delivering poor or inappropriate outcomes for customers.

Risk Any failure to develop appropriate internal processes and controls to deliver suitable mortgage, pensions and
Mitigationand investment advice to customers to meet their financial needs, could lead to poor customer outcomes, customer
Management dissatisfaction and potential regulatory censure.

Ensuring fair value and good customer outcomes across our channels and products remains a priority in line with
the requirements of Consumer Duty. We have an Executive sponsored programme in place which ensured we met
the first Consumer Duty implementation timeline for existing products and services of July 2023. The programme
remains in place to ensure we meet the requirements of the final implementation date for closed products and
services of July 2024. Our three lines of defence provide ongoing monitoring and assurance over processes and
controls and the delivery of good customer outcomes to our customers.

Risk Definition: The risk that a borrower or counterparty fails to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms.

Risk The Group faces credit risks from its lending to:

Mitigationand . |ndividual customers (retail mortgages);

Management Businesses through historical commercial lending and ongoing debt factoring and invoice discounting; and
«  Wholesale counterparties for the purposes of liquidity management.

Retail and commercial credit exposures are managed by a team of experienced professionals, with oversight
provided by the Retail Credit Committee.

The Group has established comprehensive risk management processes in accordance with the Board’s credit risk
appetite which defines a number of limits regarding concentration risk as well as customer and collateral credit
quality to which all our mortgage lending activity must adhere.

The credit decisioning process applies credit scoring, affordability assessment and lending policy criteria which
is supported by manual underwriting. All aspects of the automated credit decisioning process are subject to
regular development, as well as model governance. The lending quality and controls are managed within risk
framework requirements and all lending is in line with the Board’s risk appetite.

The Group's collections and recoveries functions provide a responsive and effective arrears management
process. We seek to engage in early communication with borrowers experiencing difficulty in meeting their
repayments, to obtain their commitment to maintaining or re-establishing a regular payment plan. We consider
forbearance options on a case-by-case basis in line with industry guidance and best practice. The impact of any
such forbearance is recognised within our provisioning policy.
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Credit risk continued

Risk Definition: The risk that a borrower or counterparty fails to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms.

Risk The legacy commercial mortgage portfolio which is UK-based, was closed to new lending in November 2008.

Mitigationand  gkipton International has a residential and buy-to-let mortgage portfolio, secured against property in the Channel

Management |glands and a buy-to-let portfolio in the UK. Credit risk on these portfolios is managed locally, supported by
oversight from the Retail Credit Committee. These portfolios are managed tightly against a low risk appetite, with
consequent low levels of arrears and losses.

Interest rate risk

Risk Definition: The exposure of the Group’s financial condition to adverse movements in market interest rates.

Risk Interest rate risk arises from mortgages, savings and other financial products we offer. This risk is managed
Mitigationand through the use of appropriate financial instruments, including derivatives used to hedge exposures, with
Management established risk limits, reporting lines, mandates and other control procedures.

Other interest rate risk exposures, such as basis risk (the risk of loss arising from changes in the relationship
between market rates), and net margin duration risk (the risk that the cost of funding increases before we are
able to re-price our mortgages) are regularly reported to ALCO, the Board Risk Committee and the Board. These
risks are also managed within established risk limits and other control procedures.

The Group's forecasts and plans take account of the risk of interest rate changes and are prepared and stressed
accordingly, in line with PRA guidance.

Liquidity risk

Risk Definition: The risk of being unable to meet current and future financial obligations as they fall due or only able to do so at
excessive cost.

Risk The liquidity strategy is to ensure liquidity is held in sufficient quantity and diversity to support the Corporate Plan
Mitigationand and to meet the Board's Liquidity Risk Appetite and regulatory requirements. There is flexibility within the plan,
Management supported by the strong governance around liquidity management, to adapt to changing circumstances.

The Group also has access to adequate levels of contingent liquidity.

The Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP) is conducted at least annually, to assess the
Group's current and projected liquidity requirements to mitigate the current risks in the business and any future
risks arising from the Corporate Plan. The ILAAP confirms that we are forecast to maintain adequate liquidity
above our Liquidity Risk Appetite.

There are risks to future funding conditions given the market-wide refinancing of the government established
TFSME (Term Funding Scheme), geopolitical risks and the impact of the higher cost of living. Early warning
indicators are therefore regularly assessed to ensure liquidity is maintained at appropriate levels and reported to
ALCO and the Board on a monthly basis.

Over the life of the Corporate Plan, there are increasingly larger retail and wholesale maturities, resulting in a more
dynamic liquidity requirement and heightened risk. To mitigate this, we may carry excess liquidity at times as the
Group pre-funds ahead of large maturities.

Risk Definition: The risk of financial loss or a poor strategic or business decision as a result of errors, weaknesses or failures in
the design or use of a model.

Risk The Model Governance Committee (MGC) provides a formal forum for monitoring and managing model risk in the

Mitigationand Group. MGC manages model risk with reference to a defined Model Risk Appetite and Governance Policy which

Management have both been approved by the Board Risk Committee, and also provides regular updates on model governance
compliance to the Executive Risk Committee and Board Risk Committee.

The use of models for informing important business and strategic decisions has grown significantly in recent
years, and the Group continues to invest in Model Risk Management.

Across the financial services sector there is significant regulatory change to improve model risk sensitivity and
coverage, including changes to IRB modelling approaches. These changes require significant investment in
model development, monitoring and oversight with the ensuant risks associated with such a wide and technical
programme. Work continues to update certain IRB models to take into account these new regulatory requirements
which came into effect on 1 January 2022. In the interim period, a temporary model adjustment (TMA) has been
used to uplift the expected loss and risk weighted assets (RWAs) produced by the incumbent regulator approved
IRB models to the level expected once the models are finalised to meet the new regulation.
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Operational risk

Risk Definition: The risk of poor customer outcome or loss, resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems,
people, culture and/or from external factors.

Risk
Mitigationand
Management

We have a robust risk management approach across the Group, to ensure the identification, assessment,
management and reporting of risks in a timely and accurate manner. A quarterly disclosure of all current
material risks faced by the Group is provided to the Executive Risk Committee and Board Risk Committee to
ensure appropriate action is taken where required. The framework to control operational risk is maintained and
overseen by the Board Risk Committee. The key operational risks the Group face include:

* Information Security — Cyber Threat
We remain vigilant to the continued Cyber threat across the globe and perform continuous
improvement activity to mature our control environment and protect our customers and colleagues.
* Change Demand & Delivery

The volume and pace of change across the Group remains significant both from a strategic,
organisational and regulatory perspective. Ensuring the right level of resources and oversight supports
the successful delivery of these initiatives, whilst also ensuring associated risks are mitigated and
well managed.

The requirements and expectations of future regulations are a key input to inform strategic decisions
around products, channels, services and to ensure positive customer journeys.
* Financial Crime & Fraud

Our well established financial crime, fraud monitoring and management processes continue to be
enhanced in recognition of both the economic backdrop and the ever changing and complex financial
crime landscape.

*  Service Delivery

Maintaining focus on delivering high quality service and a competitive product offering, supported by
an operationally resilient business, will ensure we can continue to provide critical business services to
our customers at all times.

* People Risk - Attract & Retain Talent

Attracting and retaining talent in a competitive market is a key focus across the Group. Minimising the
potential for any detrimental impact to colleague wellbeing remains a key area of management focus
and includes offering a competitive remuneration and benefits package. The importance of robust
succession plans across the Group remains a focus, in light of growth plans and the material benefit
of subsidiary dividends to the Corporate Plan.

*  Operational Resilience
A strong focus remains on the Group’s operational resilience which is the ability to prevent, adapt,
respond to, recover and learn from operational disruptions, to ensure we can continue to provide
important and critical business services to our customers at all times.

*  Outsourcing and Third Party
We have effective ‘outsourcing and third party management’ processes to onboard new material
suppliers and work together with existing material suppliers to ensure they are capable of maintaining
their services to us, even in a stressed environment.

* Legal & Regulatory Risk
All Group businesses maintain an open relationship with regulators and ensure there is a significant
focus on meeting new and existing legal and regulatory requirements.

* Data

All Group businesses are committed to protecting customer data which is achieved by having robust
frameworks, processes and governance in place.
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Reputational risk

Risk Definition: Reputational risk is the risk to earnings, liquidity or capital arising from negative market or public opinion.

Risk
Mitigationand
Management

Reputational damage is a key element present in all other risk types and is considered alongside all decision-
making.

The Group Executive Committee and the Boards of Group subsidiary firms are responsible for ensuring that
reputational risk is effectively managed. Such risk can arise through the poor management of risks and could
have a detrimental impact on the Groups brand and reputation. The consequences could adversely impact the
future prospects of the Group and could expose it to litigation and financial loss.

This risk is managed by:

«  Continuing to invest in our control environment;

«  Continuing to focus on customer outcomes and delivering high quality service and competitive product offerings;
«  Working within our risk management framework which has reputational risk as a key consideration;

+  Promoting the Group through marketing and external communications; and

«  Closely monitoring external references to the Group given the pace and use of social media channels and the
widespread brand damage this can cause.

Wholesale Credit risk

Risk Definition: The risk of unexpected credit losses resulting from a counterparty default.

Risk
Mitigationand
Management

To meet the CRD V Pillar 3 requirements, the Group
publishes further information about its exposures and
risk management processes and policies on the Society's

website skipton.co.uk.

Conclusion

The geopolitical and economic events that shaped 2023
remain key challenges for the Group. There remains

The Group Wholesale Credit Committee manages treasury credit exposures, with oversight provided by the
Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO).

Wholesale credit risk is the counterparty credit risk resulting for transactions undertaken by Group Treasury,
which is primarily from the high quality liquidity held by the Group to mitigate liquidity risk. It also arises from
counterparty exposures where the Group has transacted derivatives to hedge interest rate risk as well as secured
funding transaction.

Counterparty credit risk is managed across the Group within limits, on size and duration of exposure, defined
within the Treasury Policy, which is approved at least annually by ALCO and the Board Risk Committee.

The posting of collateral is also used to mitigate counterparty credit risk in respect of derivatives.

face, and whilst it may be difficult to predict the outcome of
such uncertainty, | am confident that the risk management
framework operated by the Skipton Group enables it to
identify, assess and manage the risks confronting it and
support business sustainability. To underpin this, the Board
Risk Committee will continue to promote a culture which
views risk management not as an additional activity but as
embedded in how the business is run.

significant uncertainty to the economic environment that we
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Annual statement from the Chair of
the Board Remuneration Committee
Dear Member,

On behalf of the Board Remuneration Committee, | am
pleased to share the Directors’ Remuneration Report, and
my first report as Chair of the Committee. | wish to express
my thanks to my predecessor, Heather Jackson, for her
support in ensuring a smooth handover and her continued
contribution to the work of the Committee. This report sets
out the details of the directors’ pay, incentives and benefits
for the year ending 31 December 2023.

The Committee

The focus of the Committee is to set the Remuneration
Policy, including base pay, variable remuneration and other
benefits for executive directors and Material Risk Takers
(MRTs). The Committee also has oversight of reward for the
broader colleague population.

The members of the Board Remuneration Committee are
all independent non-executive directors of the Society
and include members of the Board Risk and Board Audit
Committees.
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Heather Jackson  Mark Lund

Steven Davis
Non-executive Non-executive Non-executive
director (Chair)* director director

* Replaced Heather Jackson as Chair in September 2023

Remuneration Report

We have set out this Directors’ Remuneration Report
in the following four key sections:

1. This annual statement explaining the priorities
of the Committee across reward for all colleagues
and summarising the remuneration policy for
executive directors.

2. An ‘At a glance summary’ of the key performance
measures which inform our remuneration awards
and the outcomes for the executive directors
for 2023.

3. The Remuneration Policy in respect of the
executive directors.

4. The Annual Report on Remuneration in 2023,
which explains how we applied our remuneration
policy in 2023 and how we intend to apply it in 2024.

The Board Remuneration Committee’s review of 2023

Key considerations and decisions made by the Committee in 2023 included:

Remuneration component Action Taken

2023 Pay Review

Approved the 2023 salary awards for the Group Executive Committee, senior managers and

MRTs, in line with the all colleague pay review.

2023 SVPA" measures
& targets +  Financial

+  Customer and colleague

Determined key performance measures and targets across the following areas:

«  Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG)
+  Strategic team and personal performance objective targets

2022 SVPA! outturns
& payments

Approved awards in respect of the 2022 SVPA, considering the Group Chief Risk Officer's risk
report, the Group Chief Financial Officer's sustainability review, performance outcomes versus

scheme measures, strategic team and personal performance objectives.

Group Executive Committee
remuneration decisions

Approved remuneration decisions for executive level appointments, including internal
promotions, new hires and leavers throughout the year, plus joining arrangements for the new

Group Chief Financial Officer (details of which are below), Group Chief Information Officer and

the Connells executive team.

Annual Review of the Board

Annual review of the Skipton Building Society Remuneration Policy & Principles, Risk

Remuneration Committee Terms Adjustment Policy and MRT Policy were carried out, with no material changes required.

of Reference, Skipton Building
Society Remuneration Policy

& Principles, Risk Adjustment
Policy and MRT Policy

Notes

A review of the Board Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference is ongoing.

1. The SVPA stands for Single Variable Pay Arrangement and is the bonus plan in which the executive directors and Group Executive Committee participate.

Joining arrangements for the new Group Chief
Financial Officer

Paul Chambers has been appointed, subject to regulatory
approval, as the new Group Chief Financial Officer, joining us
in February 2024 from Standard Chartered Group on a salary
of £430,000. This salary reflects the breadth of the role,

as Group Chief Financial Officer for the Skipton Group, the
extensive experience he brings, fully benchmarked market
comparators for individuals in similar roles, and the level of
compensation at his previous employer.

The proposed bonus arrangements are in line with our Directors’
Remuneration Policy. Paul will participate in the SVPA with an
annual maximum incentive of 50% of base salary.

As a result of his resignation from Standard Chartered
Group, Paul has forfeited the opportunity to earn a bonus for
2023. In line with standard practice in the financial sector,
the Society has granted a replacement award of £250,000
which will be made to Paul in March 2024 to compensate
for his forfeited 2023 bonus award. In line with regulations,
this will be subject to deferral.

All other benefits, including pension, are in line with the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

Variable remuneration in respect of performance for 2023

A key objective for the Committee is to ensure the
remuneration of the executive directors is both aligned

with and drives business performance across a range of
measures taken from our Corporate Plan. Each year we
review the design and focus of our annual bonus schemes to
ensure alignment with strategy and culture.

Financial and Customer Performance

Financial performance in 2023 has been strong, supported by
an increase in interest rates and underpinned by our strong
asset quality, capitalisation, liquidity, and funding profiles.
Adjusted Group profit results and adjusted Society profit
results decreased from last year, with these metrics paying
out 55.7% of maximum (2022: 100%) and 78.3% of maximum
(2022: 100%) respectively for bonus. As mentioned in the
Group Chief Executive's Report, Group profit has primarily
been impacted by Connells group results.

We have maintained a focus on cost discipline, investing
in talent by implementing a new target operating model
to structurally set up the Society for future success, and
investment in technology whilst realising cost efficiencies
such as reduction in marketing spend and improvement
of our procurement model. As a result, the Cost Reduction
bonus metric is paying out on target, at 6 out of 10.

Planned efficiencies within Financial Advice have progressed
well. This has been realised in a significant year on year
increase, with this bonus metric paying out 52.0% of
maximum (2022: 0%).

Our Group mortgage balance growth and savings balance
growth have both exceeded targets set for 2023, reflecting
our 8.1% membership growth year on year. Both measures
have exceeded target, with bonus achievement at 100% of
maximum for this metric (2022: 100%).
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The Society continues to provide excellent customer service
with customer satisfaction scores achieving our target of
89% resulting in an on-target outturn, paying out 60.0% of
maximum for this bonus metric (2022: 55.5%).

Non-financial performance

In 2023, we decided to take a broader approach to our
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) metrics, with
a challenging ESG dashboard implemented to measurably
increase our positive impact on the environment, to drive
positive social impact for colleagues, customers, and
communities and to lead the Society to higher sustainability
governance standards. This has set us on the path towards
achieving our overall goal and whilst we were delighted

to achieve above target results for our Women in Finance
Charter, recycling target, EPC+ target, first time buyer target
and procurement target, we realise we still have ground

to make up on our carbon footprint target and our aim to
establish science-based reduction targets and reduction
transition plans. Overall, our ESG dashboard achieved a
threshold pay out of 5 out of 10 for this bonus metric.

During 2023, our Executive Team were focused on two key
strategic team objectives:

+ tocreate a growth culture, and
« totransform for the future.

A new target operating model was successfully
implemented at the beginning of November 2023. In
addition, a new behaviour framework was introduced across
the Society during 2023, with all objectives now measured
on how objectives are delivered. The Group has begun a
transformation journey aiming to deliver an efficient, agile
and customer centric operating model. Overall, the strategic
team objectives set and approved by Board have achieved a
bonus outturn of 8 out of 10.

Performance awards for 2023

The key measures and targets featured in the SVPA are
cascaded across the incentive schemes covering all
colleagues within the Society. This common structure helps
build a shared commitment to our purpose, vision and
strategy and provides all colleagues in the Society with an
opportunity to be rewarded in a way that recognises our
collective success.

With the close of the year, the Committee reviewed the
performance of all 2023 bonus metrics and outcomes,
assessing whether the incentive outcomes for 2023 clearly

ooy -

Steven Davis
Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee

27 February 2024
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reflect performance outcome in terms of financial and non-
financial contributions, as well as strategic team objectives.
A colleague’s individual performance against personal
objectives will be taken into consideration separately, in
addition to bonus metrics.

The Committee reflected on the outcomes under the SVPA
scheme, considering financial performance, customer
metrics and the measures of the ESG dashboard, in addition
to team and personal performance. Incentive payments
awarded were between 34% and 36% of salary, where the
maximum potential bonus under the scheme is 50% of salary.

In arriving at the decision on SVPA awards, a risk
assessment process was undertaken, during which the
Committee considered a range of factors and input from
the Board Risk Committee. The Committee decided that no
adjustments were appropriate at the point in time.

2024 look forward

The Society seeks to offer an overall reward package that

is market competitive, compelling to new hires and fair and
equitable to existing colleagues. The buoyant UK market has
brought about recruitment and retention challenges in certain
areas, for example technology, finance, legal and audit.

Looking forward to 2024, to continue supporting colleagues
in challenging economic times we have agreed a one-

off additional payment of £500 be paid to the lowest earners
across our Society.

In line with the regulatory requirements for listed companies,
we choose to put the Directors’ Remuneration Policy to a
member vote at least every three years. A full review of the
policy will take place during 2024 and this will be put to an
advisory vote at our AGM in 2025.

Conclusion

On behalf of the Committee, | hope this report gives you a
clear view of how we have implemented the remuneration
policy in 2023 and how we are investing to support the
Group's ambitions and strategic priorities set out in our
Corporate Plan. The Committee recommends that the
members vote in favour of the advisory resolution to approve
the 2023 Director's Remuneration Report at the AGM.

At a Glance Summary
Payments made to Executive Directors 2023

The table below summarises the total payments made to executive directors in respect of the 2023 financial year.
The figures shown in the graph are included in the single figure table on page 93. Further details on the variable pay awards,
the performance measures, and the extent to which they are achieved are on pages 87 to 95.

Stuart Haire 690 111 233
(£000)

Andrew Bottomley 338 66 121
(£000)

lan Cornelius? 140 21
(£000)

Bobby Ndawula 392 55 132
(£000)

B Base Salary [ Pension and Benefits' B 2023 SVPA award

Notes:

1. Includes all taxable benefits (private medical insurance, car allowance, health assessment, life assurance, group income protection and GCE travel
and accommodation).

2. lan Cornelius stepped down from the role of Interim Group Chief Executive on 30 December 2022, but he remained a director. His employment with the Society ended
on 31 May 2023. The table above does not include payments for loss of office included on page 96.
Remuneration in the Society

Whilst the key focus of the Board Remuneration Committee is remuneration for the Group Executive Committee, it is our
responsibility to monitor how executive remuneration aligns with the wider Society colleague population. The table below
gives a snapshot of average pay increases and bonus awards by level in 2023.

_ Salary Average Pay Increase Bonus Average Award

Group Chief Executive' - 33.8%

Executive Directors 6.0% 34.7%

Other Group Executive Committee members? 15.0% 32.3%

Senior Leaders 6.5% 20.5%

All other colleagues 6.0% 9.6%
Notes:

1. Stuart Haire joined on 31 December 2022 and was not eligible for an increase.

2. Some members of the Group Executive Committee took on extended responsibilities across the Group in 2023, therefore receiving higher than average
pay increases.

Key Metrics for Remuneration in the SVPA for 2023

The Strategic Report provides a comprehensive explanation of the Group’s purpose and strategy. To keep us focused on
delivering our strategy we have three key priorities: Help more people have a home, Make money work harder and Make
membership matter. These ensure we're driving the Group forwards and working together to deliver more for the Society's
members. In addition, the Strategic Report explains how sustainability and Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
are woven through the strategy.
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The table below highlights how the measures in the SVPA have aligned with strategic priorities, sustainability and ESG in 2023.

Group Chief Other Make Help more Make mone ESG and
p Ll Executive Membership | people have a y Sustainability
Executive . work harder
Directors Matter home Goals
SVPA measures
Group PBT (adjusted)* 32% 12% v
Society PBT (adjusted)* 0% 20% v
Cost Reduction 10% 10% v
Society Mortgage Year End o o
Balances i g v v
Society Savings Year End o o
Balances e o 7 7
Financial Advice Direct Income 5% 5% v v
Net customer satisfaction 5% 5% v
ESG Measures - the ESG 9 ®
Dashboard 10% 10% v
Non-Financial Strategic Team o o
Objectives 14% 14% v v v v
Personal Objectives 14% 14% v v v v
Features of the SVPA Scheme
Risk adjustment v v v v
Sustainability review v v
Deferral of at least 50% of incentive v
Discretion to reduce/defer/recover payments v v v

* For bonus purposes, the Group and Society profit are adjusted for those items that are not considered part of the Group'’s core strategy or those items that are
outside of the directors’ control, as set out in the scheme rules. The adjusted profit is calculated prior to dividends receivable from subsidiary undertakings, fair value
gains or losses on financial instruments, fair value gains or losses in relation to the equity release portfolio, fair value gains or losses in relation to investment in
Group undertakings, Connells group management incentive scheme costs and profits or losses on disposal of Group undertakings.

Directors’ Remuneration policy
Summary of Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors in the Society

The complete policy is available in our Annual Report & Accounts 2021 on the Society’s website. The current Directors’
Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM on 25 April 2022 and, in line with corporate governance standards, is
expected to apply until the 2025 AGM, when members will be asked to approve a revised Policy.

The Committee is comfortable that the current policy is operating as intended and that the overall 2023 remuneration paid
to executive directors, as set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration, is appropriate.

This section summarises the current Directors’ Remuneration Policy and how it aligns with the Group's strategy. The table
below outlines the key elements of remuneration for executive directors and how each element supports our strategy, and
how it works in practice.
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Base salary

How element supports
our strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance conditions
and assessment

Pension and Benefits

Supports the recruitment and retention of executive directors, reflecting their individual roles,
skills, and contribution.

We align our remuneration practices to our business strategy and the long-term aims of the
Society, taking account of the Board's risk appetite and the need to provide sustainable growth
which will benefit our members, customers, colleagues, and our communities.

Base salary reflects the size of the role and responsibilities, individual performance (assessed
annually) and the skills and experience of the individual. In setting appropriate salary levels,
the Committee considers data for similar positions in comparable organisations. The

data is independently commissioned, and the Society aims to position executive directors
competitively within this reference group.

When appointing an acting or interim executive director, the Committee may decide to pay
a temporary allowance (as opposed to a permanent uplift to salary). The amount will be
approved by the Committee and may be included for the purposes of calculating benefits,
pensions, and the annual incentive award.

Increases to base salary are determined annually by the Committee taking into account:

+ Individual performance;

+  The scope of the role;

+  Pay levels in comparable organisations; and

+ Pay increases elsewhere within the Group

Not applicable, however individual performance is taken into account when considering base
pay increases.

How element supports
our strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance conditions
and assessment

To attract, retain and provide security for executive directors and provide a competitive level of
benefits to assist executive directors to carry out their roles effectively.

We align our remuneration practices to our business strategy and the long-term aims of the
Society, taking account of the Board’s risk appetite and the need to provide sustainable growth
which will benefit our members, customers, colleagues, and our communities.

Generally, the Society contributes to a defined contribution pension scheme for the executive
directors. The contribution can instead be paid in cash (which is excluded from incentive
calculations) if the executive director is likely to be affected by the limits for tax-approved
pension saving.

All new appointments to executive roles fully align to the pension arrangements available to all
other colleagues.

A selection of core benefits is provided to executive directors, including a car allowance, private
medical insurance, health assessment, life insurance and group income protection benefits.

The Committee reviews benefits from time to time and may make changes; for example,
to reflect market practice or the needs of the business.

The maximum employer pension contribution for new executive directors is 10% of base
salary. This is in line with the policy for all colleagues.

Current executive directors receive 10% of base salary paid into the pension scheme up to
the tax approved pension limits with any balance paid to them, with the exception of Andrew
Bottomley who receives 15%.

Not applicable.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023 91


https://www.skipton.co.uk/about-us/financial-results

Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Single Variable Pay Arrangement (SVPA)

How element supports Supports the attraction and retention of executive directors and the development of a high-
our strategy performance culture.

Rewards performance within the context of achieving corporate goals and objectives as
set out in our Corporate Plan, encouraging the right behaviours in respect of sustainable
performance to support the achievement of strategic goals.

Operation A combination of financial and non-financial measures and targets are set with a weighting
which will not exceed 50% of the total incentive opportunity for financial measures and which
will not exceed 60% for non-financial measures. The latter includes personal objectives.
Targets are set and assessed against these criteria each year relative to the Society's strategic
aims.

Current regulations also require that for those who are an executive director or whose variable
remuneration exceeds £500,000, 60% of the SVPA will be deferred and 50% of the initial up-
front award will be delivered in the form of an ‘instrument’ which will be subject to a further
holding period (currently 12 months). The instrument will be subject to a write down if the
CET1 ratio falls below a prescribed level. 40% of earned incentive is normally paid in cash
shortly after performance has been assessed. The remaining 60% of earned incentive is
deferred over a period of seven years as required by regulation and is normally paid in cash
subject to performance adjustment.

An element of the performance assessment will be made over a period of more than one
financial year to meet regulatory requirements and to maintain a longer-term perspective in
the scheme. This will be achieved by the Remuneration Committee making a sustainability
assessment one year after the award of the incentive. Up to 25% of the incentive originally
awarded can be reduced or cancelled as a result of this assessment.

The percentage of deferred incentive, the deferral and the payment instrument may be
amended in response to changes in regulation.

The Committee may reduce or withdraw the payment of a deferred amount in certain
circumstances and has the power to reduce, cancel or recover payments under the SVPA if it
believes there are circumstances where the payments are not appropriate, for example due
to failure to maintain certain capital levels, evidence of systemic conduct risk, or evidence of
significant control failures or weaknesses.

The maximum incentive which may be earned for any year by the SVPA is 50% of base salary.

For each performance measure, the Committee determines a threshold, target and maximum
level of performance. No incentive is payable for performance below the threshold level,

with varying levels of pay-out for performance between threshold and maximum. On-target
performance generally attracts an incentive of 60% of the maximum.

Maximum potential value

Performance conditions The performance measures attached to the SVPA will be determined by the Committee from
and assessment year to year, but might typically include (but are not limited to) any of the following:

+  Group profit (adjusted)

+  Society profit (adjusted)

+  Mortgages and Savings balance growth

+  Cost reduction and efficiency measures

+  Customers (growth and satisfaction)

+ ESG measures

+  Personal objectives (includes an element for strategy development and implementation)
+ Risk and governance

Performance against the measures is reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee.
The weightings attached to the types of measure and the individual weightings attached to each
individual measure may vary from year to year as determined by the Committee.

Notes to the table:
Performance measures

The performance conditions attached to the SVPA scheme have been selected as they support the sustainable success of
the Society. The Committee believes that the use of a range of financial and non-financial measures provides a balanced
assessment of the overall performance of the Society. In setting the target and maximum payments, the Committee
considers both the market position and the risk appetite of the Society and sets these levels accordingly.
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Remuneration for other employees

All employees of the Society receive a base salary and benefits consistent with market practice and are eligible to participate
in the Society’s pension plan and in the incentive arrangements relevant to their role. Members of the Group Executive
Committee and other selected senior managers may be eligible to participate in the SVPA on the same terms as the executive
directors, subject to the discretion of the Group Chief Executive and the Committee. The award size for these individuals may
be lower than for the executive directors. A variable pay arrangement for all employees (excluding those in the SVPA) is in
place, so that everyone employed by the Society will have the opportunity to share in the Society's success. The key measures
for the scheme are aligned with those that apply for senior management.

Committee’s discretion in relation to the SVPA

As noted above, the Committee has the discretion to reduce, defer or recover payments under the SVPA in accordance with the
Society’s Policy on Malus and Clawback. Malus refers to the reduction or withdrawal of deferred awards, and clawback is the
repayment of amounts already paid. The Committee also has the discretion to cease or amend the operation of either arrangement
where this is necessary to ensure the arrangements continue to meet the Committee’s overriding remuneration principles and risk
criteria. This might include, for example, amending the deferral arrangements to comply with changing regulation.

Annual Report on Remuneration in 2023
Executive Directors’ Remuneration
The total remuneration of each executive director in 2023 and 2022 is set out in the single figure tables below:

2023 Audited

Total fixed Total
Executive Salary | Benefits ' | Pension . SVPA .

remuneration remuneration
Director “ £000 | g£ooo | £000 £000 £000 £000

Stuart Haire Group Chief Executive 801 233 1,034
Andrew Bottomley CEO, Money 338 15 51 404 121 525
lan Cornelius? Commercial Director 140 7 14 161 - 161
Bobby Ndawula Fir?afggiglcg]jgier 392 16 39 447 132 579
Total remuneration 1,560 80 173 1,813 486 2,299
Notes:

1. Includes all taxable benefits (private medical insurance, car allowance, health assessment, life assurance, group income protection and GCE travel and
accommodation).

2. lan Cornelius stepped down from the role of Interim Group Chief Executive on 30 December 2022, but he remained a director. His employment with the Society
ended on 31 May 2023. The table above does not include payments for loss of office included on page 96.

2022 Audited
Post risk
Executive Salary | Benefits 4 | Pension re-lr:rc:tuﬂef:gii%n SVPA | adjustment | Other reer?;?lation
Director £000 £000 £000 SVPA® £000
£000 £000
£000
Group
Stuart Haire ! Chief 3 - - 3 - - 1,148 1,151
Executive
Group
David Cutter ? Chief 197 5 20 222 - - - 222
Executive
Andrew CEO, i,
Bottomley Money 317 12 48 377 132 132 509
Commercial
lan Cornelius® & Strategy 446 12 33 491 188 166 - 657
Director
Group
Bobby Ndawula . CMief 367 12 37 416 155 116 . 532
y Financial
Officer
Total remuneration 1,330 41 138 1,509 475 414 1,148 3,071
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Notes to the tables on page 93:

—_

. The remuneration shown for Stuart Haire covers the period from his joining date of 31 December 2022. As a result of his resignation from HSBC, Stuart had forfeited
deferred awards made to him in respect of financial years prior to 2022, as well as the opportunity to earn a bonus for 2022. The figure in the table therefore includes
an award of £345,000 to replace the forfeited bonus opportunity and this will be subject to deferral, malus and clawback in accordance with the SVPA scheme. It also
includes £802,686 of replacement deferred awards which reflect the value of the HSBC deferred cash and share awards forfeited. The replacement deferred awards,
which will be made in the form of cash and instruments, will be subject to the same conditions that applied to his HSBC deferred awards and will mirror the vesting
schedule over the period from March 2023 to March 2030.

The remuneration shown for David Cutter covers the period from 1 January to 26 April 2022.

w N

. The 2022 salary figure for lan Cornelius includes an interim Group Chief Executive allowance of £163,320 p.a. paid pro-rata from 26 April 2022 until 31 December
2022.

Includes all taxable benefits.

S

As set out in the model risk section of the 2022 Risk Management Report, there has been significant regulatory change to improve model risk sensitivity and
coverage, including changes to internal ratings-based (IRB) modelling approaches. Within the Society, work was undertaken to update certain IRB models to take into
account these new regulatory requirements which came into effect on 1 January 2022. In the interim period, a temporary model adjustment (TMA) was used to uplift
the expected minimum requirements for loss and risk weighted assets (RWAs) produced by the incumbent regulator-approved IRB models to the level expected once
the models are finalised to meet the new regulation.

The TMA set in the first half of 2022 materially increased in the second half of 2022 following feedback from the regulator in H1 2022 and this material increase was
not fully anticipated by the Society.

An investigation was commissioned by the Board at the end of 2022 regarding this material increase in the TMA and a full risk assessment process was

undertaken by the non-executive directors of the Society in April 2023 in accordance with the Society’s Risk Adjustment Policy and in consideration of the Society’s
Remuneration Principles. As a result, the Society’s non-executive directors, acting on behalf of the Board Remuneration Committee, exercised their discretion to
reduce payments due under the 2022 SVPA to certain senior individuals within the Society. The 2022 SVPA payment due to lan Cornelius was reduced by 15% and the
2022 SVPA payment due to Bobby Ndawula was reduced by 25%.

Base Salary

Pay awards for the executive directors were made in line with the colleague population, effective from January 2023.

Stuart Haire' Groupt Chief Executive £690,000
Andrew Bottomley CEO, Money 6.00% £338,405 £319,250
Bobby Ndawula Group Chief Financial 6.00% £391,893 £369,710
Officer
Notes:

1. Stuart Haire joined on 31 December 2022 and was not eligible for an increase.

Variable Pay The Strategic Report provides a comprehensive explanation

of the Group's purpose and strategy. We deliver this

through our three strategic priorities: Help more people
have a home, Make money work harder, Make membership
matter. In addition, the Group Responsible Business Report
explains how sustainability and ESG is woven through every
part of our strategy.

Single Variable Pay Arrangement (SVPA)

The SVPA is designed as a discretionary variable
incentive plan and supports the attraction and retention
of high-quality colleagues and the development of a
high-performance culture. The plan is designed to link
the performance of participants to sustainable business
performance. Participation in the plan relating to any
financial year shall be at the discretion of the Board
Remuneration Committee.

The strategic team objectives are a set of objectives aligned
to the Strategic Priorities. For the 2023 SVPA the focus was
on two of the Strategic Priorities: Create a Growth Culture
and Transform for the Future.
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The table below summarises the measures, performance targets, outcomes and weighting underlying the 2023 SVPA.

2023 Performance Target
Performance Range: Threshold - IPe_rform_?nce
Measures Maximum LRI E
f At or above
égJT“?Efﬁ)Fm“p 293.4-4143  Threshold / Below
Target
Adjusted Society _ Above Target /
PBT (Em)’ A2 = S0 Below Maximum
Cost Reduction (Em) 5/10-10/10 At Target
Society Mortgage
Year-End Balances  24,330.7-253239  Atorabove
(€m) Maximum
Society Savings
Year End Balances  23,683.4 - 24,650.2 At or above
(Em) Maximum
. . . At or above
Financial Advice
. : 9.78-13.80 Threshold / below
direct income (Em) Target
Society net
customer 87%-92% At Target
satisfaction (%)
At or above
ESG Measures the  5/10-10/10  Threshold / below
Target

Weighting Group

Weighting
Chief Executive Executive Directors

320.6 32% 12%
273.9 = 20%
6/10 10% 10%
26,250.1 5% 5%
25,953.0 5% 5%
9.97 5% 5%
89% 5% 5%
5/10 10% 10%

Strategic Team Objectives - a set of objectives aligned to the Society's 2023-2027
Corporate Plan. For 2023 these objectives align to two of the Strategic Priorities: 14% 14%

Create a Growth Culture and Transform for the Future.

Personal Objective - performance has been assessed against both the delivery
of the Society performance scorecard as well as individuals’ goals, values and 14% 14%

behaviours.

Notes:

1. For bonus purposes, the Group and Society PBT figures are adjusted as outlined in the Board Audit Committee Report.

At the end of the year, the Committee reviewed the annual
performance under the SVPA for all the executive directors and
Group Executive Committee members. The incentive outcomes
for 2023 are based on the performance relative to target for the
SVPA measures. They also reflect the Committee’s assessment
of performance achieved against the strategic team and
personal objectives, taking into consideration the views of the
non-executive members of the Board.

Based on this overall assessment, the outcomes for the
executive directors were between 34% and 36% of salary
reflecting the healthy performance of the Group over the year.

Risk considerations

To ensure that rewards are based on sustainable
performance, set in a multi-year period, the Board
Remuneration Committee conducts a sustainability
review for senior schemes (SVPA and senior leaders), one
year after the original performance year. The review also
considers feedback from the Board Risk and Board Audit
Committees provided as part of the annual risk assessment
process. The sustainability review conducted in February
2024 for the 2022 SVPA and senior leaders’ schemes
demonstrated that 2022 performance levels had been
maintained in 2023. The Board Remuneration Committee

therefore concluded that no adjustment to the 2022
awards was required at the point in time.

The Society has a Risk Adjustment Policy which sets out

its approach to ex-ante and post risk adjustment, malus

and clawback. Where the Remuneration Committee
determines that risk adjustment is required, payments due
from the scheme and deferred payments (if applicable)

may be postponed, reduced, or cancelled for some, or all,
participants. In certain circumstances, the business may
need to apply clawback arrangements and require repayment
of an appropriate amount of variable pay relating to the event
which has occurred.

The Society’s non-executive directors, acting on behalf

of the Board Remuneration Committee, exercised their
discretion to reduce payments due under the 2022 SVPA to
certain senior individuals within the Society, following the
outcome in April 2023 of an investigation commissioned by
the Board regarding the material increase in the temporary
model adjustment. The details of these adjustments
applicable to the executive directors are included in the
executive directors’' remuneration tables on page 93.
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Deferral arrangements

In line with relevant remuneration regulations, which
include the Remuneration part of the PRA rulebook and the
FCA's Dual Regulated Firms Remuneration Code, variable
pay awards may be subject to deferral.

For executive directors whose remuneration is over the
‘de-minimis’ limit, variable pay awards are required to have
a deferral period of 7 years, with 60% percent deferred.

Regulations also require 50% of total variable pay award
to be delivered as an ‘instrument’ and subject to a holding
period of 12 months. The Society uses contingent cash to
fulfil the 50% instruments requirement. All payments are
subject to malus and clawback.

The table below sets out the percentage of the executive
directors’ 2023 SVPA awards which will be paid per year,
made up of payments in cash and instruments
(contingent cash payments).

|| Mar24 | Mar25 | Mar-26 | Mar-27 | Mar-28 | Mar-29 | Mar-30 | Mar-31 | Mar-32

Non-deferred

Cash 20% > = 6%

Instrument - 20% - -

Payments to former directors

A payment of £219,810.24 was made to David Cutter in
March 2023 in respect of vested deferred payments in
2023 from the 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2021 SVPA
schemes and the non-deferred contingent amount from
his termination payment. A further payment of £9,674.68
was made in September 2023 in respect of vested deferred
payment from the 2016 SVPA scheme.

Payments for loss of office

In agreement with the Board, lan Cornelius stepped down
from the role of Interim Group Chief Executive on 30
December 2022 and his employment with the Society ended
on 31 May 2023. The Committee determined that he should
receive his salary and contractual benefits in respect of his
notice period, together with discretionary payments relating
to loss of statutory rights, legal advice, and accrued but
untaken leave. The total sum received was £327,774. He will
retain his entitlement to existing deferred bonuses, which
will continue to be released in the usual way. He is not
eligible for any bonus in respect of 2023.

The Group Chief Financial Officer, Bobby Ndawula, has
announced he will be leaving the Society at the end of June
2024. The Board Remuneration Committee has determined
that a pro-rata SVPA bonus award is to be considered for the
period in office for performance year 2024.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

The role of the Non-Executive Remuneration Committee
is to set and review non-executive director (NED) fees

Deferred
6% 6% 6% 6%
6% 6% 6% 6% 6%

(other than the Chair of the Board) ensuring that these are
appropriate to attract and retain high quality individuals.

In May 2023 the Non-Executive Remuneration Committee
asked PwC to conduct a market benchmarking exercise to
review the Society’s NED fees, including fees for chairing
and membership of board committees. The last review
carried out was in 2021.

This benchmarking exercise highlighted that NED fee levels
were far below market levels. After due consideration by the
Non-Executive Remuneration Committee, a proposal was
submitted to Board to align fees to market median level. The
Senior Independent Director (SID) fee remains below market
median. It is important that NED fees be set at a level that
will enable the Group to continue to attract high calibre
individuals to serve on its boards who have the necessary
capabilities, skills and experience required to promote the
long-term success of a large and complex group such as the
Skipton Group.

Separately, PwC were also asked to review the Chair's fee
and this was found to be significantly below benchmark. A
proposal to increase the Chair fee was made by the Senior
Independent Director, Mark Lund, and approved by the Board.
This fee remains below market median.

As a result, the annual fees payable for all non-executive
director roles increased for 2023, as per the table below.
The non-executive directors did not receive a cost of living
increase for 2023.

T T s e | e

Chair

Non-Executive Directors base fee

Senior Independent Director (“SID") fee

Chair of Board Audit and Board Risk Committees fee
Chair of Board Remuneration Committee fee

Chair of Board Nominations Committee fee'

Chair of Board Change Committee fee?

Board Audit, Board Risk, Board Change and Board Remuneration Committee

membership fees
Chair of Connells board
Chair of Connells Audit & Risk Committee

Notes:

260,000 205,000
70,000 54,700
78,613 61,900
25,000 15,300
20,000 15,300
20,000 -
10,000 -
50,000 35,000
15,000 -

1. There is no separate Nominations Committee chair fee as the Board Chair assumes this role.

2. Board Change Committee is a new Committee formed in 2023
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The actual total fees and benefits for the non-executive directors in 2023 and 2022 are set out in the tables below.

Basic fee Comr_nittee Committ_ee Taxable expenses' Total
. £000 Chair fee Membership fee £000 £000
Non-Executive Director £000 £000
Gwyn Burr (Chair) 2 260 > > > 260
Mark Lund (Deputy Chair) 3 129 > 20 3 152
Richard Coates 5 18 5 - - 23
lain Cummings 6 70 17 14 2 103
Steven Davis 7 54 12 - 2 68
Denis Hall 9 70 25 10 3 108
Heather Jackson 10 70 20 14 . 104
Philip Moore 1 105 8 20 1 134
Sarah Whitney 12 47 33 = 1 81
823 120 78 12 1,033
T
Non-Executive Director £000 £000 £000 £000
Gwyn Burr (Chair) 2 139 - - 139
Mark Lund (Deputy Chair) 3 97 = 1 98
Amanda Burton 4 30 = > 30
Richard Coates 5 55 15 s 70
lain Cummings 6 27 = > 27
Robert East 8 63 = 4 67
Denis Hall 9 55 15 1 71
Heather Jackson 10 55 10 . 65
Philip Moore 11 78 - 1 79
Helen Stevenson 13 55 10 1 66
654 50 8 712

Notes:

—_

. Expenses relate to reimbursement of travel and subsistence between home and the Skipton head office, including for attendance at Board and Committee meetings.
In addition to reimbursement for expenses, any tax that arises is settled by the Society on behalf of the non-executive directors.

2. Gwyn Burr was appointed to the Board as Chair effective from 27 April 2022 on an annual fee of £205,000.

3. Mark Lund was interim Chair of Connells from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023, is a member of the Board Remuneration Committee and the Board Audit
Committee. Mark is also a non-executive director of Connells Limited, for which he receives an annual fee of £35,000, included in the table above.

4. Amanda Burton retired from the Board on 26 April 2022.
. Richard Coates retired from the Board on 24 April 2023. Richard was Chair of the Board Audit Committee and a member of the Board Risk Committee.

(&

6. lain Cummings became Chair of the Board Audit Committee upon Richard Coates’ retirement on 25 April 2023 and is a member of the Board Change Committee,
and the Board Risk Committee.

7. Steven Davis was appointed as a non-executive director effective from 3 April 2023 and became Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee on 21 September 2023.
8. Robert East retired from the Board on 26 April 2022.
9. Denis Hall is Chair of the Board Risk Committee and a member of the Board Audit Committee.

10. Heather Jackson was Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee from 1 January 2023 to 21 September 2023, and became Chair of the Board Change Committee
on 21 September 2023. Heather is also a member of the Board Remuneration Committee and the Board Risk Committee.

11. Philip Moore is Chair of Connells Audit & Risk Committee and a member of the Board Audit Committee and the Board Risk Committee. Philip is also a non-executive
director of Connells Limited, for which he receives an annual fee of £35,000, included in the table above.

12. Sarah Whitney was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 May 2023 and became Chair of Connells board on 1 September 2023.
13. Helen Stevenson retired from the Board on 31 December 2022.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration in the Society
Our Reward principles and aims

The Committee does not consult colleagues on remuneration
policy for Directors, but it does take into consideration
remuneration arrangements for the wider population in the
Society when determining executive remuneration.

A set of fair pay principles has been developed taking into
consideration the views of colleagues from across the
Society and these underpin the Society's current and future
reward strategies.

The Society has wellbeing at the forefront of its culture and
continues to support colleagues physically, mentally and
financially. Our reward platform, ‘Select’, which is used by

all colleagues, builds awareness and enables personalisation
and choice of the benefits on offer. One of the many
features is a total reward statement allowing an individual
to understand how their package is constructed and
understand the full value when all elements of remuneration
are included.

Cascade of remuneration in the Society

The table below summarises colleague participation by
seniority in the Society’s range of remuneration programmes.
A review of benefits was carried out in 2023, resulting in a
change to the Society’s core benefits offering. All colleagues
are now eligible to receive Pension, Life Cover, Group Income
Protection and Private Medical Insurance, funded by

the Society.

Base Salary

Annual Bonus

Pension

Life Cover

Group Income Protection
Private Medical Insurance
Company Sick Pay
Annual Health Check

DN N N Y W N N N

Other Benefits

N X NSNS SN N S S
N X SN SN SN S SN

How does executive remuneration for 2023 align with the wider workforce?

Bonus Award Maximum achievable

Group Chief Executive

Executive Directors 6.0%

Other Executive Committee 15.0%

Members

Senior Leaders 6.5%

Other colleagues 6.0%
CEO Pay Ratio

In line with the regulatory requirements of listed companies,
the Board has agreed to voluntarily publish the CEO pay
ratio for the Society only. Given the diversity of the wider
Skipton Group, the Society measure is deemed to be more
appropriate as it provides a more meaningful comparison
with our peers in financial services.
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33.8% 41.9% 50% 50%
34.7% 41.7% 50% 50%
32.3% 40.2% 50% 50%
20.5% 21.6% 25-50% 25-50%
9.6% 9.8% 14% 14%

For the purposes of this year’s disclosure, the pay ratio
calculation uses the Society’s April 2023 gender pay

gap data to identify the three appropriate colleagues for
comparison with the CEO. This methodology is referred to as
‘Option B'. This data is used to identify the best equivalent
for three colleagues whose hourly rates of pay are at the
25th, 50th and 75th percentiles for the Group and their total
pay and benefits figure for 2023 is then calculated. A sample

of colleagues with hourly pay rates either side of the initially
identified individuals are also reviewed to ensure that the
appropriate representative colleagues are selected.

The table below sets out the total remuneration of the Group

Chief Executive and the total remuneration of employees who
sit at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentiles for the Society.

m 25t percentile pay ratio Median pay ratio 75t percentile pay ratio

2021 OptionB' 541

2022 Ratio 12 Option B 741

2022 Ratio 23 Option B 291

20234 Option B 351
Notes:

381 221
5511 391
211 151
271 191

1. As recognised by the BEIS, those companies with multiple subsidiaries and payrolls can opt to use Option B.

2. Ratio 1 includes a buy-out awarded to the incoming GCE.
3. Ratio 2 excludes a buy-out awarded to the incoming GCE.

4. Employee data includes full time equivalent total remuneration for Society employees as at 31 December 2023.

The total remuneration and salary values for the 25", 50" (median) and 75™ percentile employees in 2023 are:

Gender pay data 25t percentile pay ratio Median pay ratio 75 percentile pay ratio

Salary (£) 26,138

Total remuneration (£) 28,588

33,374 48,523
36,502 53,070

Statement of implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2024

Base Salary

In line with the approach taken across the Society, the
annual pay review was brought forward three months for the
executive directors. The Committee approved a pay award of
4% for the executive directors which will be effective from 1
January 2024.

Single Variable Pay Arrangement (SVPA)

With the agreement of the new Corporate Plan in December
2023, the SVPA scheme has been reviewed for 2024 to
maintain a clear link between the bonus plan and how it

supports and re-enforces business strategy. The 2024
SVPA will have metrics and weightings across four groups
of performance measures:

+ Financial
+  Customer and Colleague
+ ESG

« Personal objectives — aligning to the new behaviour
framework, assessing both what has been achieved
and how

The measures and weightings for 2024 are set out in the
table below.

Group Profit 25% 20%
Financial
Society Profit 20% 25%
Net Customer Satisfaction 15% 15%
Customer &
Colleague
2 Colleague Engagement & Culture 5% 5%
ESG 2 Metrics (including D&I) 5% 5%
Personal objectives / performance — what? 15% 15%
Personal
ERIESHE Personal objectives / performance — how? 15% 15%

The maximum bonus opportunity will remain 50% of base salary, with the target opportunity 30% of base salary.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Material Risk Takers

Material Risk Takers (MRTSs) are those colleagues whose
professional activities have a material impact on the
Society's risk profile. In accordance with regulations, we have
identified MRTs in the Society and in the Group subsidiary
companies who are in scope of the PRA and FCA regulations.

The Board Remuneration Committee is responsible for
approving remuneration policies, maintaining oversight of the
remuneration of MRTs and for ensuring that remuneration is
paid to them in accordance with regulatory requirements.

Details of the MRTs' remuneration arrangements for 2023
are included in the Pillar 3 document which is available at
skipton.co.uk/about-us/pillar-3-disclosure.

The Committee and its advisers

The members of the Board Remuneration Committee are
all independent non-executive directors of the Society
and include members of the Board Risk and Board Audit
Committees:

« Steven Davis, Non-Executive Director
(Chair)

+  Heather Jackson, Non-Executive Director
(member of the Board Risk Committee)

+  Mark Lund, Non-Executive Director
(member of the Board Audit Committee)

In addition to Committee members, regular attendees at
Committee meetings include the Group Chief People Officer,
the Group Secretary and General Counsel, and PwC, our
independent external consultants. The Group Chair has a
standing invitation to all meetings of the Committee. The
Group Chief Executive, Group Chief Risk Officer and the Head
of Reward and Governance attend meetings by invitation.
The Committee met 12 times in 2023.

The purpose of the Board Remuneration Committee is

To determine, on behalf of the Board, the Remuneration Policy

Ensure that remuneration arrangements support and encourage desired behaviours and culture

Maintain policies that are compliant with governing laws and regulations

Ensure appropriate governance of remuneration practices across the Society and its subsidiary
companies and exercise effective oversight of these

Ensure that remuneration policies, principles and practices are appropriate to enable the
business to attract, retain and reward people with the right skills, experience, knowledge and
behaviours to support achievement of business goals and objectives

Amongst its other duties, the Committee specifically:

+ Determines and agrees on behalf of the Board, the Society’s Remuneration Principles and Policy, ensuring alignment to
the business strategy, risk profile, corporate values, regulatory requirements and the long-term interests of the Society

and its members.

« Provides adequate oversight arrangements to ensure policies are operating as intended.

+  Works closely with the Board Audit and Board Risk Committees to ensure that Remuneration Policy promotes sound and

effective risk management.

+ Maintains an effective risk adjustment policy and process which takes into account the Board Risk appetite, capital and
liquidity levels and ensures remuneration levels reflect overall performance.

+ Assesses with regard to variable pay the achievement of performance targets and the need for ex-ante or ex-post risk
adjustments, including the application of malus and clawback arrangements.
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+ Determines and agrees remuneration for the Chair of the Society Board and Society executive directors which shall be

subject to the Remuneration Principles.

+  Oversees the remuneration of the senior officers in the Risk and Compliance functions.

+ Receives recommendations from the Group Chief Executive for approval of the remuneration for senior executives which

shall be subject to the Remuneration Principles.

+ Determines the policy, term, objectives and content of Society executive directors’ and Society senior executives’ service
contracts to ensure they remain aligned to the Committee’s overarching Remuneration Policy, regulatory requirements,

and good practice guidance.

+ Reviews any proposed remuneration structures or pay proposals which fall outside the parameters of the agreed

Remuneration Principles.

The Committee ensures that clear remuneration principles
for the Society and its subsidiaries are set and agreed
annually. For the PRA and FCA regulated businesses, the
principles set out appropriate standards for remuneration
design, governance, risk management, and, where
applicable, remuneration for MRTs. The Group Chief Risk
Officer updates the Committee on risk related matters

and provides information and insight as part of the risk
adjustment process.

The full terms of reference of the Board Remuneration
Committee and the Remuneration Principles are available
on request from the Group Secretary and General Counsel.
The terms of reference are also available online at skipton.
co.uk/about-us/governance/board-committees.

Independent Advisers

PwC were appointed as independent external consultants
by the Committee in 2015 following a review of potential
advisers. PwC is a signatory to the voluntary Code of
Conduct in relation to remuneration in the UK. During the

year, PwC have supported the Committee on a range of items
advising on regulatory reporting and risk adjustment, carrying

out the non-executive directors benchmarking exercise,
and advising on executive director remuneration.

The Committee is satisfied that the advice received is
objective and independent. PwC's fees in respect of
remuneration services provided in 2023 were £127,728
(net of VAT).

In addition to remuneration, PwC provide other services to the
Society such as accounting, internal audit, and tax advice.

Consideration of member views

The Committee has, for a number of years, invited members
to vote (on an advisory basis) on the Remuneration Policy
every 3 years and annual Remuneration Report every year,
and takes member feedback into account when determining
policy and outcomes.

Statement of voting at the 2023 AGM

At the 2023 AGM the Directors’ Remuneration Report was
subject to an advisory vote of members, the results of which
were as follows:

2022 Remuneration Report 53,525 (91.69%)

4,848 1,297

Steven Davis
Chair of the Board Remuneration Committee

27 February 2024
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Financial Statements

Independent
Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Skipton Building Society

Opinion

In our opinion:

+ the Group financial statements and the Society'’s financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and the Society's affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of the Group’s and the Society’s

income and expenditure for the year then ended,;

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting

standards; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Building Societies Act 1986

We have audited the financial statements of Skipton Building Society (the ‘Society’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the

year ended 31 December 2023 which comprise:

R I

Consolidated statement of Financial Position as at
31 December 2023

Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended
31 December 2023

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Interests
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 December 2023

Related notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies

Information in respect of Country by Country Reporting on
pages 240 and 241

Information identified as “audited” within the Directors’
Remuneration Report

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended
31 December 2023

Statement of Changes in Members' Interests for the year
ended 31 December 2023

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December
2023

Related notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international

accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Society in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Society
and we remain independent of the Group and the Society in
conducting the audit.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we